
 
  

 
 

NOTICE OF 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL 

HICKORY CREEK TOWN HALL 
1075 RONALD REAGAN AVENUE, HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 75065 

MONDAY, JANUARY 27, 2020, 6:00 PM 
 

AGENDA 
 
Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. And Texas Flags 

Invocation 

Presentation of Awards 

1. Kevin Ricer 

Proclamations 

2. Town of Hickory Creek, Texas a Purple Heart Town 

Items of Community Interest 

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Section 551.0415 the Town Council may report on the 
following: expressions of thanks, congratulations, or condolence; an honorary or salutary 
recognition of an individual; a reminder about an upcoming event organized or sponsored by the 
governing body; and announcements involving an imminent threat to the public health and safety 
of people in the municipality or county that has arisen after the posting of the agenda. 

Public Comment 

This item allows the public an opportunity to address the Town Council.  To comply with the 
provisions of the Open Meetings Act, the Town Council cannot discuss or take action on items 
brought before them not posted on the agenda. Please complete a request if you wish to address 
the Town Council. Comments will be limited to three minutes.  Open Forum is for information 
only.  No charges and/or complaints will be heard against any elected official, the Town, or 
employee of the Town that are prohibited by law. 

Consent Agenda 

Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory and will be enacted with one 
motion. No separate discussion of these items will occur unless so requested by at least one 
member of the Town Council. 



3. November 2019 Council Meeting Minutes 

4. November 2019 Financial Statements 

5. December 2019 Financial Statements 

6. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas ordering 
an election to be held on May 2, 2020 for the purpose of electing a Mayor and Town 
Council Members to Place 2 and Place 4. 

7. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending 
the Town's Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12: Traffic and Vehicles: Article 12:06 Motorized 
Carts.  

8. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending 
the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, Chapter 3: Building 
Regulations, Article 3.11: Solar Panel Standards. 

9. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending 
the Town's Code of Ordinances, Chapter 3: Building Regulations, Article 3.07: Floods and 
Drainage. 

10. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, hereby 
amending the Master Application and Fee Schedule. 

11. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas authorizing the 
issuance of a water well drilling permit for 199 Country Lane, Hickory Creek, Texas. 

12. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, 
Texas authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas and 
McCreary, Veselka, Bragg and Allen, P.C. 

13. Consider and act on Change Order No. 2 for the 2019 Sidewalk Improvements project. 

Regular Agenda 

14. Presentation of the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Audit from Carl Deaton of Hankins, Eastup, 
Deaton, Tonn & Seay. 

15. Presentation regarding the United States Census 2020 from Tenishea Turner. 

16. Presentation from Dunaway Associates regarding a Comprehensive Plan Update. 

17. Presentation regarding the Lake Cities Fire Department from Chief Michael Ross. 

18. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas approving the 
Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 2 2020 Amended Service And 
Assessment Plan, including proposed reallocation of the assessment roll; directing the 
filing of the proposed reallocation of the assessment roll with the town secretary; calling a 
public hearing to consider an ordinance reallocating assessments on the public 
improvement district. 



19. Consider and act on a replat of lots 1R and 2R, Block A Steeplechase South Addition, an 
8.05 acre tract being all of Lot 1, Block A of Steeplechase South Addition situated in the 
M.E.P. & P.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract No. 915, Town of Hickory Creek, Denton 
County, Texas. 

20. Reconvene a public hearing continued from November 25, 2019 on a request from 
CTMGT Turbeville LLC. to modify the zoning designation of PD – Planned Development 
on a 6.72 acre portion of an 8.0454 acre tract of land legally described as Steeplechase 
South Addition, Block A, Lot 1, and consider and act on an ordinance adopting the same. 
The property is located in the 1900 Block of Turbeville Road. 

21. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, 
Texas authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas and 
the Cross Timers Equestrian Trail Association and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Fort 
Worth District. 

22. Discussion regarding the 2019 Hickory Creek Business of the Year. 

23. Discussion regarding the 2019 Hickory Creek Citizen of the Year. 

24. Discussion regarding town council goals for 2019-2020 to include infrastructure projects, 
broadband solutions, Sycamore Bend Road, community events and employee recognition. 

Executive Session 

In accordance with Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 551, the Town Council will convene 
into executive session to discuss the following matters. 

Section 551.071 

Consultation with Attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas 
clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings Act, or on matters pertaining to pending or 
contemplated litigation. 

25. Fire Services 

Section 551.072 

Deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property if deliberation in an open 
meeting would have a detrimental effect on the position of the governmental body in 
negotiations with a third person. 

26. Sycamore Bend DCAD Property ID 62195;62311;62329 and 155074. 

27. Parkridge at F.M. 2181 DCAD Property ID 731514 

 

 

 



Section 551.087 

Deliberation regarding Economic Development Negotiations, to discuss or deliberate regarding 
commercial or financial information that the governmental body has received from a business 
prospect that the government body seeks to have locate, stay or expand in or near the territory of 
the government body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic development 
negotiations; or to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to a business prospect. 

28. Project Eagle 

Reconvene into Open Session 

29. Discussion and possible action regarding matters discussed in executive session. 

Adjournment 

The Town Council reserves the right to adjourn into executive session at any time during the 
course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as authorized by the Texas 
Government Code, Chapter 551. 

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for 
accommodations or interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to the meeting. Please 
contact Town Hall at 940-497-2528 or by fax 940-497-3531 so that appropriate arrangements 
can be made. 

I, Kristi Rogers, Town Secretary, for the Town of Hickory Creek certify that this meeting notice 
was posted on the bulletin board at Town Hall, 1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue, Hickory Creek, 
Texas on January 24, 2020 at 8:00 a.m. 

 
Kristi Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek 
  



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

2. Town of Hickory Creek, Texas a Purple Heart Town 

  



 

Proclamation 
by the 

Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 

 
WHEREAS,  the residents of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas have great admiration and the 

utmost gratitude for all the men and women who have selflessly served their country 
and this community in the Armed Forces; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the Purple Heart is the oldest military decoration in present use and was initially created 
as the Badge of Military Merit by George Washington in 1782; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Purple Heart was the first American service award or decoration made available to 

the common soldier and is specifically awarded to members of the United States Armed 
Forces who have been wounded or paid the ultimate sacrifice in combat with a declared 
enemy of the United States of America; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the contributions and sacrifices of the men and women from the Town of Hickory 

Creek, Texas, who served in the Armed Forces have been vital in maintaining the 
freedoms and way of life enjoyed by our citizens; and 

 
WHEREAS,  many men and women in uniform have given their lives while serving in the Armed 

Forces; and 
 
WHEREAS,  January 27, 2020 has officially been designated as the day in the Town of Hickory 

Creek, Texas to remember and recognize veterans who are recipients of the Purple Heart 
Medal. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Lynn C. Clark, Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, do hereby proclaim the 

Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, a Purple Heart Town, for honoring the service and 
sacrifice of our nation’s men and women in uniform wounded or killed by the enemy 
while serving to protect the freedoms enjoyed by all Americans. 

 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the official 

seal of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas to be affixed this the 27th day of 
January, 2020. 

 
 
 
    _____________________________________ 
    Lynn C. Clark, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kristi K. Rogers, Town Secretary 
 
 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

3. November 2019 Council Meeting Minutes 

  



 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE TOWN COUNCIL 
HICKORY CREEK TOWN HALL 

1075 RONALD REAGAN, HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 25, 2019 

 
MINUTES 

 
Call to Order 

Mayor Clark called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Roll Call 

The following members were present: 
Mayor Lynn Clark 
Councilmember Richard DuPree 
Councilmember Chris Gordon 
Mayor Pro Tem Paul Kenney 
Councilmember Ian Theodore 
 
The following member was absent:  
Councilmember Tracee Elrod 

Also in attendance: 
John M. Smith, Jr., Town Administrator 
Kristi K. Rogers, Town Secretary 
Carey Dunn, Chief of Police 
Trey Sargent, Town Attorney 

Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. And Texas Flags 

Mayor Clark led the Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. and Texas Flags. 

Invocation 

Councilmember Theodore gave the invocation. 

Presentation of Awards 

1. 2019 Arbor Day Poster Contest Winners 

 Mayor Clark and John Grosskopf, Parks and Recreation Board Chariman, recognized the 
2019 Arbor Day Poster Contest Winners.  

2. Paul Huggins 

 Mayor Clark presented a plaque of appreciation to Paul Huggins for completion of his 
Eagle Scout project in Arrowhead Park. 

3. Lisa Rowell 

 Mayor Clark presented Lisa Rowell a plaque of appreciation for her years of service on the 
Parks and Recreation Board. 



Town of Hickory Creek 
November 25, 2019 
Page 2 

Items of Community Interest 

The annual tree lighting will be held Friday, December 6, 2019 from 6:00 p.m. until 8:00 p.m. at 
town hall. 

Officer Jim Zehetner was honored as November 2019 First Responder of the Month at the Lake 
Cities Chamber of Commerce Luncheon.  

Public Comment 

There were no speakers for public comment. 

Consent Agenda 

4. October 2019 Council Meeting Minutes 

5. October 2019 Financial Statements 

6. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending 
the Town's Code of Ordinances, Chapter 1: General Provisions: Article 1:07 Boards and 
Commissions.  

7. Consider and act on a resolution hereby authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory 
Creek, Texas to execute an agreement by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
and CenturyLink for fiber internet services. 

8. Consider and act on a resolution hereby authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory 
Creek, Texas to execute an agreement by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
and Hickory Creek Crossing Limited Partnership for temporary access to certain property 
to make road alterations, repairs, maintenance, and modifications. 

9. Consider and act on a resolution hereby authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory 
Creek, Texas to execute an agreement by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
and Municipal Code Corporation for website redesign, hosting and support services. 

10. Consider and act on a resolution hereby authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory 
Creek, Texas to execute an agreement for USPS postage meter and postal services by and 
between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas and Neopost. 

 Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Kenney to approve consent agenda items 4 through 10, 
Seconded by Councilmember Theodore. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously.  

Regular Agenda 

11. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, 
Texas, casting its votes for one or more candidates for appointment to the Denton Central 
Appraisal District Board of Directors and providing an effective date. 



Town of Hickory Creek 
November 25, 2019 
Page 3 

 Motion made by Councilmember Gordon to approve a resolution casting five votes for 
Kelly Sayre for appointment to the Denton Central Appraisal District Board of Directors , 
Seconded by Councilmember DuPree. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously.  

12. Interviews for various boards and commissions. 

 The town council interviewed Nick Wohr for various boards and commissions. 

13. Consider and act on appointments to various boards and commissions. 

Motion made by Councilmember Theodore to reappoint Nancy Koket to Place 1, Tracee 
Elrod to Place 3, Sugene May to Place 5,  Bruce Enriquez to Place 7 on the Economic 
Development Corporation and to appoint Nick Wohr to Place 1 on the Parks and 
Recreation Board, Seconded by Councilmember Gordon. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously. 

14. Conduct a public hearing to hear public opinion on a request from Leon Capital Group on 
behalf of the Holker Irrevocable 2007 Trust to change the zoning designation of SF-3 
Single Family to PD - Planned Development on a 30.4661-acre tract of land legally 
described as A0819A J. Maloney, Tract 2, and consider and act on an ordinance adopting 
the same. The property is located in the 1200 block Sycamore Bend Road, south of 
Maynard Road.  

 Rich Darragh, representing Leon Capital Group, provided an overview regarding the 
zoning request and answered questions from the town council. 

 Mayor Clark called the public hearing to order at 6:43 p.m. With no one wishing to speak, 
Mayor Clark closed the public hearing at 6:43 p.m. 

Motion made by Councilmember Theodore to approve an ordinance designating the zoning 
as PD Planned Development on a 30.4661-acre tract of land legally described as A0819A 
J. Maloney, Tract 2, Seconded by Councilmember Gordon. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously. 

15. Consider and act on a replat of lots 1R and 2R, Block A Steeplechase South Addition, an 
8.05 acre tract being all of Lot 1, Block A of Steeplechase South Addition situated in the 
M.E.P. & P.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract No. 915, Town of Hickory Creek, Denton 
County, Texas. 

 Motion made by Councilmember Gordon to consider Item 15 at a future town council 
meeting, Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Kenney. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously. 
 



Town of Hickory Creek 
November 25, 2019 
Page 4 

16. Conduct a public hearing to hear public opinion on a request from CTMGT Turbeville 
LLC. to modify the zoning designation of PD – Planned Development on a 6.72 acre 
portion of an 8.0454 acre tract of land legally described as Steeplechase South Addition, 
Block A, Lot 1, and consider and act on an ordinance adopting the same. The property is 
located in the 1900 Block of Turbeville Road. 

 Mayor Clark called the public hearing to order at 6:47 p.m.  

 Motion made by Councilmember Gordon to continue the public hearing at a future town 
council meeting, Seconded by Councilmember DuPree. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously. 

17. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending 
the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, Chapter 3: Building 
Regulations, by creating Article 3.11: Solar Panel Standards. 

 No action taken. 

18. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending 
the Town's Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12: Traffic and Vehicles: Creating Article 12:06 
Motorized Carts.  

 Motion made by Councilmember Gordon to approve an ordinance amending the Town's 
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12: Traffic and Vehicles: Creating Article 12:06 Motorized 
Carts, Seconded by Councilmember Theodore. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, Councilmember Theodore 
Voting Nay: Councilmember DuPree. Motion passed. 

19. Consider and act on a resolution hereby authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory 
Creek, Texas to execute an agreement by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
and Hickory Creek Residences, LLC. concerning the annexation and development of 
property currently located in the Town's extra-territorial jurisdiction. 

 The town council discussed criteria for entering into an agreement with Hickory Creek 
Residences, LLC. including height restrictions, masonry restrictions, dedication of open 
space, $10,000 for tree mitigation and construction of a 8’ hike and bike trail with signage 
and lighting.  

 Motion made by Councilmember Gordon to authorize the town administrator to negotiate 
the agreement concerning the annexation and development of property currently located in 
the Town's extra-territorial jurisdiction as discussed by the Mayor and Town Council 
tonight. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
 



Town of Hickory Creek 
November 25, 2019 
Page 5 

20. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, 
Texas, approving a Type B economic development project and performance agreement by 
and between the Hickory Creek Economic Development Corporation, and Lyons American  
Securities, Inc., a Texas corporation,  to provide a financial incentive for the construction 
of a roadway, authorized pursuant to Sections 501.103 the Texas Local Government Code. 

Motion made by Councilmember Theodore to approve agenda item 20, Seconded by 
Councilmember DuPree. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously. 

21. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas authorizing the 
issuance of a water well drilling permit for 1851 Turbeville Road, Hickory Creek, Texas. 

 Motion made by Councilmember Theodore to approve agenda item 21 contingent on 
approval from L.C.U.M.A., Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Kenney. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously. 

22. Discussion regarding town council goals for 2019-2020 to include infrastructure projects, 
broadband solutions, Sycamore Bend Road, community events and employee recognition. 

 The Town Council discussed goals for 2019-2020 including infrastructure projects, 
broadband solutions, Sycamore Bend Road, community events and employee recognition. 

Executive Session 

In accordance with Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 551, the Town Council convened 
into executive session at 8:05 p.m.to discuss the following matters. 

Section 551.071 

Consultation with Attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental 
body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas 
clearly conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings Act, or on matters pertaining to pending or 
contemplated litigation. 

23. Receive advice and provide Town Attorney direction concerning enforcement of property 
condition standards at 1 Kelton Avenue. 

Reconvene into Open Session 

The Town Council reconvened into open session at 8:32 p.m. 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Kenney to authorize the town attorney to pursue Chapter 54 
as discussed in executive session, Seconded by Councilmember Theodore. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously. 

 



Town of Hickory Creek 
November 25, 2019 
Page 6 

Adjournment 

Motion made by Councilmember Theodore to adjourn the meeting, Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Kenney. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember DuPree, Councilmember Gordon, Mayor Pro Tem Kenney, 
Councilmember Theodore. Motion passed unanimously. 

 
The meeting did then stand adjourned at 8:33 p.m. 

 
Approved:     Attest: 
 
 
 
 
___________________________                __________________________         
Lynn C. Clark, Mayor    Kristi K. Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek   Town of Hickory Creek     
 
 

 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

4. November 2019 Financial Statements 

  







































Item Attachment Documents: 

 

5. December 2019 Financial Statements 

  







































Item Attachment Documents: 

 

6. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas ordering 
an election to be held on May 2, 2020 for the purpose of electing a Mayor and Town 
Council Members to Place 2 and Place 4. 

  



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1-____                                                                                    Page 1 
 
 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-___ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS, 
ORDERING AN ELECTION TO BE HELD ON MAY 2, 2020 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
ELECTING A MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL MEMBERS TO PLACE 2 AND PLACE 
4; AUTHORIZING A JOINT ELECTION WITH OTHER DENTON COUNTY 
POLITICAL SUBDIVISONS; PROVIDING FOR A FILING PERIOD; PROVIDING FOR 
PRECINCTS; PROVIDING FOR APPOINTMENT OF AN EARLY VOTING CLERK; 
PROVIDING FOR EARLY VOTING LOCATIONS; PROVIDING FOR AN ELECTION 
DAY POLLING PLACE; PROVIDING FOR CANCELLATION OF ELECTION; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION AND POSTING OF NOTICE OF THIS 
ELECTION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas is a Type “A” General Law Municipality 
located in Denton County, Texas, created in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Local 
Government Code and operating pursuant to the enabling legislation of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the general election for the Town of Hickory Creek, as set forth by the Texas 
Election Code, is required to be held on May 2, 2020 for the purpose of electing a Mayor and 
Town Council Members to Place 2 and Place 4; each term being for a period of (2) two years. 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 271.002 of the Texas Election Code, the Town 
election will be conducted with other political subdivisions of Denton County Texas. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS, THAT: 

 
SECTION 1 

ELECTION ORDERED 
 
 An election is hereby ordered to be held on Saturday, May 2, 2020 for the purpose of 
electing a Mayor and Town Council Members to Place 2 and Place 4; each tern being for a period 
of (2) years. 

SECTION 2 
FILING PERIOD 

 
          The filing period for an application on the ballot is January 15, 2020 - February 14, 2020. 

 
SECTION 3 

PRECINCTS 
 

The election precinct for said election shall be the regular precinct of Denton County 
(Precinct 3001) to the extent that they are within the corporate limits of the Town of Hickory 
Creek. 



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1-____                                                                                    Page 2 
 
 

SECTION 4 
EARLY VOTING CLERK 

 
 In accordance with Sections 31.097 and 271.006 of the Texas Election Code, the following 
named person is hereby appointed as the Early Voting Clerk of the purposes of conducting said 
election: 
 
Frank Phillips, Early Voting Clerk 
Denton County Elections 
P.O. Box 1720 
Denton, Texas 76202 
Elections@dentoncounty.com                                     

SECTION 5 
EARLY VOTING LOCATIONS 

 
Early voting by personal appearance of Hickory Creek residents shall be conducted 

beginning April 20, 2020 and continue through April 28, 2020. The main early voting location 
shall be located at: Denton County Elections, 701 Kimberly Drive, Denton, Texas 76208. 
Additional early voting locations shall be determined per the Joint Election Agreement and 
Contract for Election Services with the Denton County Elections Administrator. 

 
SECTION 6 

ELECTION DAY POLLING PLACE 
 
The polling place for all of Precinct 3001 within the corporate limits of the Town of 

Hickory Creek will be located at: Town of Hickory Creek Town Hall, 1075 Ronald Reagan 
Avenue, Hickory Creek, Texas 75065. 

 
SECTION 7 

CANCELLATION OF ELECTION 
 
If only one person who has qualified to appear on the ballot for each office, and no write-

in candidates have submitted their names to be placed on the list for write-in candidates, the Town 
Council may declare the candidates elected to office and cancel the election called herein. 

 
SECTION 8 

NOTICE AND PUBLICATION 
 
Notice of the Election shall be given by posting a notice of election in both English and 

Spanish at Town of Hickory Creek located at 1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue, Hickory Creek Texas, 
on the bulletin board not later than twenty-one days prior to the date upon which the election is to 
be held, and by publication of said notice at least once in the official newspaper of the Town, being 
a newspaper of general circulation within the Town, the date of said publication to be not less than 
ten (10) days nor more than thirty (30) says prior to the date set for the elections. Upon publication 
of the election notice, the Town Secretary shall secure a publisher’s affidavit. 
 

  



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1-____                                                                                    Page 3 
 
 

SECTION 9 
NECESSARY ACTIONS 

 
The Mayor, Town Council, and Town Staff, in consultation with the Town Attorney, are 

hereby authorized and directed to take any and all actions necessary to comply with the provisions 
of the Code in carrying out and conducting the Election, whether or not expressly authorized 
herein. 

 
SECTION 10 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

 This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 
 

AND IT IS SO ORDAINED. 
 

          
  PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, this 
the 27th  day of January, 2020. 
 
             
             
        _______________________ 
        Lynn C. Clark., Mayor 
        Town of Hickory Creek 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Kristi K. Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM 
 
 
________________________________ 
Dorwin L. Sargent, III, Town Attorney 
Town of Hickory Creek 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

7. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending 
the Town's Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12: Traffic and Vehicles: Article 12:06 Motorized 
Carts.  

  



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  Page 1 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK 
ORDINANCE 2020-01-___ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS, AMENDING THE TOWN’S CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 12: TRAFFIC AND VEHICLES: ARTICLE 
12.06 MOTORIZED CARTS; PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION OF 
PREMISES; PROVIDING FINDINGS; PROVIDING A CUMULATIVE 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
ENGROSSMENT AND ENROLLMENT; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Hickory Creek is a Type A General Law Municipality located 

in Denton County, Texas, created in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Local 
Government Code and operating pursuant to the enabling legislation of the State of Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it to be necessary for the protection of public safety 

to prohibit the operation of motorized carts on public streets within the Town in the absence of 
regulations that promote the safe use and operation of such vehicles upon public streets; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it to be in the public interest to amend the Town of 

Hickory Creek Code of Ordinances to provide to the regulation of the operation of motorized carts 
on public streets within the Town. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1 
INCORPORATION OF PREMISES 

 
The above and foregoing premises are true and correct and are incorporated herein and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

SECTION 2 
FINDINGS 

 
After due deliberations the Town Council has concluded that the adoption of this Ordinance 

is in the best interests of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, and of the public health, safety and 
welfare. 

SECTION 3 
AMENDMENT 

 
3.01 That the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, Chapter 12 

Traffic and Vehicles: Article 12.6 Motorized Carts is hereby amended to read: 
 

“MOTORIZED CARTS 



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  Page 2 

 
Section 1:  Applicability/exemptions. 
 
(a)     Applicability 

 
(1)     Motorized carts. Except as expressly provided herein, the provisions of this article 
shall apply to all motorized carts operated within the corporate limits of the Town of 
Hickory Creek. 

 
(2)     ATV and similar vehicles. Nothing in this article permits the operation of those 
motorized conveyances commonly referred to as ATVs, four-wheelers, mules, gators, go-
carts, and any similar gas-powered conveyance on a public roadway within the Town, 
except when utilized by authorized Town personnel for Town business. 
 

 (b)     Exemptions. The following use or operation of a motorized cart shall be exempt from the 
regulations of this article: 
 

(1)     Official Town business. A motorized cart is used or operated by personnel for the 
Town on official police business or official business of the Town on property owned by or 
leased to the Town; 
 
(2)     Parade, festival, or special event. The operation of a motorized cart when the cart is 
used in connection with a parade, festival, or other Town authorized or sponsored special 
occasion, the written consent of the sponsor is obtained, and the cart is only used as part of 
such parade, festival or special event. Further, a motorized cart used in connection with 
such parade, festival, or special event shall comply with all requirements outlined in the 
Town issued special event permit for the parade, festival, or other special events. 

 
Section 2:  Definitions. 
 
The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
provided below, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning. 
 
Driver. A person driving and having physical control over a vehicle, including but not limited to 
a motorized cart. 
 
Driver’s license. An authorization issued by a state for the operation of a motor vehicle, including 
but not limited to a temporary license, provisional license, instructional permit, and an 
occupational license. 
 
Low-speed vehicle (LSV). A motor vehicle that is four (4) wheeled and has an attainable top speed 
of more than twenty (20) miles per hour and not more than twenty-five (25) miles per hour on a 
paved level surface, which is manufactured or retrofitted in compliance with those federal motor 
vehicle safety standards for low-speed vehicles, and has a weight of less than 3,000 pounds. 
 
Motorized cart or cart. Those electric or gasoline-powered motor vehicles, commonly referred to 
as golf carts, but which must have a minimum of four (4) wheels, which have an attainable top 



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  Page 3 

speed of less than twenty (20) miles per hour on a paved level surface. Expressly excluded from 
this definition are those motorized conveyances commonly referred to as low-speed vehicles 
(LSV’s), neighborhood electric vehicles (NEV’s), all-terrain vehicles (ATV’s), four-wheelers, 
mules, gators, and go-carts. 
 
Owner. A person who holds title to or who leases a motorized cart for their personal use or the use 
of a third party, whether for private or for commercial retail purposes. 
 
Parking area. Those areas accessible to the public by vehicular motor traffic and which are 
designated for temporary parking of motor vehicles, usually in place referred to as parking lots. 
 
Person. An individual, corporation, partnership, joint venture, or any other business entity. 
 
Sidewalk. The portion of a street that is between a curb or lateral line of a roadway and the adjacent 
property line and intended for pedestrian use. 
 
Slow-moving-vehicle-emblem. A triangular emblem that conforms to standards and specifications 
and displayed per chapter 547 of the Texas Transportation Code, as amended. 
 
Street(s). The public roadways of the Town and the private roadways for which the Texas 
Transportation Code has been applied by council action regardless of its designation as a road, 
alley, avenue, highway, route, boulevard, etc. that: 
  
     (1)     Has a posted speed limit of thirty-five (35) miles per hour or less; 
     (2)     Provides for no more than two (2) lanes of vehicular traffic per direction; and 
     (3)     Is not designated as part of either the state or federal highway system. 
 
Traffic way. Any land way open to the public as a matter of right or custom for moving persons or 
property from one place to another. The traffic way includes all property, both improved and 
unimproved, between the property lines of a roadway system. 
 
Section 3:  Operational Regulations. 
 
(a)     Operation of cart/compliance with traffic laws. A driver may operate a motorized cart on 
streets within the Town limits. Except as provided herein, while operating a motorized cart upon 
street(s) of the Town, a driver shall comply with all laws applicable to carts and other motor 
vehicles as outlined in this article, the Texas Transportation Code, as amended, and other state 
laws. A driver shall be subject to citation for all violations of this article, the Texas Transportation 
Code, and other applicable state law. 
 
(b)     Driver’s license required. A driver of a motorized cart shall be at least sixteen (16) years of 
age, hold a valid Texas driver’s license, and shall abide by all state and local traffic regulations 
applicable to vehicular traffic when operating a motorized cart upon the streets and parking areas 
of the Town. 
 
(c)     Sidewalk or pedestrian way. A driver shall not operate a motorized cart on any sidewalk, 
pedestrian walkway, jogging path, park trail, or any location normally used for pedestrian traffic, 



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  Page 4 

unless such operation is by police or other authorized Town personnel acting in an official capacity 
and performing an official duty, or specifically authorized by another section in this code. 
 
(d)     Crossing intersections. A driver shall not operate a motorized cart upon any portion of a 
street or traffic way having a posted speed greater than thirty-five (35) miles per hour; provided 
however, that a person may cross an intersection, including a road or street that has a posted speed 
limit of more than thirty-five (35) miles per hour as authorized by the Texas Transportation Code, 
as amended. A driver of a motorized cart may cross a multi-lane or a federal, county, or state route 
only at an intersection controlled by a traffic-control device which stops traffic from all directions. 
 
(e)     Lane usage. A motorized cart is entitled to full use of a lane on the streets and parking areas 
of the Town, and no motor vehicle shall be driven in such a manner as to deprive any motorized 
cart of the full use of a lane. A driver shall not operate a motorized cart between 1) another moving 
motorized cart or moving vehicle operated on a street in the rightmost lane and 2) a parked 
motorized cart or vehicle.  The driver of a cart shall move the cart to the right of the public street 
and yield the right-of-way to faster-moving vehicles. 
 
(f)     Passing. A driver of a motorized cart shall not overtake and pass in the same lane occupied 
by the vehicle being overtaken. While being overtaken and passed, the driver of a motorized cart 
shall yield to the right side of the lane and allow the passing vehicle the right-of-way. 
 
(g)    Maximum number of occupants. The number of occupants in a motorized cart shall be limited 
to the number of persons for whom seating capacity is provided on the vehicle. The operator and 
all occupants shall be seated upon the seat of the cart, and no part of the body of the operator or 
occupant shall extend outside the perimeter of the cart while the cart is being operated except while 
signaling turns or stops. A driver shall not permit any occupant of a cart to ride in the lap of any 
occupant or stand on the rear of the cart while the cart is in motion. 
 
(h)    Parking. A driver of a motorized cart may park a cart only in the same manner and at the 
same places designated for the parking of motor vehicles or motorized carts. The stopping, 
standing, or parking of motorized carts in an area where parking is not allowed or in any place or 
manner that impedes the flow of traffic, pedestrian walkways, or a passageway is prohibited. A 
driver shall not park a motorized cart within a space designated for disabled persons unless a 
current disabled parking placard is displayed on the cart and the person to whom the placard was 
issued is operating or being transported in the motorized cart. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a 
property owner may designate an area specifically for parking of motorized carts, provided that 
the area is marked with appropriate signage and that the parking of a cart in that area does not 
obstruct a fire lane, ingress or egress to a building, and does not interfere with the flow of vehicular 
traffic in a parking area. 
 
(i)     Towing prohibited. Except as expressly allowed in this article, motorized carts shall not be 
used to tow another cart, trailer, vehicle of any kind, or a person, including without limitation a 
person on roller skates, skateboard, bicycle, or other wheeled devices. 
(j)     Hours.  Motorized carts may be operated in the Town on a Street only between the hours of 
6:00 AM and 11:00 PM. 
 
Section 4:  Equipment. 



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  Page 5 

 
(a)  General. It shall be unlawful for a person to operate a motorized cart on the streets of the Town 
or anywhere authorized by this code if the motorized cart does not meet all minimum equipment 
standards, if required liability insurance for the cart is not maintained, without first obtaining a 
registration permit from the Town and affixing the decal to the cart, or if a person fails to comply 
with any other requirement of this article. 

 
(b)  The owner of a cart being operated on a public street must: 

 
     (1)  obtain a registration permit from the Town; 
     (2)  affix a registration decal to the cart; 
     (3)  maintain current financial responsibility for the cart as required by Section 601.051 Texas  
Transportation Code; and 
     (4)  ensure the cart has all required equipment in good operational condition. 
 
(c)     Required equipment. 
 

(1)     Motorized cart operation. Except as expressly exempted from this article, each 
motorized cart operating upon a street(s) within the Town shall be required to meet the 
minimum equipment standards specified in this article: 

  
 (A)     Operational headlamps (2 required); 
 (B)     Operational tail lamps (2 required); 
 (C)     Side reflectors (2 front: amber in color and 2 rear: red in color); 
 (D)     Stop lamps (2 required); 
 (E)     Operational parking brake; 

(F)     An exterior mirror mounted on the driver’s side of the vehicle and either an 
exterior mirror mounted on the passenger’s side of the vehicle or an interior mirror 
(capable of a clear, unobstructed view of at least two hundred (200) feet to the rear); 

 (G)     Slow-moving-vehicle-emblem on the rear; 
 (H) Seat belts in numbers equal to the number of passengers for which the 

vehicle is rated by the vehicle’s manufacturer; and 
 (I) Turn signals visible from both the front and rear of the vehicle. 
 

All required equipment for a motorized cart shall meet state and federal motor vehicle 
safety standards. 
 

(d)     Exhaust system for gasoline-powered motorized carts. In addition to the above-listed 
equipment, every motorized cart powered by gasoline shall at all times be equipped with an exhaust 
system in good working order, in constant operation and meeting the following specifications: 

(1)     The exhaust system shall include the piping leading from the flange of the exhaust 
manifold to and including the muffler and exhaust pipes or including any and all parts 
specified by the manufacturer. 
 
(2)     The exhaust system and its elements shall be securely fastened with brackets or 
hangers, which are designed for the particular purpose of fastening motorized cart exhaust 
systems. 



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  Page 6 

 
Section 5:  Registration Required 
 
(a) No person shall operate, cause to be operated or allow the operation of a cart on any public 

streets, parking areas, and traffic ways unless a valid registration permit has been issued for 
the cart or otherwise allowed by law. 
 

(b) Application for a permit authorizing the operation of a cart shall be made in writing and filed 
with the Town Administrator or his/her designee by a person who owns, leases, or otherwise 
uses a cart. Said application shall set forth the following: 

 
(1) The name, address, telephone number, and state driver’s license number of the 

applicant; 
(2) The street address where the cart is kept, including specific suite or apartment number, 

if applicable; 
(3) The year, make, model, color, VIN, or serial number of the cart. 

 
(c) The Town Administrator or his/her designee may issue a registration permit for the use of a 

cart on Town streets when (1) an applicant submits the completed written application, (2) the 
police department approves the cart after conducting an inspection of the cart to verify 
compliance with the requirements of this article, and (3) the Town Administrator or his/her 
designee concludes that use of the cart will not interfere with public safety and will provide 
the operator and potential passengers with a safe and convenient means of travel for a specified 
purpose. 
 

(d) If a registration permit application is approved by the Town Administrator or his/her designee, 
the permit fee identified on the master fee schedule must be submitted prior to the registration 
decal being issued. 
 

(e) The registration permit decal shall be affixed on the left side of the cart; it may not be damaged, 
altered, obstructed, or otherwise made illegible and may only be placed upon the cart for which 
it was issued. 
 

(f) A permit issued to a cart shall become invalid if the cart is altered in a manner that fails to 
comply with any requirement of this Ordinance. 
 

(g) Lost or stolen Permit/Decals are the responsibility of the Owner. If no record can be found of 
a previous application or the receipt of a Permit/Decal, the Town may direct the applicant to 
reapply, and also resubmit any and all fees necessary before a replacement Permit/Decal is 
issued. 
 

(h) A permit may be revoked at any time by the Town, or its designee(s), if there is any evidence 
that the permit holder cannot safely operate a cart on any authorized public streets, parking 
areas and traffic ways of the Town in compliance with this Ordinance. 
 



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  Page 7 

(i) Failure to comply with any of the requirements or regulations described herein constitutes 
evidence that the permit holder cannot safely operate a motorized cart on the street within the 
Town of Hickory Creek. 
 

(j) A permit issued under this section shall expire on December 31 of the calendar year following 
its issuance. 

 
Section 6:  Liability 
 
Nothing in this Article shall be construed as an assumption of liability by the Town of Hickory 
Creek for any injuries (including death) to persons, pets or property which may result from the 
operation of a cart by an authorized driver; and 
 
Section 7:  Public Safety Personnel 
 
Public Safety Personnel may operate a cart on any public street, parking area and traffic way 
without any further restrictions when the cart is used in the performance of his/her duties or on 
official business of the Town or on Town-owned property and Town leased property , including 
but not limited to, a parade, a festival or other special events. 
 
Section 8: Criminal Offense 
 
Any person, firm, entity or corporation who violates any provision of this Ordinance, as it exists 
or may be amended, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction thereof, shall 
be fined a sum not exceeding Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00). Each continuing day 's violation 
under this Ordinance shall constitute a separate offense. The penal provisions imposed under this 
Ordinance shall not preclude the Town of Hickory Creek from filing suit to enjoin the violation. 
Hickory Creek retains all legal rights and remedies available to it pursuant to local, state, and 
federal law. 
 
Section 9: Reciprocity 
 
A resident of the Town of Shady Shores, the City of Lake Dallas, or the City of Corinth who has 
received from the person’s city of residence a permit to operate a cart on a public street within the 
city in which the person resides may operate a cart on the public streets within the City in 
accordance with the provisions of this Article without having first obtained a Town of Hickory 
Creek permit if: 
  
 (a) The city issuing the permit has adopted an ordinance regulating the equipping of a 

cart being operated on a public street, and 
 (b) The municipality where the person resides has adopted an ordinance exempting a 

resident of the Town of Hickory Creek who has received a permit pursuant to this Article 
from any requirement to obtain a permit to operate a cart on the public streets within such 
other municipality to the same extent as provided in this Section." 

 
3.02 All other articles, chapters, sections, subsections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases 

and words are not amended but are hereby ratified and affirmed. 



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  Page 8 

 
SECTION 4 

CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE 
 

 This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances and shall not repeal any of the 
provisions of such Ordinances except for those instances where there are direct conflicts with the 
provisions of this Ordinance.  Ordinances, or parts thereof, in force at the time this Ordinance shall 
take effect and that are inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent that they 
are inconsistent with this Ordinance.  Provided however, that any complaint, action, claim or 
lawsuit which has been initiated or has arisen under or pursuant to such other Ordinances on the 
date of adoption of this Ordinance shall continue to be governed by the provisions of such 
Ordinance and for that purpose the Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 5 

SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 
 All rights and remedies of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas are expressly saved as to any 
all violations of the provisions the Town’s Code of Ordinances or of any other ordinance affecting 
subdivision regulations, which have secured at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; 
and, as to such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether 
pending in court or not, under such ordinances same shall not be affected by this Ordinance buy 
may be prosecuted until final disposition by the court. 
 

SECTION 6 
SEVERABILITY 

 
 The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  However, in the event this Ordinance or 
any procedure provided in this Ordinance becomes unlawful, or is declared or determined by a 
judicial, administrative or legislative authority exercising its jurisdiction to be excessive, 
unenforceable, void, illegal or otherwise inapplicable, in while in part, the remaining and lawful 
provisions shall be of full force and effect and the Town shall promptly promulgate new revised 
provisions in compliance with the authority’s decision or enactment. 
 

SECTION 7 
ENGROSSMENT AND ENROLLMENT 

 
 The Town Secretary is hereby directed to engross and enroll this Ordinance by copying the 
exact Caption and Effective Date clause in the minutes of the Town Council and by filing this 
Ordinance in the Ordinance records of the Town. 
 

 
SECTION 8 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
 This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its date of passage in accordance 
with law. 
 



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  Page 9 

  
AND IT IS SO ORDAINED 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, 
this 27th day January, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
      
Lynn C. Clark, Mayor 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Kristi Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
      
Dorwin L. Sargent, III, Town Attorney 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

8. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending 
the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, Chapter 3: Building 
Regulations, Article 3.11: Solar Panel Standards. 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  PAGE 1 
 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-_____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HICKORY 
CREEK, TEXAS AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE TOWN 
OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS, CHAPTER 3: BUILDING REGULATIONS,  
ARTICLE 3.11: SOLAR PANEL STANDARDS; PROVIDING FOR 
INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; PROVIDING FOR FINDINGS; 
PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE CODE OF ORDINANCES; 
PROVIDING A CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS; PROVIDING A 
PUBLICATION CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR ENGROSSMENT AND 
ENROLLMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
  

 WHEREAS, the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, is a Type A General Law Municipality 
located in Denton County, Texas, created in accordance with provisions of the Texas Local 
Government Code and operating pursuant to the enabling legislation of the State of Texas; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas is a general law municipality empowered 
under the Texas Local Government Code, Section 51.012, to adopt an ordinance necessary for the 
government, interest, welfare, or good order of the Town; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council does hereby find and determine that the adoption of this 
Ordinance is in the best interest of the Town and is necessary for the government, interest, welfare, 
and good order of the Town as well as the public health, safety, morals and general welfare of the 
Town. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS: 

 
SECTION 1 

INCORPORATION CLAUSE 
 

That all of the above premises are true and correct and are hereby incorporated in the body 
of this Ordinance as if fully set forth herein. 
 

SECTION 2 
FINDINGS 

 
 After due deliberations the Town Council has concluded that the adoption of this Ordinance 
is in the best interest of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, and of the public health, safety and 
welfare. 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  PAGE 2 
 

SECTION 3 
AMENDMENTS 

 
3.01 That the Code of Ordinances, Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, Chapter 3: Building 

Regulations, Article 3.11: Solar Panel Standards, Section 3.11.003(1) Definitions, is hereby 
amended to read as follows: 

 
"(1) Definitions 
 

a. Solar Panel System: means a device or several devices that exceed four square 
feet of photovoltaic area and converts light into electricity, the materials and 
work necessary to install the same, and the materials and work necessary to 
deliver or store produced electricity." 

 
3.02 All other articles, chapters, sections, subsections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases 

and words, are not amended but are hereby ratified and affirmed. 
 

SECTION 4 
CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE 

 
This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances and shall not repeal any of the 

provisions of such Ordinances except for those instances where there are direct conflicts with the 
provisions of this Ordinance.  Ordinances, or parts thereof, in force at the time this Ordinance shall 
take effect and that are inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent that they 
are inconsistent with this Ordinance.  Provided however, that any complaint, action, claim or 
lawsuit which has been initiated or has arisen under or pursuant to such other Ordinances on the 
date of adoption of this Ordinance shall continue to be governed by the provisions of such 
Ordinance and for that purpose the Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 5 

SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 
 

If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or work in this Ordinance, or 
application thereof to any person or circumstance, is held invalid or unconstitutional by a Court of 
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the 
Ordinance, and the Town Council hereby declares it would have passed such remaining portions 
of the Ordinance despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
SECTION 6 

SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 

All rights and remedies of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, are expressly saved as to 
any and all violations of the provisions of any other Ordinances of the Town affecting building, 
mechanical, plumbing, electrical and housing codes, which have secured at the time of the effective 
date of this Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both civil and 
criminal, whether pending in court or not, under such Ordinances same shall not be affected by 
this Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final disposition by the courts. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  PAGE 3 
 

SECTION 7 
PUBLICATION CLAUSE 

 
 The Town Secretary of the Town of Hickory Creek is hereby directed to publish, the 
Caption, Penalty Clause and Effective Date of this Ordinance as required by Section 52.011 of the 
Texas Local Government Code. 
 

SECTION 8 
ENGROSSMENT AND ENROLLMENT CLAUSE 

 
The Town Secretary of the Town of Hickory Creek is hereby directed to engross and enroll 

this Ordinance by copying the exact Caption, Penalty and Effective Date in the minutes of the 
Town Council and by filing this Ordinance in the ordinance records of the Town. 
 

SECTION 9 
EFFECTIVE DATE CLAUSE 

 
That this Ordinance and the rules, regulations, provisions, requirements, orders and matters 

established and adopted hereby shall take effect and be in full force and effect from the date of 
passage and publication in the official newspaper.  

 
IT IS SO ORDAINED. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, 
this the 27th day of January, 2020. 

 
 

 
____________________________________ 
Lynn C. Clark, Mayor 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 

    
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Kristi Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Dorwin L. Sargent, III, Town Attorney 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
  
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-______  PAGE 4 
 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

9. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending 
the Town's Code of Ordinances,Chapter 3: Building Regulations, Article 3.07: Floods and 
Drainage. 

  



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-_____  PAGE 1 
 
 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
AMENDING THE TOWN’S CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 3: 
BUILDING REGULATIONS; ARTICLE 3.07 FLOODS AND DRAINAGE; 
PROVIDING FOR INCORPORATION OF PREMISES; PROVIDING FOR 
FINDINGS; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING A CUMULATIVE REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR SAVINGS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY; PROVIDING FOR A PUBLICATION 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR ENGROSSMENT AND ENROLLMENT; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Hickory Creek is a Type A General Law Municipality located in Denton 
County, Texas created in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Local Government Code 
and operating pursuant to the enabling legislation of the State of Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town has enacted certain rules and regulations pertaining to building and 
specifically to construction activity in flood zones; 
 
WHEREAS, the code enforcement officer has determined that such regulations need to be revised 
and updated in order to protect public health, safety and welfare based in part upon the issuance of 
a new Flood Insurance Rate Map; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town deems it necessary to adopt such rules for the safeguarding of public 

health, safety and welfare. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS: 

 
SECTION 1 

INCORPORATION OF PREMISES 
 

The above and foregoing premises are true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a 
part hereof for all purposes. 
 

SECTION 2 
FINDINGS 

 
After due deliberations the Town Council has concluded that the adoption of this Ordinance is in 
the best interest of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, and of the public health, safety and welfare. 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-_____  PAGE 2 
 
 

SECTION 3 
AMENDMENTS 

 
3.01 That Chapter 3: Building Regulations; Article 3.07, Floods and Drainage; Section 

3.07.037: Basis for establishing areas of special flood hazard is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
“The areas of special flood hazard identified by the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency in a scientific and engineering report entitled, “The Flood Insurance Study (FIS) 
report and Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) for Denton County, Texas and 
Incorporated Areas” effectively dated June 19, 2020; and any revisions thereto are hereby 
adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this division.” 

 
3.02 All other articles, chapters, sections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases and words of 

Chapter 3: Building Regulations, Article 3.07, Floods and Drainage are not amended but are 
hereby ratified and affirmed. 

 
SECTION 4 

CUMULATIVE REPEALER 
 
This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances and shall not repeal any of the 

provisions of such Ordinances except for those instances where there are direct conflicts with the 
provisions of this Ordinance.  Ordinances, or parts thereof, in force at the time this Ordinance shall 
take effect and that are inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent that they 
are inconsistent with this Ordinance.  Provided however, that any complaint, action, claim or 
lawsuit which has been initiated or has arisen under or pursuant to such other Ordinances on the 
date of adoption of this Ordinance shall continue to be governed by the provisions of such 
Ordinance and for that purpose the Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 5 
SAVINGS 

 
All rights and remedies of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas are expressly saved as to any 

and all violations of the provisions of the Town’s Code of Ordinances or of any other ordinance 
affecting floods and drainage, which have been secured at the time of the effective date of this 
Ordinance; and, as to such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, 
whether pending in court or not, under such ordinances same shall not be affected by this 
Ordinance but may be prosecuted until final disposition by the court. 
 

SECTION 6 
SEVERABILITY 

 
The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  However, in the event this Ordinance or 

any procedure provided in this Ordinance becomes unlawful, or is declared or determined by a 
judicial, administrative or legislative authority exercising its jurisdiction to be excessive, 
unenforceable, void, illegal or otherwise inapplicable, in whole or in part, the remaining and lawful 
provisions shall be of full force and effect and the Town shall promptly promulgate new revised 
provisions in compliance with the authority’s decision or enactment. 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-_____  PAGE 3 
 
 

SECTION 7 
PENALTY 

 
7.01 It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision of this Ordinance, and 

any person violating or failing to comply with any provision of this Ordinance shall be fined, upon 
conviction, an amount not to exceed two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) and a separate offense shall 
be deemed committed upon each day during or on which a violation occurs and continues. 

 
7.02 If the governing body of the Town of Hickory Creek determines that a violation of 

this Ordinance has occurred, the Town of Hickory Creek may bring suit in district court to enjoin 
the person, firm, partnership, corporation, or association from engaging in the prohibited activity.   

 
SECTION 8 

PUBLICATION 
 
The Town Secretary of the Town of Hickory Creed is directed to publish in the official 

newspaper of the Town, the caption, penalty clause, and effective date of this Ordinance as 
required by law and the Town Charter. 

 
SECTION 9 

ENGROSSMENT AND ENROLLMENT 
 

The Town Secretary is hereby directed to engross and enroll this Ordinance by copying the 
exact Caption and Effective Date clause in the minutes of the Town Council and by filing this 
Ordinance in the Ordinance records of the Town. 

 
SECTION 10 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective from June 19, 2020 and after its date of passage in 

accordance with law. 
 
AND IT IS SO ORDAINED. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, this the 
27th  day of January, 2020. 

 
 
 
 

 
___________________________________ 
Lynn C. Clark, Mayor 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 

 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01-_____  PAGE 4 
 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristi Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________ 
Dorwin L. Sargent, III, Town Attorney 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

10. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, hereby 
amending the Master Application and Fee Schedule. 

  



TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-0127-___ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, 
TEXAS, HEREBY AMENDING THE MASTER APPLICATION AND FEE SCHEDULE; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Hickory Creek (the “Town”), Texas is a Type A General Law 
Municipality located in Denton County, Texas, created in accordance with the provisions of the 
Texas Local Government Code and operating pursuant to enabling legislation of the State of 
Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to desires to amend the Master Application and Fee 
Schedule to add the issuance fee for motorized cart permits. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory 
Creek, Texas, that: 
 

Section 1: The Town Council finds that a $25.00 fee for the issuance of a motorized cart 
permit is reasonable and is hereby adopted. 
 
Section 2:  The City Secretary is directed to add the fee authorized by Section 1 to the 
Master Application and Fee Schedule. 

 
 Section 3. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 
     
 PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
this _______ day of January, 2020. 
     
      ______________________________ 
      Lynn C. Clark, Mayor 
      Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Kristi Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
______________________________ 
Dorwin L. Sargent, III, Town Attorney 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

11. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas authorizing the 
issuance of a water well drilling permit for 199 Country Lane, Hickory Creek, Texas. 

  



RESOLUTION 2020-0127-____  PAGE 1 
 
 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-0127-__ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF A 
WATER WELL DRILLING PERMIT FOR 199 COUNTRY LANE, 
HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, The Town of Hickory Creek (“The Town”), Texas is a Type A General Law 

municipality located in Denton County, Texas, created in accordance with the provisions of the 
Texas Local Government Code and operating pursuant to enabling legislation of the State of 
Texas;   

WHEREAS, Scott Figart. has submitted a request for a permit to drill a water well at 199 
Country Lane, legally described as Lowery Cobb Survey, Abstract No. 284, Town of Hickory 
Creek, Denton County, Texas, for the purpose of installing a water well that will provide water to 
the residents of the property. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined water service can be provided for the 

location and purpose. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1 

The foregoing recitals stated in the preamble are found to be true and correct and are 
deemed incorporated into the body of this resolution as if copied herein in their entirety. 

 
SECTION 2 

 
The request submitted by Scott Figart for a water well permit at the location of 199 Country 

Lane, Hickory Creek, Texas, is hereby granted.  
 
 
     PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, 

Texas this 27th day of January, 2020.  
 
 
               

  _______________________________ 
       Lynn C. Clark., Mayor 

  Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION 2020-0127-____  PAGE 2 
 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristi K. Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 

 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 

 
______________________________ 
Dorwin L. Sargent, III, Town Attorney 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 













 

 

January 22, 2020 
AVO 37638.200 
 
Ms. Chris Chaudoir 
Town of Hickory Creek 
1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue 
Hickory Creek, TX 75065  
 
RE:  Figart Water Well Permit  
 2st Review 
 
Dear Ms. Chaudoir: 
 
The Town of Hickory Creek received the permit for a new water well on a residential property located 
at 199 Country Lane on January 22, 2020. The property owner/permit applicant is Scott Figart.  
 

Halff reviewed the permit application for conformance with Town ordinances. The permit 
application appears to be complete and complies with the requirements set out in Section 
13.04 of the Town of Hickory Creek Code of Ordinances.  

Please continue to note the following: 

1. The property owner and well driller will be responsible for following all the rules and 
requirements set forth in Sec. 13.04 of the Hickory Creek Code of Ordinances, as well as 
applicable rules and regulations of the Lake Cities Municipal Water District (LCMUA) and the 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ).  

 
Sincerely, 
 
HALFF ASSOCIATES, INC. 

         
Lee Williams, PE 
Project Manager 
 

C: Kristi Rogers – Town Secretary 
 John Smith – Town Administrator 
 Jeffrey McSpedden – Public Works Director 
 



 

501 N Shady Shores Dr 
Lake Dallas, TX 75065 
Phone: 940.497.2999 

Fax: 940.497.2926 

January 22, 2020 
 

via email chris.chaudior@hickorycreek-tx.gov  

Town of Hickory Creek 

Attn: Chris Chaudoir, Community Development/Code Enforcement 

1075 Ronald Reagan Ave 

Hickory Creek, Texas 75225 

 

RE: Water Well Application at 199 Country Lane, Hickory Creek, Texas 

 

Ms. Chaudior: 

Lake Cities Municipal Utility Authority (LCMUA) formally recognizes and supports the application for the 

installation of a water well at 199 Country Lane, Hickory Creek, Texas with the Town of Hickory Creek 

(the Town). Upon approval by the Town, LCMUA would like a copy of any issued permits for this water 

well for our files. 

 

All construction will need to be made in accordance with LCMUA’s Development Standards to include 

inspection coordination during the construction process and submission of the log report from drilling. 

 

The Applicant should also provide information to the North Texas Groundwater Conservation District 

(the District) prior to construction per Senate Bill 2497 of the 81st Texas Legislature Session in 2009. The 

District’s website address is www.northtexasgcd.org.  

 

Should you need any further information, please contact us at 940.497.2999. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Mike Fairfield 

General Manager 

 

 

 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

12. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, 
Texas authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas and 
McCreary, Veselka, Bragg and Allen, P.C. 

  



 

RESOLUTION 2020-0127-___  PAGE 1 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-0127-___ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS, HEREBY AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF 
THE TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS, TO EXECUTE A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE TOWN OF 
HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS AND MCCREARY, VASELKA, BRAGG AND 
ALLEN, P.C.; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Hickory Creek (the “Town”), Texas is a Type A General Law 

Municipality located in Denton County, Texas, created in accordance with the provisions of the 
Texas Local Government Code and operating pursuant to enabling legislation of the State of 
Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has been presented with a proposed Memorandum of 

Understanding by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas and McCreary, Vaselka, Bragg 
and Allen, P.C. (hereinafter the "Agreement”) for collection of fines and fees in connection with 
the Texas Scofflaw Program, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated 
herein by reference; and 

  
WHEREAS, upon full review and consideration of the Agreement, and all matters 

attendant and related thereto, the Town Council is of the opinion that the terms and conditions 
thereof should be approved, and that the Mayor shall be authorized to execute them on behalf of 
the Town of Hickory Creek. 

 
            NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory 
Creek, Texas: 
     
 Section 1: That the Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, is hereby authorized 
to execute on behalf of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, the Agreement attached hereto as 
Exhibit A. 
 
 Section 2: This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

     
      PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
this 27th  day of January, 2020. 
     
 
      ______________________________ 
      Lynn C. Clark, Mayor 
      Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
 
 



 

RESOLUTION 2020-0127-___  PAGE 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristi Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Dorwin L. Sargent, III, Town Attorney 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 



Memorandum of Understanding – Scofflaw – Page 1 of 2  
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN  

THE TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS  
AND  

McCREARY, VESELKA, BRAGG AND ALLEN, P.C. 
 
 

 
I. PARTIES 

 
 THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is made and entered into by and 
between the TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS acting herein by and through its 
governing body, hereinafter styled, “TOWN” and McCREARY, VESELKA, BRAGG AND 
ALLEN, P.C., hereinafter styled “MVBA”. 

 
II. PURPOSE 

 
 To clearly identify the roles and responsibilities of each party required for MVBA to 
assist with the Town’s participation in the Scofflaw Program or Vehicle Registration Denial 
Program, as outlined in the Texas Transportation Code Sec. 702.003 (commonly known as the 
Scofflaw Program). 
 
III. SCOPE OF WORK 

 
 The Town has contracted with MVBA for the collection of delinquent municipal court 
fines and fees.  To further enhance their efforts, MVBA will assist the Town with the 
implementation of the Scofflaw Program.  This program allows a Town to submit data to the 
Technology Support Branch (TSB) of the Texas Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) relating 
to defendants who have outstanding warrants after failing to appear of failing to pay a fine on a 
traffic citation.  Once the Scofflaw code is placed on the defendant’s vehicle registration by the 
DMV a renewal of registration will not be permitted until the case is resolved. 

 
IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT: 
 
 THE TOWN AGREES TO enter into the necessary contract with the DMV.  The town 
will timely provide delinquent cases to MVBA on which warrants have been issued and provide 
the necessary updates to MVBA to allow for the removal of the appropriate registration codes. 
 
 MVBA AGREES TO conduct the Scofflaw program on behalf of the Town as part of 
the delinquent collection process.  MVBA will provide the funds necessary to post the required 
bond with DMV and pay all costs associated with the file submissions required for inquiry, 
flagging and clearances. MVBA will timely submit the appropriate files to DMV to match the 
defendant and the appropriate vehicle, to code the appropriate registration record and to clear the 
appropriate records.  MVBA will provide the Town with the information concerning the 
successful submissions to DMV.  This information will be available on the Court’s Web Access 
or in a list submitted to the Town. 
 
 



Memorandum of Understanding – Scofflaw – Page 2 of 2  

 
IV. TERM OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
 The term of this agreement begins on the date of execution by both parties below and will 
remain in force for the duration of the Contract for the Collection of Delinquent Municipal Court 
Fines and Fees executed the 16th day of November, 2004. 
 
V. SIGNATURES 
 
 The Town has authorized by order heretofore passed and duly recorded in its minutes the 
chief executive officer to execute this Memorandum of Understanding.  
 
 This Memorandum of Understanding may be executed in any number of counterparts, 
and each counterpart shall be deemed an original for all purposes.  Signed facsimiles shall be 
binding and enforceable. 

 
WITNESS the signatures of all parties hereto this, the ____ day of ______________, A.D. 2020 
 
 
TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
 
 
 
_______________________________________,  
Lynn C. Clark, Mayor 
 
 
McCREARY, VESELKA, BRAGG & ALLEN, P.C. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Harvey M. Allen 
Attorney at Law 
 
 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

13. Consider and act on Change Order No. 2 for the 2019 Sidewalk Improvements project. 

 

 

  



Owner General ContractorChange Order #2 
Date: 12/18/2019 Town of Hickory Creek GRod Construction, LLC

1075 Ronalsd Reagan Ave. 889 E. Rock Island Avenue
Hickory Creek, TX 75065 Boyd, TX 76023

Job: 190313A

01 4x2 RCB 16.000 LF 750.00 12,000.00$      
02 Concrete Headwall 1.000 EA 15,500.00 15,500.00$      
03 5' Concrete Sidewalk 110.000 SY 49.00 5,390.00$        
04 Pedestrian Rail (Type F) 34.000 LF 89.00 3,026.00$        
05 5" Concrete Rip Rap 100.000 SY 55.00 5,500.00$        
06 Embankment 100.000 CY 65.00 6,500.00$        
07 Chip Existing Headwall Flowline For New RCB 1.000 LS 1,500.00 1,500.00$        
08 Concrete Collar @ RCB Connection 1.000 LS 975.00 975.00$           
09 RCP Culvert @ Sidewalk 8.000 LF 115.00 920.00$           

51,311.00$      

2019 Sidewalks Improvements

Code Description 
Change Order #2

CHANGE ORDER #2 SUBTOTAL

 Contract 
Amount 

Owner Contract 
Quantities Unit  Unit Price 

$       45,921.00

Kristi.Rogers
Cross-Out

Kristi.Rogers
Cross-Out



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

14. Presentation of the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Audit from Carl Deaton of Hankins, Eastup, 
Deaton, Tonn & Seay. 

  















































































































































Item Attachment Documents: 

 

15. Presentation regarding the United States Census 2020 from Tenishea Turner. 

  



2020 Census: What You Should Know and Do Now 
Tenishea Turner, Partnership Specialist

Tenishea.turner@2020census.gov
972‐946‐3793

Dallas Regional Census Center/Field Division/Denver Region



Why We Do a Census?

Article 1, Section 2 of the US 
Constitution

The actual enumeration shall be 
made within three years after the 
first meeting of the Congress of 
the United States, and within 
every subsequent term of ten 
years, in such manner as they 
shall by law direct. 



https://www.census.gov/library/video/census_apportionment_machine.html



Distribution of Resources

Distribution of more than $675 billion 
annually in federal funds
Redistricting of state legislative districts
Forecasting of future transportation needs 
Determining areas eligible for housing 
assistance and rehabilitation loans
Designing facilities for people with 
disabilities, the elderly and children

4



Counting For Dollars in Texas
• Texas received over $59 billion in 2016 based on Decennial Census data.

• Counting for Dollars link:

• https://gwipp.gwu.edu/counting‐dollars‐role‐decennial‐census‐geographic‐distribution‐federal‐funds

5



The Census is Confidential and Required by Law

The Census Bureau is required to keep information 
confidential. All responses provided on the 2020 Census 
questionnaire or to a Census Bureau employee are 
confidential and protected under Title 13 of the U.S. Code
We will never share a respondents personal information 
with other government agencies.
Census results reported in statistical format only
Records are confidential for 72 years by law (Title 44, U.S. 
Code).
All Census Bureau employees swear a lifetime oath to 
protect respondent information.
Penalty for wrongful disclosure is up to 5 years 
imprisonment and/or a fine of $250,000 or both.

6



• Internet
• Phone
• Paper Form
• In‐person interview

7

New Ability to Self 
Respond

Starting March 23, 2020



Short Questionnaire

Name

Age and Date of Birth

Sex

Race and Origin

Own or Rent Home

Relationship

Phone Number

Data protected by Title 13 Confidentiality



Key Data Collection Dates
• January‐Feb 2019

• Aug – Oct 2019

• Jan‐Oct‐2019

• Early 2020

• March 23, 2020

• April 1st, 2020

• May 2020

• July 31st, 2020

• December 31, 2020

Early Area Census Offices Open 

Address Canvassing – select areas

Area Census Offices Open 

Group Quarters Start

Self Response Starts

CENSUS DAY

Non‐Response Follow‐Up Starts

Last Day to Collect Data

Counts Delivered to President

9



Response Outreach Area Mapper (ROAM)

10



Denton County

Response Outreach Area Mapper (ROAM)

https://www.census.gov/roam



12



O
n
l
y 

Census



Census

How You Can Help

• Partner with the Census
• Post Job Recruitment
• Encourage Participation
• Highlight Census in 
Materials
• Distribute Information

• Provide Spaces
• Appoint a Liaison
• Target Hard to Count 
Populations
• Host Census Events
• Create Your Own Strategies



CENSUS JOBS NOW LIVE!

15

2020census.gov/jobs
Text the word "jobs2020" to 
313131 to get recruiting ads!



Tenishea Turner
Tenishea.turner@2020census.gov

972‐946‐3793



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

16. Presentation from Dunaway Associates regarding a Comprehensive Plan Update. 

 

  



With National Service 
Research & Urbex Solutions



Project Team

Barry Hudson, AICP

Planning Manager

Philip Neeley
Park Planning

Jenifer Reiner, AICP

Project Manager

Elizabeth McIlrath
Park Planning

Tal Jackson
Principal-In-Charge 

and QA/AC

Felix Landry, AICP

Fiscal Analysis
Urbex Solutions

Chance LeBlanc, AICP

Planner

Andrea Thomas
Community Survey 

National Service Research



With National Service 
Research & Urbex Solutions



EXPERIENCE



HICKORY CREEK
Parks, Recreation 
and Open Space 

Master Plan

• Priority Criteria 

Established

• Weighted Ranking 

Matrix

- Citizen Survey

- Steering Committee

- Park Board

- Town Staff

- Dunaway 



HICKORY CREEK

Action Plan
• Strategic 

Recommendations

• Mapping / Exhibits

Implementation 

Plan
• Expenditure Plan

• Funding 

Recommendations

• Implementation 

Timeline



JUSTIN

Consultant City Planner

• Over 30 years consultant 

planner

• Review all Development 

Proposals (zoning, plats, 

etc.)

• Update Development 

Regulations, including Sign 

Ordinance

• Create Comprehensive Plan

• Parks & Open Space Plan

• Maintain Official Zoning 

Map

• Establish Impact Fees
Future Land-Use Plan Official Zoning Map



Create Town Center/Corridor

THE AVENUE
THE CIVIC 

CORE
THE DISTRICT

















Lake Worth

Comprehensive Plan

Community Engagement

Advisory committee

Community survey

Town Hall meeting

Existing Conditions

Demographic Data

Existing Land Use

NAS Fort Worth JRB APZ

Future Land Use

I-820/SH 199 Interchange

Mixed Use PD District

Community Facilities 

District



Lake Worth
SF 7.5 - SINGLE FAMILY 7.5

Site Development

Lot Density 6 dwelling units/acre

Lot Coverage           60 percent

Lot Dimensions 

Lot size (min) 7,500 square feet

Lot width (min) 60 feet

Lot depth (min) 100 feet

Building Placement 

Minimum Setbacks

Front Yard 25 feet

Side Yard  

(Interior)

5 feet

Side Yard 

(Corner)

20 feet

Rear Yard 25 feet

Building Standards

Floor area (min) 1,500 square feet

Height (max) 35 ft, 2 stories max. 

Roof pitch (min) 6:12

Masonry 75 percent all sides

DEVELOPMENT 

REGULATIONS

Implementation

Comprehensive Plan



CROWLEY

Comprehensive Plan:
Future Land Use Plan

• Based on 
Community 
Engagement

• Range of Residential 
Types

• Coordinated with 
new Parks and Trails 
Master Plan

• Strengthen 
Community Identity

• Focus on Downtown 
District



CROWLEY

Comprehensive Plan:
Fiscal Analysis

Downtown Crowley

• Based on typical 
development 
patterns

• Calibrated to 
reflect conditions in 
Crowley

• Illustrates impact of 
a fully developed 
downtown district



PROJECT UNDERSTANDING



Regional Context

• NCTCOG

• DCTA (A-Train)

• Corps of Engineers

• Lake Dallas ISD

• City of Corinth

• City of Lake Dallas

• Dallas/Fort Worth Airport

• Lake Cities Chamber of Commerce



Community Character



Goals from 2008 Comprehensive Plan

Population 
Growth

Planning & 
Zoning

Housing & 
Neighborhoods

Economic 
Development

Mixed Use 
Development

Municipal & 
Institutional Parks & Trails

Natural 
Preservation

Achieve Home 

Rule status

Promote mixed-

use development

Promote “Missing 

Middle” housing 

types

Capitalize on 

Lake Lewisville

High-quality 

mixed-use 

development

Build new animal 

shelter

Purchase land for 

large facility

Preserve rural 

quality

Analyze 

commercial uses/ 

zoning districts

Preserve large lots Expand 

commercial 

development

Build a public 

anchor site

Provide facilities 

for town 

services/offices

Require park 

dedication

Recategorize 

Industrial Zoning 

Districts

Promote high 

quality housing 

Enhanced 

commercial 

corridors

Focus on I-35 and 

FM 2181/Teasley 

/Swisher Roads

Coordinate with 

Corps

Increase property 

values

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8



Goals from 2008 Comprehensive Plan

Population 
Growth

Planning & 
Zoning

Housing & 
Neighborhoods

Economic 
Development

Mixed Use 
Development

Municipal & 
Institutional Parks & Trails

Natural 
Preservation

Achieve Home 

Rule status

PROMOTE 

MIXED-USE 

DEVELOPMENT

Promote “Missing 

Middle” housing 

types

Capitalize on 

Lake Lewisville

HIGH-QUALITY 

MIXED-USE 

DEVELOPMENT

Build new animal 

shelter

Purchase land for 

large facility

Preserve rural 

quality

Analyze 

commercial uses/ 

zoning districts

Preserve large lots Expand 

commercial 

development

Build a public 

anchor site

Provide facilities 

for town 

services/offices

Require park 

dedication

Recategorize 

Industrial Zoning 

Districts

Promote high 

quality housing 

Enhanced 

commercial 

corridors

Coordinate with 

Corps

Increase property 

values

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8



Goals from 2008 Comprehensive Plan

Population 
Growth

Planning & 
Zoning

Housing & 
Neighborhoods

Economic 
Development

Mixed Use 
Development

Municipal & 
Institutional Parks & Trails

Natural 
Preservation

Achieve Home 

Rule status

Promote mixed-

use development

Promote “Missing 

Middle” housing 

types

Capitalize on 

Lake Lewisville

Promote mixed-

use development

Build new animal 

shelter

Purchase land for 

large facility

Preserve rural 

quality

Analyze 

commercial uses/ 

zoning districts

Preserve large lots Expand 

commercial 

development

Build a public 

anchor site

Provide facilities 

for town 

services/offices

Require park 

dedication

Recategorize 

Industrial Zoning 

Districts

PROMOTE      

HIGH-QUALITY 

HOUSING 

Enhanced 

commercial 

corridors

Promote high 

quality mixed-use 

development 

Coordinate with 

Corps

Increase property 

values

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8



Goals from 2008 Comprehensive Plan

Population 
Growth

Planning & 
Zoning

Housing & 
Neighborhoods

Economic 
Development

Mixed Use 
Development

Municipal & 
Institutional Parks & Trails

Natural 
Preservation

Achieve Home 

Rule status

Promote mixed-

use development

PROMOTE DIVERSE 

HOUSING TYPES

Capitalize on 

Lake Lewisville

Promote mixed-

use development

Build new animal 

shelter

Purchase land for 

large facility

Preserve rural 

quality

Analyze 

commercial uses/ 

zoning districts

Preserve large lots Expand 

commercial 

development

Build a public 

anchor site

Provide facilities 

for town 

services/offices

Require park 

dedication

Recategorize 

Industrial Zoning 

Districts

Promote high 

quality housing 

Enhanced 

commercial 

corridors

Promote high 

quality mixed-use 

development 

Coordinate with 

Corps

Increase property 

values

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8



Goals from 2008 Comprehensive Plan

Population 
Growth

Planning & 
Zoning

Housing & 
Neighborhoods

Economic 
Development

Mixed Use 
Development

Municipal & 
Institutional Parks & Trails

Natural 
Preservation

Achieve Home 

Rule status

Promote mixed-

use development

Promote “Missing 

Middle” housing 

types

Capitalize on 

Lake Lewisville

Promote mixed-

use development

Build new animal 

shelter

Purchase land for 

large facility

Preserve rural 

quality

Analyze 

commercial uses/ 

zoning districts

Preserve large lots Expand 

commercial 

development

Build a public 

anchor site

Provide facilities 

for town 

services/offices

Require park 

dedication

Recategorize 

Industrial Zoning 

Districts

Promote high 

quality housing 

ENHANCED 

COMMERCIAL 

CORRIDORS

Promote high 

quality mixed-use 

development 

Coordinate with 

Corps

Increase property 

values

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8



• Regional population growth

• Retail growth brought by DCTA light rail

• Planned and programmed City Parks

• Commercial development:

• Expanded with FM 2181/Swisher/Teasley Dr. 

and I-35E expansions

• Maintained low property taxes

Trends since 2008

https://images.app.goo.gl/bX1GL25tKRRoetvi9



COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING 
APPROACH



2040
Hickory Creek

• EXISTING CONDITIONS

• COMMUNITY INPUT

• FISCAL ANALYSIS

Community 
Input

Fiscal 
Analysis

Existing 
Conditions

VISION

MAJOR COMPONENTS



2040
Hickory Creek

EXISTING CONDITIONS

• Local History

• Community Character

• Regional Context

• Demographic Trends

• Development Patterns

• Zoning Analysis

• Transportation/Mobility

• Environmental Context



2040
Hickory Creek

FISCAL ANALYSIS

Analysis of current Town 

budget

Revenue by land use

Mixed use development 

Sustainable economy



2040
Hickory Creek

COMMUNITY INPUT

Advisory Committee

Community Survey

Social Pinpoint

Town Website



Citizen Survey

Advisory Committee

Visioning Session

Town Hall Meetings



Comprehensive Plan Update

• Establish Advisory Committee

• Data Collection & Base Map

– Demographic Trends

– Zoning and Land Use Analysis

– Transportation and Mobility Issues

• Fiscal Analysis (Dunaway + Urbex)

– Appraisal District data

– Regional Development patterns

• Community Visioning / Charrette

• Online Survey                        

(Dunaway + National Service Research)

• Update Advisory Committee

Phase 1
Data Collection

Phase 2
Community Engagement

✓ City Website

✓ Social Media

✓ Email Links
o to Citizens
o HOAs

✓ Notices in Water Bills

✓ Mailed Postcard w/ 

Link to Online Survey

✓ Other

Comprehensive 

Planning 

Process



Comprehensive Plan Update

• Establish Community Priorities

• Preliminary Comprehensive 

Plan

– Future Land Use Plan

– Master Thoroughfare Plan

– Mapping / Exhibits

• Prelimliminary Implementation

– Goal

– Action

– Time Frame

Phase 3
Plan Preparation 

Comprehensive 

Planning 

Process



Comprehensive Plan Update

• Update Advisory Committee

• Public Approval Process

– Town Hall 

– Planning and Zoning Board

– Town Council

• Adoption

• Delivery of Final Documents

Phase 4
Adoption & 

Implementation

Comprehensive 

Planning 

Process



With National Service 
Research & Urbex Solutions

TEXT to be 
added

Dunaway Experience
• Capitalize on natural assets and regional context

• Coordinate with Parks and Recreation Master Plan
• Build on sense of place and community identity

Hickory Creek Team

• Dunaway Associates: multi-disciplinary

• Urbex Solutions
o Successful partnership with previous planning efforts

o Fiscal analysis is data to support land use decisions

• National Service Research
o Proven community engagement in Hickory Creek
o Opportunity to build on recent citizen input 

Vision to Reality
• Creative partnerships
• Funding opportunities

• Sustainable development pattern





With National Service 
Research & Urbex Solutions

TEXT to be 
added

Dunaway Experience
• Capitalize on natural assets and regional context

• Coordinate with Parks and Recreation Master Plan
• Build on sense of place and community identity

Hickory Creek Team

• Dunaway Associates: multi-disciplinary

• Urbex Solutions
o Successful partnership with previous planning efforts

o Fiscal analysis is data to support land use decisions

• National Service Research
o Proven community engagement in Hickory Creek
o Opportunity to build on recent citizen input 

Vision to Reality
• Creative partnerships
• Funding opportunities

• Sustainable development pattern



With National Service 
Research & Urbex Solutions



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

17. Presentation regarding the Lake Cities Fire Department from Chief Michael Ross. 

  



Fire Services
Michael Ross, Fire Chief

The Fire Department is a recognized leader in the development and delivery of
professional and innovative emergency and life-safety services. We’ll be there – Ready to
respond, compassionate in our care, and safe in our work.





Center for Public Safety Management. LLC

• In 2014, as part of a restructuring at ICMA, the Center for Public Safety 
Management (CPSM) was spun out as a separate company. It is now the exclusive 
provider of public safety technical assistance for ICMA. 

• Workload and deployment analysis using unique methodology and subject 
matter experts to examine department organizational structure and culture, 
identify workload and staffing needs, and align department operations with 
industry best practices. 

• Conducted more than 315 studies in 42 states and provinces and 224 
communities ranging in population from 8,000 (Boone, Iowa) to 800,000 
(Indianapolis, Ind.). 



Key Factors

• Fire department response times (using data from the City’s computer-aided 
dispatch system and the LCFD records management systems).

• Deployment, staffing, and overtime.

• Agency interaction with neighboring mutual aid and joint response partners.

• Organizational structure and managerial oversight.

• Fire and EMS workloads, including unit response activities.

• LCFD support functions (training, fire prevention/code enforcement, and 911 
dispatch).

• Essential facilities, equipment, and resources.

• An evaluation of the capacity of the organization to best position itself in meeting 
anticipated demand.



Overview of Process

• Retained by the City of Corinth to evaluate the Lake Cities Fire Department and 
conduct an Operational and Administrative Analysis for its fire department. 

• Analysis included a thorough review of the organization structure, training, 
performance measures, prevention activities, and interactions with mutual aid 
and regional partners. 

• During the study, CPSM analyzed performance data provided by the Lake Cities 
Fire Department (LCFD) and examined firsthand the department’s operations. 

• The provided information was supplemented with information collected during 
an on-site visit to observe the performance of the department and to compare 
that performance to national benchmarks.



Overview of Findings

• The Lake Cities Fire Department is a highly skilled and progressive organization that is making 
exceptional progress in dealing with a very significant and growing workload. 

• The personnel with whom CPSM interacted are truly interested in serving the Cities of Corinth, 
Hickory Creek, Lake Dallas and Shady Shores to the best of their abilities and demonstrated a 
unified goal of achieving excellence in service delivery. 

• The multi-city contractual relationship was clearly providing for the most efficient, most effective, 
and most affordable service delivery system to all residents. 

• The department is well-respected in the community and by City leadership. 

• The LCFD is an exemplary department whose challenge will be sustainability.

• Extraordinary efforts have been made to reconfigure the operations of the department that have 
resulted in reduced overtime, improved service, and management by data driven decisions. 



1 Consider staffing three command positions (Battalion Chiefs) – one per 
shift to alleviate demand on administration

2
The LCFD should institute an internet-based video conferencing system 
to facilitate regular meeting forums (daily/weekly/monthly), to discuss 
departmental initiatives and new directives 

Expand “Excellent” training program to include professional 

development programs

The LCFD should fill its vacant command position. (Filled)

Prior to any anticipated, large public event, the fire and police 
departments should identify a common radio communications channel to 
be utilized for interoperability during the event

3

4

5

Department Recommendations
“CPSM looked for areas that could be viewed as needing improvement and found few that met such a need.”



6 Conduct a formal fire risk analysis for each of the four member 
communities, taking into account the varying demographic make-ups

7 Develop a written internal risk management program, including 
implementing a wellness program with a baseline physical screening 

Hazardous material incidents: maintaining control on incidents 
and continue efforts to handle smaller incidents with contracts in place. 
Larger incidents handled through a contractual arrangement 

Consider CPSE fire accreditation 

LCFD should work with the medical director and dispatch to reduce the 
overall need to run with lights and siren to both EMS and fire calls 

8

9

10

Department Recommendations Cont.

11

LCFD and its member cities should adopt the Community Risk Reduction 
philosophy 



Lake Cities Fire District Service Map

2

3

1

Fire House No. 1
275 Main Street, Lake Dallas

Fire House No. 3
3750 Clif Oaks, Corinth

Fire House No. 2
2700 W. Shady Shores, Corinth

Fire House No. 3
Operational on 
February 18th









Action Plans

Completed

• Updated HazMat companies

• Evaluated radio Channels and found 32+ shared channels for better 
communication and interoperability between FD and PD

• Reduced Reaction times from 1.8 to 1.3

Planned

• Create committee to develop an all cities Community Risk Reduction 
Implementation Program

• Additional command and succession planning for members

• Continue transparency and relationship building from the Chief down to all 
Towns/Cities



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

18. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas approving the 
Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 2 2020 Amended Service And 
Assessment Plan, including proposed reallocation of the assessment roll; directing the 
filing of the proposed reallocation of the assessment roll with the town secretary; calling a 
public hearing to consider an ordinance reallocating assessments on the public 
improvement district. 

  



 

 
RESOLUTION 2020-0127-____ 
  PAGE 1 

 
 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-0127-___ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
APPROVING THE HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT NO. 2 2020 AMENDED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN, 
INCLUDING PROPOSED REALLOCATION OF THE ASSESSMENT 
ROLL; DIRECTING THE FILING OF THE PROPOSED 
REALLOCATION OF THE ASSESSMENT ROLL WITH THE TOWN 
SECRETARY; CALLING A PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER AN 
ORDINANCE REALLOCATING ASSESSMENTS ON THE PUBLIC 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT; AND RESOLVING OTHER MATTERS 
INCIDENT AND RELATED THERETO 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Public Improvement District Assessment Act, Texas Local Government 
Code, Chapter 372, as amended (the "Act") authorizes the governing body (the "Town Council") 
of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas (the "Town"), to create a public improvement district 
within the Town; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council has created the Hickory Creek Public Improvement 
District No. 2 (the "District"); and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council and the Town staff have been presented a "Hickory 
Creek Public Improvement District No. 2 - 2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment 
Plan" (the "Amended SAP") including the proposed reallocation of the Improvement Area #1 
Assessment Roll and the Improvement Area #2 Assessment Roll attached thereto (collectively, 
the "Reallocated Assessment Roll"), a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A and is 
incorporated herein for all purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Amended SAP sets forth the change in previously Non-Benefitted 
Property (as defined in the Amended SAP) which requires a reallocation of the assessments that 
have been levied against each parcel of land in the District; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires that that the Reallocated Assessment Roll be filed with the 
Town Secretary of the Town (the "Town Secretary") and be subject to public inspection; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires that a public hearing (the "Hearing") be held to consider 
reallocation of assessments and requires the Town Council to hear and pass on any objections to 
the proposed reallocation of assessments at, or on the adjournment of, the Hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the Act requires that notice of the Hearing be mailed to property owners 
liable for the reallocated assessments and published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
Town before the 10th day before the date of the Hearing; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS AS FOLLOWS: 



 

 
RESOLUTION 2020-0127-____ 
  PAGE 2 

 
 

SECTION 1.  The recitals set forth above in this Resolution are true and correct and are 
hereby adopted as findings of the Town Council and are incorporated into the body of this 
Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 

SECTION 2.  The Town Council hereby accepts the Amended SAP for the District, 
including the Reallocated Assessment Roll. 

SECTION 3. The Town Council hereby authorizes and directs the filing of the 
Reallocated Assessment Roll with the Town Secretary and the same shall be available for public 
inspection. 

SECTION 4.  The Town Council hereby calls a public hearing (the Hearing as defined 
above) to be held on February 24 at 6:00 p.m. in the regular meeting place of the Town Council 
in the Council Chamber in the Town Hall located at 1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue, Hickory 
Creek, Texas 75065, at which the Town Council shall, among other actions, hear and pass on any 
objections to the proposed reallocation of assessments; and, upon the adjournment of the 
Hearing, the Town Council may consider an ordinance reallocating the assessments as described 
in the Amended SAP. 

SECTION 5.  The Town Council hereby authorizes and directs the Town Secretary to 
publish notice of the Hearing, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit B and 
incorporated herein for all purposes, in a newspaper of general circulation in the Town. 

SECTION 6.  The Town Council hereby authorizes and directs the Town Secretary to 
mail notice of the Hearing to owners of property liable for the reallocation of the assessment, as 
required by Section 372.016(c) of the Act. 

SECTION 7.  This Resolution shall become effective from and after its date of passage in 
accordance with law. 

     PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas this 
27th  day of January, 2020. 
     
 

 
  
Lynn C. Clark, Mayor 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 

 
 
 
 
 
 
       
Kristi Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
           
 



 

 
RESOLUTION 2020-0127-____ 
  PAGE 3 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 

2020 HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN 

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           0 

 

   

 
 
 
AUSTIN, TX | KELLER, TX 

Hickory Creek Public 
Improvement District No. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN 
FEBRUARY 24, 2020 

 

  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           1 

 

   

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Table of Contents .......................................................................................................................... 1 

Introduction .................................................................................................................................. 2 

Section I: Definitions ..................................................................................................................... 4 

Section II: The District ................................................................................................................. 10 

Section III: Authorized Improvements and PID Formation and Bond Issuance Costs .................. 10 

Section IV: Service Plan ............................................................................................................... 13 

Section V: Assessment Plan ......................................................................................................... 13 

Section VI: Terms of the Assessments ......................................................................................... 18 

Section VII: Assessment Roll ....................................................................................................... 24 

Section VIII: Additional Provisions ............................................................................................... 24 

Exhibits ........................................................................................................................................ 26 

Exhibit A-1 – District Legal Description ....................................................................................... 27 

Exhibit A-2 – Improvement Area #1 Legal Description ................................................................ 34 

Exhibit A-3 – Improvement Area #2 Legal Description ................................................................ 44 

Exhibit A-4 – Map of Improvement Area #1 and Improvement Area #2 ..................................... 48 

Exhibit A-5 – Changed Property Legal Description and Map ....................................................... 49 

Exhibit B – Change in Assessments ............................................................................................. 53 

Exhibit C – Authorized Improvements ......................................................................................... 54 

Exhibit D – Service Plan ............................................................................................................... 55 

Exhibit E – Sources and Uses of Funds ........................................................................................ 56 

Exhibit F-1 – Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll .................................................................. 57 

Exhibit F-2 – Improvement Area #1 Annual Installments ............................................................ 60 

Exhibit G-1 –Improvement Area #2 Assessment Roll .................................................................. 61 

Exhibit G-2 –Improvement Area #2 Annual Installments ............................................................ 62 

Exhibit H – Form of Notice of PID Assessment Termination ........................................................ 63 

Exhibit I – Homebuyer Disclosure ............................................................................................... 66 

Exhibit J – Debt Service Schedule for Bonds ................................................................................ 69 

Exhibit K – Landowner Consent Forms ........................................................................................ 70 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           2 

 

   

INTRODUCTION 

Capitalized terms used in this 2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan shall 
have the meanings given to them in Section I unless otherwise defined in this 2020 Amended and 
Restated Service and Assessment Plan or unless the context in which a term is used clearly 
requires a different meaning.  Unless otherwise defined, a reference to a “Section” or an “Exhibit” 
shall be a reference to a Section of this 2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan 
or an Exhibit attached to and made a part of this 2020 Amended and Restated Service and 
Assessment Plan for all purposes. 

On September 18, 2012, the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas passed and 
approved Resolution No. 1012-0918-1 authorizing the establishment of Hickory Creek Public 
Improvement District No. 2 in accordance with Chapter 372, Texas Local Government Code, as 
amended (the “Act”), which authorization was effective upon publication as required by the Act. 
The purpose of the District is to finance the Actual Costs of Authorized Improvements that confer 
a special benefit on approximately 111.424 acres located within the Town, as described and 
depicted by the District replat on Exhibit A-1. 

On October 16, 2012 the Town approved the Service and Assessment Plan and levied 
Assessments to finance the Authorized Improvements to be constructed for the benefit of the 
Assessed Property within the District by approved the Assessment Ordinance. The Service and 
Assessment Plan identified the Authorized Improvements to be provided by the District, the costs 
of the Authorized Improvements, the indebtedness to be incurred for the Authorized 
Improvements and the manner of assessing the property in the District for the costs of the 
Authorized Improvements, The Town also adopted an Assessment Roll identifying the 
Assessment on each Lot within the District, based on the method of assessment identified in the 
Service and Assessment Plan. 

The Assessment Roll for the District was not updated in 2013 or 2014.  

On September 22, 2015 the Town Council approved the 2015 Annual Service Plan Update by 
approving Resolution No. 2015-0922-2. The 2015 Annual Service Plan Update updated the 
Assessment Roll for 2015. 

On September 15, 2016 the Town Council approved the 2016 Annual Service Plan Update by 
approving Resolution No. 2016-0920-2. The 2016 Annual Service Plan Update updated the 
Assessment Roll for 2016. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           3 

 

   

On September 19, 2017 the Town Council approved the 2017 Annual Service Plan Update by 
approving Resolution No. 2017-0919-2. The 2017 Annual Service Plan Update updated the 
Assessment Roll for 2017. 

On June 19, 2018 the Town Council approved the 2018 Amended and Restated Service and 
Assessment Plan by adopting Ordinance No. 2018-06-796, which issued PID Bonds for Assessed 
Property within the District and updated the Assessment Roll for 2018. 

On June 18, 2019, the Town Council approved the 2019 Annual Service Plan Update by adopting 
Ordinance No. 2019-0618-2. The 2019 Annual Service Plan Update updated the Assessment Roll 
for 2019. 

This 2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan serves to amend the restate the 
2018 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan in its entirety for the purposes of: (1) 
reallocating the Assessment; and (2) updating the Assessment Roll. 

The Act requires that the Service Plan include an Assessment Plan that assesses the Actual Costs 
of the Authorized Improvements against the District based on the special benefits conferred on 
the District by the Authorized Improvements. The Assessment Plan is contained in Section V. 
The Act requires an Assessment Roll that states the Assessment against each Parcel determined 
by the method chosen by the Town Council. The Assessment against each Parcel must be 
sufficient to pay the share of the Actual Costs of the Authorized Improvements apportioned to 
the Parcel and cannot exceed the special benefit conferred on the Parcel by such Authorized 
Improvements. The Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll is included as Exhibit F-1, and the 
Improvement Area #2 Assessment Roll is included as Exhibit G-1. 
  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           4 

 

   

SECTION I: DEFINITIONS 

“2018 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan” means the 2018 Amended and 
Restated Service and Assessment Plan, which was approved by the Town Council on June 19, 
2018 by adopting Ordinance No. 2018-06-796. 

“2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan” means this 2020 Amended and 
Restated Service and Assessment Plan, as it may be modified and updated from time to time.   

“Act” means Texas Local Government Code Chapter 372, as amended. 

“Actual Costs” mean with respect to Authorized Improvements, the actual costs paid or incurred 
by or on behalf of the Developer of the District, (1) to plan, finance, design, acquire, construct, 
install, and dedicate such improvements to the Town; (2) to prepare plans, specifications 
(including bid packages), contracts, and as-built drawings; (3) to obtain zoning, licenses, plan 
approvals, permits, inspections, and other governmental approvals; (4) to acquire easements and 
other right-of-way; (5) for third-party professional consulting services including, but not limited 
to, engineering, surveying, geotechnical, land planning, architectural, landscaping, legal, 
accounting, and appraisals; (6) of labor, materials, equipment, fixtures, payment and 
performance bonds and other construction security, and insurance premiums; and (7) of fees 
charged by the Town or any other political subdivision or governmental authority.     

“Additional Interest” means the amount collected by application of the Additional Interest Rate. 

“Additional Interest Rate” means the 0.50% additional interest rate charged on Assessments 
pursuant to Section 372.018 of the Act. 

“Administrator” means the person or independent firm designated by the Town Council to 
perform the duties and obligations of the "Administrator" in this 2020 Amended and Restated 
Service and Assessment Plan. The Town has selected P3Works, LLC is the initial Administrator. 

“Annual Collection Costs” mean the actual or budgeted costs and expenses related to the 
creation and operation of the District, the issuance and sale of PID Bonds, and the construction, 
operation, and maintenance of the Authorized Improvements, including, but not limited to, costs 
and expenses for: (1) the Administrator; (2) legal counsel, engineers, accountants, financial 
advisors, and other consultants engaged by the Town; (3) calculating, collecting, and maintaining 
records with respect to Assessments and Annual Installments; (4) preparing and maintaining 
records with respect to Assessment Rolls and Annual Service Plan Updates; (5) issuing, paying 
and redeeming PID Bonds; (6) investing or depositing Assessments and Annual Installments; (7) 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           5 

 

   

complying with this 2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan and the Act with 
respect to the issuance and sale of PID Bonds, including continuing disclosure requirements; and 
(8) the paying agent/registrar and Trustee in connection with PID Bonds, including their 
respective legal counsel, and (9) administering the construction of the Authorized Improvements.  
Annual Collection Costs collected but not expended in any year shall be carried forward and 
applied to reduce Annual Collection Costs for subsequent years. 

“Annual Installment” means the annual installment payment on the Assessment as calculated 
by the Administrator and approved by the Town Council, that includes: (1) principal; (2) interest; 
(3) Annual Collection Costs; and (4) Additional Interest.  

“Annual Service Plan Update” means an update to this 2020 Amended and Restated Service and 
Assessment Plan prepared no less frequently than annually by the Administrator and approved 
by the Town Council. 

“Assessed Property” means any Parcel within the District against which an Assessment is levied. 

“Assessment” means an assessment levied against a Parcel imposed pursuant to an Assessment 
Ordinance and the provisions herein, as shown on an Assessment Roll, subject to reallocation 
upon the subdivision of such Parcel or reduction according to the provisions herein and in the 
Act. 

“Assessment Ordinance” means an ordinance adopted by the Town Council in accordance with 
the Act that levied Assessments within the District. 

“Assessment Plan” assesses the Actual Costs of the Authorized Improvements against the 
Assessed Property within the District based on the special benefits conferred on such property 
by the Authorized Improvements, more specifically described in Section V. 

“Assessment Roll” means any assessment roll for the Assessed Property within the District, as 
updated, modified or amended from time to time in accordance with the procedures set forth 
herein and in the Act, including updates prepared in connection with the issuance of  PID Bonds, 
or any Annual Service Plan Update. 

“Authorized Improvements” means improvements authorized by Section 372.003 of the Act, as 
described in Section III. 

“Changed Property” means Parcel 557982, Steeplechase South Additional Block A, Lot 1, which 
was originally a Non-Benefitted Property, without an assessment, but is being rezoned at the 
request of the Developer, and therefore the use changed to a benefitted property. The Changed 
Property is depicted and described on the replat on Exhibit A-5. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           6 

 

   

“County” means Denton County, Texas. 

“Delinquent Collection Costs” mean, for a Parcel, interest, penalties, and other costs and 
expenses authorized by the Act that directly or indirectly relate to the collection of delinquent 
Assessments, delinquent Annual Installments, or any other delinquent amounts due under this 
2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan, including costs and expenses to 
foreclose liens. 

“Developer” means CTMGT Tuberville, LLC, a Texas limited liability company and its successors 
and assigns. 

“District” means Hickory Creek Improvement District No. 2, containing approximately 111.424 
acres located within the Town, as more specifically described and depicted on Exhibit A-1. 

“Improvement Area #1” means the area within the District as shown on Exhibit A-2 and 
described by the legal description on Exhibit A-3. 

“Improvement Area #1 Annual Installment” means the Annual Installment of the Improvement 
Area #1 Assessment as calculated by the Administrator and approved by the Town Council that 
includes: (1) principal; (2) interest; (3) Annual Collection Costs; and (4) Additional Interest. 

“Improvement Area #1 Assessed Property” means any and all parcels within Improvement Area 
#1, against which an Improvement Area #1 Assessment is levied. 

“Improvement Area #1 Assessment” means an Assessment levied against a Parcel within 
Improvement Area #1 and imposed pursuant to the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance 
and the provisions herein, as shown on the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll, subject to 
reallocation upon the subdivision of such Parcel or reduction according to the provisions herein 
and in the Act. 

 “Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance” means Resolution No. 2012-10-699 adopted by 
the Town Council on October 16, 2012 in accordance with the Act that levied the Improvement 
Area #1 Assessments. 

 “Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll” means the Assessment Roll for the Improvement Area 
#1 Assessed Property within the District, as updated, modified or amended from time to time in 
accordance with the procedures set forth herein and in the Act, including any updates prepared 
in connection with the issuance of PID Bonds or any Annual Service Plan Updates. The 
Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll is included in this 2020 Amended and Restated Service 
and Assessment Plan as Exhibit F-1. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           7 

 

   

“Improvement Area #1 Improvements” means the Authorized Improvements which only benefit 
the Improvement Area #1 Assessed Property as described in Section III.A. 

“Improvement Area #2” means the area within the District depicted and described on the replat 
attached as Exhibit A-4. 

“Improvement Area #2 Annual Installment” means the Annual Installment of the Improvement 
Area #2 Assessment as calculated by the Administrator and approved by the Town Council that 
includes: (1) principal; (2) interest; (3) Annual Collection Costs; and (4) Additional Interest. 

“Improvement Area #2 Assessed Property” means any and all parcels within Improvement Area 
#2, against which an Improvement Area #2 Assessment is levied. 

“Improvement Area #2 Assessment” means an Assessment levied against a Parcel within 
Improvement Area #1 and imposed pursuant to the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance 
and the provisions herein, as shown on the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll, subject to 
reallocation upon the subdivision of such Parcel or reduction according to the provisions herein 
and in the Act. 

 “Improvement Area #2 Assessment Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 2018-06-796 adopted by 
the Town Council on June 19, 2018 in accordance with the Act that levied the Improvement Area 
#2 Assessments. 

 “Improvement Area #2 Assessment Roll” means the Assessment Roll for the Improvement Area 
#2 Assessed Property within the District, as updated, modified or amended from time to time in 
accordance with the procedures set forth herein and in the Act, including any updates prepared 
in connection with the issuance of PID Bonds or any Annual Service Plan Updates. The 
Improvement Area #2 Assessment Roll is included in this 2020 Amended and Restated Service 
and Assessment Plan as Exhibit G-1. 

“Improvement Area #2 Improvements” means the Authorized Improvements which only benefit 
the Improvement Area #2 Assessed Property as described in Section III.B. 

“Indenture” means an Indenture of Trust entered into in connection with the issuance of each 
series of PID Bonds, as amended from time to time, between the Town and the Trustee setting 
forth terms and conditions related to the applicable series of PID Bonds. 

“Lot” means for any portion of the District for which a final subdivision plat has been recorded in 
the official public records of the County, a tract of land described by “lot” in such recorded and 
final subdivision plat. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           8 

 

   

“Maximum Assessment” means, for each Lot other than Non-Benefitted Property, an amount 
not to exceed $31,287.88, as shown on Exhibit B, and as described further in Section VI. 

“Non-Benefitted Property” means Parcels within the boundaries of the District that receive no 
special benefit from the Authorized Improvements as determined by the Town Council which 
may include Public Property. 

“Notice of Assessment Termination” means a recorded document evidencing the termination of 
an Assessment, a form of which is attached as Exhibit H. 

“Parcel” or “Parcels” means a specific property within the District identified by either a tax map 
identification number assigned by the Denton Central Appraisal District for real property tax 
purpose, by metes and bounds description, or by lot and block number in a final subdivision plat 
recorded in the official public records of the County, or by any other means determined by the 
Town. 

“PID Bonds” means those certain “Town of Hickory Creek, Texas Special Assessment Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2018 (Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 2)” that are secured by 
Improvement Area #1 Assessments and Improvement Area #2 Assessments. 

“PID Formation and Bond Issuance Costs” means the costs associated with forming the District 
and issuing PID Bonds, including but not limited to attorney fees, financial advisory fees, 
consultant fees, appraisal fees, printing costs, publication costs, Town costs, capitalized interest, 
reserve fund requirements, 1st year’s Annual Collection Costs, underwriter’s discount, fees 
charged by the Texas Attorney General, and any other cost or expense directly associated with 
the establishment of the District and/or the issuance of PID Bonds. 

“Prepayment” means the payment of all or a portion of an Assessment before the due date 
thereof. Amounts received at the time of a Prepayment which represent a payment of principal, 
interest, or penalties on a delinquent installment of an Assessment are not to be considered a 
Prepayment, but rather are to be treated as the payment of the regularly scheduled Annual 
Installment. 

“Prepayment Costs” means interest, including Additional Interest and Annual Collection Costs to 
the date of Prepayment. 

“Public Property” means real property, whether conveyed or dedicated in fee simple, as an 
easement, license, or otherwise, to the Federal Government, to the County, to the Town, or to 
any other political subdivision, public or government agency, or public utility. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           9 

 

   

“Service and Assessment Plan” means the Service and Assessment plan adopted by Town 
Council on October 16, 2012.  

“Service Plan” covers a period of at least five years and defines the annual indebtedness and 
projected costs of the Authorized Improvements, more specifically described in Section IV. 

“Town” means the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas. 

“Town Council” means the governing body of the Town. 

 “Trustee” means the trustee or successor trustee under an Indenture. 

  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           10 

 

   

SECTION II: THE DISTRICT 

The District includes approximately 111.424 contiguous acres located within the Town, as more 
particularly described and depicted on Exhibit A-1. Development of the District is anticipated to 
include approximately 131 single-family homes, 108 of which are located within Improvement 
Area #1 and the remaining 23 are located within Improvement Area #2. Improvement Area #1 is 
depicted on the map on Exhibit A-2 and described by the legal description on Exhibit A-3. 
Improvement Area #2 is depicted and described on the replat attached as Exhibit A-4.  

SECTION III: AUTHORIZED IMPROVEMENTS AND PID FORMATION AND BOND 
ISSUANCE COSTS 

The Town, based on information provided by the Developer and its engineer and reviewed by 
the Town staff and by third-party consultants retained by the Town, has determined that the 
Authorized Improvements confer a special benefit on the Assessed Property. Authorized 
Improvements have been or will be designed and constructed in accordance with Town standards 
and specifications and are or will be owned and operated by the Town. The budget for the 
Authorized Improvements is shown on Exhibit C. 

A. Improvement Area #1 Improvements 

 Street  

Improvements including subgrade stabilization (including lime treatment and 
compaction), concrete and reinforcing steel for roadways, testing, handicapped ramps, 
and street lights.  All related earthwork, excavation, erosion control, retaining walls, 
intersections, signage, lighting and re-vegetation of all disturbed areas within the right-
of-way are included. The street improvements will provide street access to each Lot 
within Improvement Area #1.   

 Water 

Improvements including trench excavation and embedment, trench safety, PVC piping, 
manholes, service connections, testing, related earthwork, excavation, and erosion 
control all necessary appurtenances required to provide water service to all Lots within 
Improvement Area #1.   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           11 

 

   

 Sanitary Sewer  

Improvements including trench excavation and embedment, trench safety, PVC piping, 
manholes, service connections, testing, related earthwork, excavation, and erosion 
control all necessary appurtenances required to provide wastewater service to all Lots 
within Improvement Area #1.   

 Storm Drainage 

Improvements including earthen channels, swales, curb and drop inlets, RCP piping and 
boxes, headwalls, concrete flumes, rock rip rap, concrete outfalls, and testing as well as 
all related earthwork, excavation, and erosion control necessary to provide storm 
drainage for all Lots within Improvement Area #1.   

 Soft Costs 

Improvements including engineering and design, construction inspection fees, 
geotechnical testing and governmental submittal fees for the costs associated with the 
street, water, sanitary sewer and storm drainage improvements as described above. 

B. Improvement Area #2 Improvements 

 Street  

Improvements including subgrade stabilization (including lime treatment and 
compaction), concrete and reinforcing steel for roadways, testing, handicapped ramps, 
and street lights.  All related earthwork, excavation, erosion control, retaining walls, 
intersections, signage, lighting and re-vegetation of all disturbed areas within the right-
of-way are included. The street improvements will provide street access to each Lot 
within Improvement Area #2.   

 Water 

Improvements including trench excavation and embedment, trench safety, PVC piping, 
manholes, service connections, testing, related earthwork, excavation, and erosion 
control all necessary appurtenances required to provide water service to all Lots within 
Improvement Area #2.   

 Sanitary Sewer  

Improvements including trench excavation and embedment, trench safety, PVC piping, 
manholes, service connections, testing, related earthwork, excavation, and erosion 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           12 

 

   

control all necessary appurtenances required to provide wastewater service to all Lots 
within Improvement Area #2.   

 Storm Drainage 

Improvements including earthen channels, swales, curb and drop inlets, RCP piping and 
boxes, headwalls, concrete flumes, rock rip rap, concrete outfalls, and testing as well as 
all related earthwork, excavation, and erosion control necessary to provide storm 
drainage for all Lots within Improvement Area #2.   

 Soft Costs 

Improvements including engineering and design, construction inspection fees, 
geotechnical testing and governmental submittal fees for the costs associated with the 
street, water, sanitary sewer and storm drainage improvements as described above. 

C. PID Formation and Bond Issuance Costs  

 Debt Service Reserve Fund 

Equals the amount required under an applicable Indenture in connection with the 
issuance of PID Bonds. 

 Capitalized Interest 

Equals the capitalized interest payments on PID Bonds as reflected in an applicable 
Indenture. 

 Underwriter’s Discount 

Equals a percentage of the par amount of a particular series of PID Bonds plus a fee for 
underwriter’s counsel. 

 Cost of Issuance 

Includes costs of issuing PID Bonds, including but not limited to attorney fees, financial 
advisory fees, first year Annual Collection Costs, consultant fees, appraisal fees, printing 
costs, publication costs, Town costs, fees charged by the Texas Attorney General, and any 
other cost or expense directly associated with the issuance of PID Bonds. 

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           13 

 

   

SECTION IV: SERVICE PLAN 

The Act requires the Service Plan to cover a period of at least five years. The Service Plan is 
required to define the annual projected costs and indebtedness for the Authorized 
Improvements undertaken within the District during the five-year period.  The Service Plan must 
be reviewed and updated in each Annual Service Plan Update.  Exhibit D summarizes the Service 
Plan for the District. 
 
Exhibit E summarizes the sources and uses of funds required to construct the Authorized 
Improvements.  The sources and uses of funds shown on Exhibit E shall be updated in the Annual 
Service Plan Update to reflect any budget revisions and Actual Costs. 

 

SECTION V: ASSESSMENT PLAN 

The Act allows the Town Council to apportion the costs of the Authorized Improvements to the 
Assessed Property based on the special benefit received from the Authorized Improvements. The 
Act provides that such costs may be apportioned: (1) equally per front foot or square foot; (2) 
according to the value of property as determined by the Town Council, with or without regard to 
improvements constructed on the property; or (3) in any other manner approved by the Town 
that results in imposing equal shares of such costs on property similarly benefited.  The Act 
further provides that the governing body may establish by ordinance or order reasonable 
classifications and formulas for the apportionment of the cost between the municipality and the 
area to be assessed and the methods of assessing the special benefits for various classes of 
improvements. 

This section of this 2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan described the 
special benefit received by each Parcel within the District as a result of the Authorized 
Improvements and provides the basis and justification for the determination that this special 
benefit exceeds the amount of the Assessments to be levied on the Assessed Property for such 
Authorized Improvements. 

The determination by the Town Council of the assessment methodologies set forth below is the 
result of the discretionary exercise by the Town Council of its legislative authority and 
governmental powers and is conclusive and binding on the Developer and all future owners and 
developers of the Assessed Property. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           14 

 

   

A. Assessment Methodology 

The Town, acting in its legislative capacity based on information provided by the Developer and 
its engineer and reviewed by the Town staff and by third-party consultants retained by the Town, 
has determined that the Assessments shall be allocated as follows:  

1. Improvement Area #1 

The Improvement Area #1 Assessments relating to the Improvement Area #1 
Improvements shall be allocated 100% to the Improvement Area #1 Assessed Property. 
The Improvement Area #1 Assessments shall be allocated equally among all Lots located 
within Improvement Area #1 

2. Improvement Area #2 

The Improvement Area #2 Assessments relating to the Improvement Area #2 
Improvements shall be allocated 100% to the Improvement Area #2 Assessed Property. 
The Improvement Area #2 Assessments shall be allocated equally among all Lots located 
within Improvement Area #2.  

B. Reallocation of Assessment due to Changed Property 

Parcel 557982, Steeplechase South Additional Block A, Lot 1, (the “Changed Property”), depicted 
and described on the plat on Exhibit A-5, upon creation of the District, was designated as Non-
Benefitted property; therefore, such property was not assessed. This property comprises certain 
private improvements located with the District, consisting of an approximately 2,200 square foot 
pool and related facilities and equestrian stables with 14 stalls to serve homeowners in the 
District. These private improvements were to be dedicated to and accepted by the Homeowner’s 
Association (“the “HOA”); the Homeowner’s Association was to provide for the ongoing 
operation, maintenance and repair of the private improvements through the administration of a 
maintenance and operation fee and/or a property owner’s association fee to be paid by each Lot 
owner within the District. Due to the unforeseen expenses of operating an equestrian stable, 
which make the HOA fees unreasonable, the Developer now desires to (i) have a 6.72 acre portion 
of Parcel 557982 (“Changed Property”) rezoned as for commercial stables use and (ii) convey 
such portion of the Changed Property to a private party to operate the equestrian stables for 
profit. The approximately 1.33 acre portion of the Changed Property for the pool and related 
facilities are separate from the equestrian stables and will be dedicated to an accepted by the 
HOA. The City Council has determined that the Changed Property now must be assessed as it 
becomes property that would have been assessed originally but for the desire for it to remain 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           15 

 

   

Homeowner’s Association property. The benefit to the assessed property is similar to all the 
other property within the District, and therefore, the Assessment to be placed on the Changed 
Property is uniform with the other Lots within the District. In light of this, the Assessment levied 
on the District has been reallocated to include the Changed Property, resulting in a slightly lower 
Assessment for all other landowners within the District. See Exhibit B for a table showing the 
amount of the change in Assessments. 

Both the existing and future landowners of the Changed Property have provided consent to the 
imposition of an Assessment on the Changed Property as shown on the Landowner Consent 
Forms attached as Exhibit K. 

C. Assessments 

The Improvement Area #1 Assessments are shown on the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll, 
attached hereto as Exhibit F-1.  The projected Improvement Area #1 Annual Installments are 
shown on Exhibit F-2.  

The Improvement Area #2 Assessments are shown on the Improvement Area #2 Assessment Roll, 
attached hereto as Exhibit G-1.  The projected Improvement Area #2 Annual Installments are 
shown on Exhibit G-2.  

D. Findings of Special Benefit 

The Town Council, acting in its legislative capacity based on information provided by the 
Developer and its engineer and reviewed by the Town staff and by third-party consultants 
retained by the Town, has found and determined: 

 Improvement Area #1 

 The costs of the Improvement Area #1 Improvements plus the PID Formation and 
Bond Issuance Costs allocable to Improvement Area #1 equal $3,482,166 as shown 
on Exhibit C; and 

 The Improvement Area #1 Assessed Property receives special benefit from the 
Improvement Area #1 Improvements equal to or greater than the Actual Cost of 
the Improvement Area #1 Improvements; and 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           16 

 

   

 With the adoption of the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance, the sum 
of the Improvement Area #1 Assessments for all Lots within Improvement Area #1 
equaled $3,479,0841.  

 The special benefit ( ≥ $3,482,166) received by the Improvement Area #1 Assessed 
Property from the Improvement Area #1 Improvements was equal to or greater 
than the amount of the Improvement Area #1 Assessment ($3,479,084) levied on 
the Improvement Area #1 Assessed Property for the Improvement Area #1 
Improvements at the time the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance was 
approved; and 

 At the time the Town Council approved the Service and Assessment Plan, the 
Developer owned 100% of the Improvement Area #1 Assessed Property. The 
Developer acknowledged that the Improvement Area #1 Improvements confer a 
special benefit on the Improvement Area #1 Assessed Property and consented to 
the imposition of the Improvement Area #1 Assessment to pay for the Actual Costs 
associated therewith. The Developer ratified, confirmed, accepted, agreed to, and 
approved: (1) the determinations and findings by the Town Council as to the 
special benefits described herein and the Improvement Area #1 Assessment 
Ordinance; (2) the Service and Assessment Plan and the Assessment Ordinance, 
and (3) the levying of the Improvement Area #1 Assessment on the Improvement 
Area #1 Assessed Property. 

 Improvement Area #2 

 The costs of the Improvement Area #2 Improvements plus the PID Formation and 
Bond Issuance Costs allocable to Improvement Area #2 equal $855,973 as shown 
on Exhibit C; and 

 The Improvement Area #2 Assessed Property receives special benefit from the 
Improvement Area #2 Improvements equal to or greater than the Actual Cost of 
the Improvement Area #2 Improvements; and 

 
1 Assessments are allocated based on the Lot counts in the District at the time PID Bonds were issued. Improvement 
Area #1 contained 108 of the total 131 Lots, so Improvement Area #1 was allocated 82.44% (108/131 = 82.44%) of 
the Assessments. Based on new Lot counts, Improvement Area #1 is allocated 82.58% (109/132 = 82.58%) of 
Assessments, which equals approximately $3,484,696.97, $74,318.18 of which has been billed or paid off as part of 
the Annual Installments due on 1/31/2019 and 1/31/2020, leaving $3,410,378.79 of Assessments allocable to 
Improvement Area #1, as shown on Exhibit F-2. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           17 

 

   

 With the adoption of the Improvement Area #2 Assessment Ordinance, the sum 
of the Improvement Area #2 Assessments for all Lots within Improvement Area #2 
equals $740,9162. 

 The special benefit ( ≥ $855,973) received by the Improvement Area #2 Assessed 
Property from the Improvement Area #2 Improvements was equal to or greater 
than the amount of the Improvement Area #2 Assessment ($740,916) levied on 
the Improvement Area #2 Assessed Property for the Improvement Area #2 
Improvements at the time the Improvement Area #2 Assessment Ordinance was 
approved; and 

 At the time the Town Council approved the Service and Assessment Plan, the 
Developer owned 100% of the Improvement Area #2 Assessed Property. The 
Developer acknowledged that the Improvement Area #2 Improvements confer a 
special benefit on the Improvement Area #2 Assessed Property and consented to 
the imposition of the Improvement Area #2 Assessment to pay for the Actual Costs 
associated therewith. The Developer ratified, confirmed, accepted, agreed to, and 
approved: (1) the determinations and findings by the Town Council as to the 
special benefits described herein and the Improvement Area #2 Assessment 
Ordinance; (2) the Service and Assessment Plan and the Assessment Ordinance, 
and (3) the levying of the Improvement Area #2 Assessment on the Improvement 
Area #2 Assessed Property. 

E. Annual Collection Costs 

The Annual Collection Costs shall be paid for annually by each Parcel pro rata based on the ratio 
of the amount of outstanding Assessment remaining on the Parcel to the total outstanding 
Assessment.  The Annual Collection Costs shall be collected as part of and in the same manner as 
Annual Installments in the amounts shown on the Assessment Roll, which may be revised based 
on actual costs incurred in Annual Service Plan Updates. 

F. Additional Interest 

 
2 Assessments are allocated based on the Lot counts in the District at the time PID Bonds were issued. Improvement 
Area #2 contained 23 of the total 131 Lots, so Improvement Area #2 was allocated 17.56% (23/131 = 17.56%) of the 
Assessments. Based on new Lot counts, Improvement Area #2 is allocated 17.42% (23/132 = 17.42%) of Assessments, 
which equals approximately $735,303.03, $15,681.82 of which has been billed or paid off as part of the Annual 
Installments due on 1/31/2019 and 1/31/2020, leaving $719,621.21 of Assessments allocable to Improvement Area 
#2, as shown on Exhibit G-2. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           18 

 

   

The interest rate on Assessments levied on the Assessed Property may exceed the interest rate 
on the PID Bonds by the Additional Interest Rate. Additional Interest shall be collected as part of 
each Annual Installment and shall be deposited pursuant to the Indenture.  

SECTION VI: TERMS OF THE ASSESSMENTS 

A. Reallocation of Assessments 

1. Upon Division Prior to Recording of Subdivision Plat 

Upon the division of any Assessed Property (without the recording of subdivision plat), 
the Administrator shall reallocate the Assessment for the Assessed Property prior to the 
division among the newly divided Assessed Properties according to the following formula: 

A = B x (C ÷ D) 

Where the terms have the following meanings: 

A = the Assessment for the newly divided Assessed Property 
B = the Assessment for the Assessed Property prior to division 
C = the estimated buildout value of the newly divided Assessed Property 
D = the sum of the estimated buildout value for all of the newly divided Assessed 
Properties 

The calculation of the buildout value of an Assessed Property shall be performed by the 
Administrator based on information from the Developer, homebuilders, market studies, 
appraisals, official public records of the County, and any other relevant information 
regarding the Assessed Property. The calculation as confirmed by the Town Council shall 
be conclusive.  

The sum of the Assessments for all newly divided Assessed Properties shall equal the 
Assessment for the Assessed Property prior to subdivision. The calculation shall be made 
separately for each newly divided Assessed Property. The reallocation of an Assessment 
for an Assessed Property that is a homestead under Texas law may not exceed the 
Assessment prior to the reallocation. Any reallocation pursuant to this section shall be 
reflected in the next Annual Service Plan Update and approved by the Town Council. 

2. Upon Subdivision by a Recorded Subdivision Plat 

Upon the subdivision of any Assessed Property based on a recorded subdivision plat, the 
Administrator shall reallocate the Assessment for the Assessed Property prior to the 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           19 

 

   

subdivision among the new subdivided Lots based on buildout value according to the 
following formula: 

A = [B x (C ÷ D)]/E 

Where the terms have the following meanings: 

A = the Assessment for the newly subdivided Lot 
B = the Assessment for the Parcel prior to subdivision 
C = the sum of the estimated average buildout value of all newly subdivided Lots 
with same Lot Type  
D = the sum of the estimated average buildout value for all of the newly subdivided 
Lots excluding Non-Benefitted Property 
E= the number of newly subdivided Lots with same Lot Type 

Prior to the recording of a subdivision plat, the Developer shall provide the Town an 
estimated buildout value as of the date of the recorded subdivision plat for each Lot 
created by the recorded subdivision plat considering factors such as density, lot size, 
proximity to amenities, view premiums, location, market conditions, historical sales, 
discussions with homebuilders, and any other factors that may impact value.  The 
calculation of the estimated average buildout value for a Lot shall be performed by the 
Administrator and confirmed by the Town Council based on information provided by the 
Developer, homebuilders, third party consultants, and/or the official public records of the 
County regarding the Lot. 

The sum of the Assessments for all newly subdivided Lots shall not exceed the Assessment 
for the portion of the Assessed Property subdivided prior to subdivision. The calculation 
shall be made separately for each newly subdivided Assessed Property. The reallocation 
of an Assessment for an Assessed Property that is a homestead under Texas law may not 
exceed the Assessment prior to the reallocation. Any reallocation pursuant to this section 
shall be reflected in the next Annual Service Plan Update and approved by the Town 
Council. 

3. Upon Consolidation  

If two or more Lots or Parcels are consolidated, the Administrator shall allocate the 
Assessments against the Lots or Parcels before the consolidation to the consolidated Lot 
or Parcel, which allocation shall be reflected in the next Annual Service Plan Update and 
approved by the Town Council. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           20 

 

   

B. Mandatory Prepayment of Assessments 

If an Assessed Property is transferred to a person or entity that is exempt from payment of the 
Assessment, the Developer transferring the Assessed Property shall pay to the Town the full 
amount of the Assessment, plus Prepayment Costs and Delinquent Collection Costs prior to the 
transfer.  If the owner of an Assessed Property causes the Assessed Property to become Non-
Benefited Property, the owner causing the change in status shall pay the full amount of the 
Assessment, plus Prepayment Costs and Delinquent Collection Costs, prior to the change in 
status. 

C. True-Up of Assessments if Maximum Assessment Exceeded at Plat 

Prior to the Town approving a final subdivision plat, the Administrator will certify that such plat 
will not result in the Assessment per Lot for any Lot Type to exceed the Maximum Assessment. If 
the Administrator determines that the resulting Assessment per Lot for any Lot Type will exceed 
the Maximum Assessment for that Lot Type, then (1) the Assessment applicable to each Lot Type 
shall each be reduced to the Maximum Assessment, and (2) the person or entity filing the plat 
shall pay to the Town the amount the Assessment was reduced, plus Prepayment Costs and 
Delinquent Collection Costs, if any, prior to the Town approving the final plat. The Town’s 
approval of a plat without payment of such amounts does not eliminate the obligation of the 
person or entity filing the plat to pay such amounts. 

D. Reduction of Assessments 

If as a result of cost savings or an Authorized Improvement not being constructed, the Actual 
Costs of completed Authorized Improvements are less than the Assessments, the Assessments 
shall be reduced on a pro-rata basis such that the sum of the resulting reduced Assessments for 
all Assessed Properties equals the reduced Actual Costs.  Excess PID Bond proceeds shall be 
applied to redeem outstanding PID Bonds.  The Assessments shall not, however, be reduced to 
an amount less than the outstanding PID Bonds. 

The Administrator shall update (and submit to the Town Council for review and approval as part 
of the next Annual Service Plan Update) the Assessment Roll and corresponding Annual 
Installments to reflect the reduced Assessments. 

E. Prepayment of Assessments 

The owner of the Assessed Property may pay, at any time, all or any part of an Assessment in 
accordance with the Act. Prepayment Costs, if any, may be paid from a reserve established under 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           21 

 

   

the applicable Indenture.  If an Annual Installment has been billed prior to the Prepayment, the 
Annual Installment shall be due and payable and shall be credited against the Prepayment. 

If an Assessment is paid in full, with Prepayment Costs, (1) the Administrator shall cause the 
Assessment to be reduced to zero and the Assessment Roll to be revised accordingly; (2) the 
Administrator shall prepare the revised Assessment Roll and submit to the Town Council for 
review and approval as part of the next Annual Service Plan Update; (3) the obligation to pay the 
Assessment and corresponding Annual Installments shall terminate; and (4) the Town shall 
provide the owner with a recordable "Notice of PID Assessment Termination,” a form of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit H. 

If an Assessment is paid in part, with Prepayment Costs: (1) the Administrator shall cause the 
Assessment to be reduced and the Assessment Roll revised accordingly; (2) the Administrator 
shall prepare the revised Assessment Roll and submit to the Town Council for review and 
approval as part of the next Annual Service Plan Update; and (3) the Assessment obligation that 
is outstanding will be reduced to the extent a Prepayment is made. 

F. Payment of Assessment in Annual Installments 

Assessments that are not paid in full shall be due and payable in Annual Installments. Exhibit F-2 
shows the estimated Annual Installments for Improvement Area #1, and Exhibit G-2 shows the 
estimated Annual Installments for Improvement Area #2. Annual Installments are subject to 
adjustment in each Annual Service Plan Update. 

If any Parcel shown on the Assessment Roll is assigned multiple tax identification numbers for 
billing and collection purposes, the Annual Installment shall be allocated pro rata based on the 
acreage of the property as shown by Denton Central Appraisal District for each tax identification 
number. 

The Administrator shall prepare and submit to the Town Council for its review and approval an 
Annual Service Plan Update to allow for the billing and collection of Annual Installments.  Each 
Annual Service Plan Update shall include updated Assessment Rolls and updated calculations of 
Annual Installments.  The Annual Collection Costs for a given Assessment shall be paid for by each 
Parcel pro rata based on the ratio of the amount of outstanding Assessment remaining on the 
Parcel to the total outstanding Assessment.  Annual Installments shall be reduced by any credits 
applied under an applicable Indenture, such as capitalized interest, interest earnings on account 
balances, and any other funds available to the Bond Trustee for such purposes.  Annual 
Installments shall be collected by the Town in the same manner and at the same time as ad 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           22 

 

   

valorem taxes.  Annual Installments shall be subject to the penalties, procedures, and foreclosure 
sale in case of delinquencies as set forth in the Act and in the same manner as ad valorem taxes 
for the Town.  The Town Council may provide for other means of collecting Annual Installments.  
Assessments shall have the lien priority specified in the Act. 

Sales of the Assessed Property for nonpayment of Annual Installments shall be subject to the lien 
for the remaining unpaid Annual Installments against the Assessed Property, and the Assessed 
Property may again be sold at a judicial foreclosure sale if the purchaser fails to timely pay the 
non-delinquent Annual Installments as they become due and payable. 

The Town reserves the right to refund PID Bonds in accordance with the Act.  In the event of a 
refunding, the Administrator shall recalculate the Annual Installments so that total Annual 
Installments will be sufficient to pay the refunding bonds, and the refunding bonds shall 
constitute “PID Bonds.” 

Each Annual Installment of an Assessment, including interest on the unpaid principal of the 
Assessment, shall be updated annually.  Each Annual Installment shall be due when billed and 
shall be delinquent if not paid prior to February 1 of the following year.  

Failure of an owner to receive an invoice for an Annual Installment on the property tax bill shall 
not relieve the owner of the responsibility for payment of the Assessment. Assessments, or 
Annual Installments thereof, that are delinquent shall incur Delinquent Collection Costs. The 
Town may provide for other means of collecting the Annual Installments to the extent permitted 
by the Act.  

G. Prepayment as a Result of an Eminent Domain Proceeding or Taking  

If any portion of any Parcel of Assessed Property is taken from an owner as a result of eminent 
domain proceedings or if a transfer of any portion of any Parcel of Assessed Property is made to 
an entity with the authority to condemn all or a portion of the Assessed Property in lieu of or as 
a part of an eminent domain proceeding (a "Taking"), the portion of the Assessed Property that 
was taken or transferred (the "Taken Property") shall be reclassified as Non-Benefitted Property.  

For the Assessed Property that is subject to the Taking as described in the preceding paragraph, 
the Assessment that was levied against the Assessed Property (when it was included in the Taken 
Property) prior to the Taking shall remain in force against the remaining Assessed Property (the 
Assessed Property less the Taken Property) (the "Remaining Property") following the 
reclassification of the Taken Property as Non-Benefitted Property. The Owner will remain liable 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           23 

 

   

to pay in Annual Installments, or as otherwise provided by this Service and Assessment Plan, as 
updated, or the Act, the Assessment that remains due on the Remaining Property. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Assessment that remains due on the Remaining Property 
exceeds the Maximum Assessment, the owner will be required to make a Prepayment in an 
amount necessary to ensure that the Assessment against the Remaining Property does not 
exceed the Maximum Assessment.  

Following the initiation of the Taking, the Administrator will be required, as part of the next 
Annual Service Plan Update, to determine the portion of the Assessment that was levied against 
the Assessed Property that would have been allocated to the Taken Property prior to its 
reclassification as Non-Benefitted Property based on a manner that results in imposing equal 
shares of the costs of the applicable Authorized Improvements on property similarly benefitted.  

Within 30 days of the receipt by the owner of the funds received from the entity taking the Taken 
Property, the owner shall make a Prepayment of the Assessment in an amount equal to the lesser 
of (i) the amount the owner received as a result of the Taking or (ii) the amount determined by 
the Administrator in the above paragraph; provided, however, that in all instances the 
Assessment remaining on the Remaining Property shall not exceed the Maximum Assessment. 

By way of illustration, if an owner owns 100 acres of Assessed Property subject to a $100 
Assessment and 10 acres is taken through a Taking, the 10 acres of Taken Property shall be 
reclassified as Non-Benefitted Property and the remaining 90 acres of Remaining Property shall 
be subject to the $100 Assessment, (provided that this $100 Assessment does not exceed the 
Maximum Assessment on the Remaining Property). If the Administrator determines that the 
portion of the $100 Assessment that would have been allocated to the Taken Property prior to 
its reallocation is $10 and the owner receives $8 as compensation for the Taken Property as a 
result of the Taking, the Owner shall be required to pay $8 as a Prepayment of the Assessment 
against the Remaining Property (in addition to any other amount that would be required to 
ensure the Assessment does not exceed the Maximum Assessment). Alternatively, in the above 
scenario, if the owner receives $20 in compensation for the Taken Property, the owner shall be 
required to pay $10 as a Prepayment of the Assessment.  

Notwithstanding the previous two paragraphs, if the owner notifies the City and the 
Administrator that the Taking prevents the Remaining Property from being developed as shown 
on a final plat, the owner shall, upon receipt of the compensation for the Taken Property, be 
required to prepay the total amount of the Assessment levied against the Taken Property and, 
and the amount of the Assessment required to buy down the outstanding Assessment to the 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           24 

 

   

Maximum Assessment on the Remaining Property. The owner will remain liable to pay the Annual 
Installments on both the Taken Property and the Remaining Property until such time that such 
Assessment has been prepaid in full. 

SECTION VII: ASSESSMENT ROLL 

The Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll is attached as Exhibit F-1. The Administrator shall 
prepare and submit to the Town Council for review and approval proposed revisions to the 
Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll and Improvement Area #1 Annual Installments for each 
Parcel as part of each Annual Service Plan Update. 

The Improvement Area #2 Assessment Roll is attached as Exhibit G-1. The Administrator shall 
prepare and submit to the Town Council for review and approval proposed revisions to the 
Improvement Area #2 Assessment Roll and Improvement Area #2 Annual Installments for each 
Parcel as part of each Annual Service Plan Update. 

SECTION VIII: ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

A. Calculation Errors 

If the owner of a Parcel claims that an error has been made in any calculation required by this 
2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan, including, but not limited to, any 
calculation made as part of any Annual Service Plan Update, the owner’s sole and exclusive 
remedy shall be to submit a written notice of error to the Administrator by December 1st of each 
year following Town Council approval of the calculation; otherwise, the owner shall be deemed 
to have unconditionally approved and accepted the calculation.  Upon receipt of a written notice 
of error from an owner the Administrator shall provide a written response to the Town Council 
and the owner within 30 days of such referral.  The Town Council shall consider the owner’s 
notice of error and the Administrator’s response at a public meeting, and within 30 days after 
closing such meeting, the Town Council shall make a final determination as to whether an error 
has been made.  If the Town Council determines that an error has been made, the Town Council 
shall take such corrective action as is authorized by the Act, this 2020 Amended and Restated 
Service and Assessment Plan, the Assessment Ordinance, the Indenture, or is otherwise 
authorized by the discretionary power of the Town Council.  The determination by the Town 
Council as to whether an error has been made, and any corrective action taken by the Town 
Council, shall be final and binding on the owner and the Administrator. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           25 

 

   

B. Amendments 

Amendments to this 2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan must be made 
by the Town Council in accordance with the Act.  To the extent permitted by the Act, this 2020 
Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan may be amended without notice to owners 
of the Assessed Property: (1) to correct mistakes and clerical errors; (2) to clarify ambiguities; and 
(3) to provide procedures to collect Assessments, Annual Installments, and other charges 
imposed by this 2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan. 

C. Administration and Interpretation 

The Administrator shall: (1) perform the obligations of the Administrator as set forth in this 2020 
Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan; (2) administer the District for and on behalf 
of and at the direction of the Town Council; and (3) interpret the provisions of this 2020 Amended 
and Restated Service and Assessment Plan.  Interpretations of this 2020 Amended and Restated 
Service and Assessment Plan by the Administrator shall be in writing and shall be appealable to 
the Town Council by owners adversely affected by the interpretation.  Appeals shall be decided 
by the Town Council after holding a public meeting at which all interested parties have an 
opportunity to be heard.  Decisions by the Town Council shall be final and binding on the owners 
and their successors and assigns. 

D. Severability 

If any provision of this 2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan is determined 
by a governmental agency or court to be unenforceable, the unenforceable provision shall be 
deleted and, to the maximum extent possible, shall be rewritten to be enforceable.  Every effort 
shall be made to enforce the remaining provisions. 
  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           26 

 

   

EXHIBITS   

The following Exhibits are attached to and made a part of this 2020 Amended and Restated 
Service and Assessment Plan for all purposes: 

 

Exhibit A-1 District Legal Description 
Exhibit A-2 Improvement Area #1 Legal Description 
Exhibit A-3 Improvement Area #2 Legal Description 
Exhibit A-4  Map of Improvement Area #1 and Improvement Area #2 
Exhibit A-5 Changed Property Legal Description and Map 
Exhibit B Change in Assessments  
Exhibit C Authorized Improvements 
Exhibit D Service Plan 
Exhibit E Sources and Uses of Funds 
Exhibit F-1 Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll 
Exhibit F-2 Improvement Area #1 Annual Installments 
Exhibit G-1 Improvement Area #2 Assessment Roll 
Exhibit G-2 Improvement Area #2 Annual Installments 
Exhibit H Form of Notice of PID Assessment Termination 
Exhibit I  Homebuyer Disclosure 
Exhibit J Debt Service Schedules for Bonds 
Exhibit K Landowner Consent Forms 
 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           27 

 

   

EXHIBIT A-1 – DISTRICT LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           28 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           29 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           30 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           31 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           32 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           33 

 

   

  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           34 

 

   

 
EXHIBIT A-2 – IMPROVEMENT AREA #1 LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           35 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           36 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           37 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           38 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           39 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           40 

 

   

 
Save and except 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION  

BEING a tract of land situated in the M.E.P. & P.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract Number 915, Town of 
Hickory Creek, Denton, Texas, and being all of that tract of land described as Lot 1X, Block A of 
Steeplechase South Addition, Phase I, as recorded in Document Number 2012-210, of the Official Public 
Records of Denton County, Texas, (O.P.R.D.C.T.), and being part of a tract of land described as "Tract 3 
- South" in Special Warranty Deed to CTMGT Turbeville, LLC, as recorded in Document Number 2011-
121573, (O.P.R.D.C.T.), and more particularly described as follows [The basis of bearing is the Texas 
Coordinate System of 1983, North Central Zone (4202)]("Record" bearings and distances cited herein are 
from said Special Warranty Deed to CTMGT Turbeville, LLC):  

COMMENCING at a found PK nail for the northeast corner of Lot 1X, Block A of said Steeplechase 
Addition, said corner being at the intersection of the south right-of-way line of Turbeville Road (a 
variable width right-of-way, Document Number 2012-210, O.P.R.D.C.T.) and the northeast right-of-way 
line of Sycamore Bend Road (a variable width right-of-way);  

THENCE South 12 degrees 10 minutes 59 seconds East, with said south right-of-way line and the north 
line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 33.53 feet to a point for corner;  

THENCE South 88 degrees 41 minutes 24 seconds East, departing said south right-of-way line and the 
north line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 63.68 feet to a 3/4-inch found iron pipe for the POINT OF 
BEGINNING, said comer being at the intersection of the south right-of-way line of said Turbeville Road 
and the northeast right-of-way line of Sycamore Bend Road;  

THENCE South 88 degrees 41 minutes 24 seconds East, with said south right-of-way line and the north 
line of said Lot 1, a distance of 283.03 feet to a 1/2-inch found iron pipe with yellow plastic cap stamped 
"HALFF" (hereinafter referred to as "with cap") for corner;  

THENCE with the south line of said Lot 1X, Block A and the north line of said Lot1R, the following 
bearings and distances: 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           41 

 

   

South 01 degrees 18 minutes 36 second West, a distance of 106.76 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner said corner being the point of curvature of non-tangent circular curve to the right, having radius 
of 50.00 feet, whose chord bears South 28 degrees 51 minutes 21 seconds East, a distance of 86.46 feet;  

Southerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 119 degrees 40 minutes 08 seconds, an arc distance 
of 104.43 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner said corner being the point of curvature of 
tangent circular reverse curve to the left, having radius of 30.00 feet, whose chord bears South 07 degrees 
41 minutes 42 seconds West, a distance of 23.72 feet;  

Southerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 46 degrees 34 minutes 03 seconds, an arc distance 
of 24.38 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner;  

South 15 degrees 35 minutes 20 seconds East, a distance of 73.24 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for said comer being the point of curvature of tangent circular curve to the right, having radius of 175.00 
feet, whose chord bears South 03 degrees 49 minutes 04 seconds West, a distance of 116.29 feet;  

Southerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 38 degrees 48 minutes 47 seconds, an arc distance 
of 118.55 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for comer;  

South 23 degrees 13 minutes 28 seconds West, with the southeast line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 92.50 
feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner said corner being the point of curvature of tangent 
circular curve to the left, having radius of 125.00 feet, whose chord bears South 06 degrees 31 minutes 48 
seconds West, a distance of 71.82 feet;  

Southerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 33 degrees 23 minutes 19 seconds, an arc distance 
of 72.84 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner;  

South 10 degrees 09 minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 139.28 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

North 79 degrees 50 minutes 09 seconds East, a distance of 105.04 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

North 52 degrees 04 minutes 18 seconds East, a distance of 173.16 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 37 degrees 55 minutes 42 seconds East, a distance of 158.66 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 68 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 1.43 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 23 degrees 58 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 136.61 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

South 21 degrees 07 minutes 19 seconds East, a distance of 305.32 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           42 

 

   

North 68 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds East, a distance of 20.06 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner said comer being the point of curvature of non- tangent circular curve to the left, having radius 
of 2593.5 feet, whose chord bears South 22 degrees 25 minutes 49 seconds East, a distance of 153.14 feet;  

Southerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 03 degrees 23 minutes 01 seconds, an arc distance 
of 153.16 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for comer;  

South 24 degrees 07 minutes 19 seconds East, a distance of 54.93 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 65 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 24 degrees 07 minutes 19 seconds East, a distance of 487.61 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 21 degrees 44 minutes 33 seconds East, a distance of 87.02 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 02 degrees 20 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 110.05 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 01 degrees 52 minutes 34 seconds East, a distance of 140.03 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

North 89 degrees 19 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 19.15 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 08 degrees 50 minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 554.95 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner; 

THENCE with the west line of said Lot 1X, Block A, the following bearings and distances: 

North 88 degrees 47 minutes 24 seconds West, a distance of 355.69 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 89 degrees 46 minutes 12 seconds West, a distance of 202.01 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for comer said comer being the point of curvature of non- tangent circular curve to the left, having 
radius of 250.00 feet, whose chord bears North 75 degrees 22 minutes 06 seconds West, a distance of 
89.07 feet;  

Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 20 degrees 31 minutes 25 seconds, an arc distance 
of 89.55 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner;  

North 85 degrees 37 minutes 49 seconds West, a distance of 121.13 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for comer said comer being the point of curvature of tangent circular curve to the right, having radius 
of 50.00 feet, whose chord bears North 44 degrees 49 minutes 49 seconds West, a distance of 65.34 feet;  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           43 

 

   

Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 81 degrees 36 minutes 00 seconds, an arc distance 
of 71.21 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 

THENCE with the north line of said Lot 1X, Block A, the following bearings and distances: 

North 04 degrees 01 minutes 49 seconds West, a distance of 47.90 feet to a 112-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

North 00 degrees 30 minutes 37 seconds East, a distance of 90.25 feet to a 112-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner; 

North 05 degrees 37 minutes 59 seconds West, a distance of 777.96 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for comer said corner being the point of curvature of tangent circular curve to the left, having radius 
of 265.00 feet, whose chord bears North 06 degrees 48 minutes 48 seconds West, a distance of 10.92 feet;  

Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 02 degrees 21 minutes 38 seconds, an arc distance 
of 10.92 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner;  

North 07 degrees 59 minutes 37 seconds West, a distance of 260.51 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 07 degrees 16 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 326.55 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 07 degrees 36 minutes 46 seconds West, a distance of 199.24 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 08 degrees 11 minutes 54 seconds West, a distance of 125.55 feel to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 10 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 89.98 feel to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

North 12 degrees 01 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 600.09 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 40 degree 09 minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 40.29 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING 
and containing 33.83 acres (1,473,576 square feet) of land, more or less. 

  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           44 

 

   

EXHIBIT A-3 – IMPROVEMENT AREA #2 LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION  

BEING a tract of land situated in the M.E.P. & P.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract Number 915, Town of 
Hickory Creek, Denton, Texas, and being all of that tract of land described as Lot 1X, Block A of 
Steeplechase South Addition, Phase I, as recorded in Document Number 2012-210, of the Official Public 
Records of Denton County, Texas, (O.P.R.D.C.T.), and being part of a tract of land described as "Tract 3 
- South" in Special Warranty Deed to CTMGT Turbeville, LLC, as recorded in Document Number 2011-
121573, (O.P.R.D.C.T.), and more particularly described as follows [The basis of bearing is the Texas 
Coordinate System of 1983, North Central Zone (4202)]("Record" bearings and distances cited herein are 
from said Special Warranty Deed to CTMGT Turbeville, LLC):  

COMMENCING at a found PK nail for the northeast corner of Lot 1X, Block A of said Steeplechase 
Addition, said corner being at the intersection of the south right-of-way line of Turbeville Road (a 
variable width right-of-way, Document Number 2012-210, O.P.R.D.C.T.) and the northeast right-of-way 
line of Sycamore Bend Road (a variable width right-of-way);  

THENCE South 12 degrees 10 minutes 59 seconds East, with said south right-of-way line and the north 
line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 33.53 feet to a point for corner;  

THENCE South 88 degrees 41 minutes 24 seconds East, departing said south right-of-way line and the 
north line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 63.68 feet to a 3/4-inch found iron pipe for the POINT OF 
BEGINNING, said comer being at the intersection of the south right-of-way line of said Turbeville Road 
and the northeast right-of-way line of Sycamore Bend Road;  

THENCE South 88 degrees 41 minutes 24 seconds East, with said south right-of-way line and the north 
line of said Lot 1, a distance of 283.03 feet to a 1/2-inch found iron pipe with yellow plastic cap stamped 
"HALFF" (hereinafter referred to as "with cap") for corner;  

THENCE with the south line of said Lot 1X, Block A and the north line of said Lot1R, the following 
bearings and distances: 

South 01 degrees 18 minutes 36 second West, a distance of 106.76 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner said corner being the point of curvature of non-tangent circular curve to the right, having radius 
of 50.00 feet, whose chord bears South 28 degrees 51 minutes 21 seconds East, a distance of 86.46 feet;  

Southerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 119 degrees 40 minutes 08 seconds, an arc distance 
of 104.43 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner said corner being the point of curvature of 
tangent circular reverse curve to the left, having radius of 30.00 feet, whose chord bears South 07 degrees 
41 minutes 42 seconds West, a distance of 23.72 feet;  

Southerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 46 degrees 34 minutes 03 seconds, an arc distance 
of 24.38 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner;  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           45 

 

   

South 15 degrees 35 minutes 20 seconds East, a distance of 73.24 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for said comer being the point of curvature of tangent circular curve to the right, having radius of 175.00 
feet, whose chord bears South 03 degrees 49 minutes 04 seconds West, a distance of 116.29 feet;  

Southerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 38 degrees 48 minutes 47 seconds, an arc distance 
of 118.55 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for comer;  

South 23 degrees 13 minutes 28 seconds West, with the southeast line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 92.50 
feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner said corner being the point of curvature of tangent 
circular curve to the left, having radius of 125.00 feet, whose chord bears South 06 degrees 31 minutes 48 
seconds West, a distance of 71.82 feet;  

Southerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 33 degrees 23 minutes 19 seconds, an arc distance 
of 72.84 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner;  

South 10 degrees 09 minutes 51 seconds East, a distance of 139.28 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

North 79 degrees 50 minutes 09 seconds East, a distance of 105.04 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

North 52 degrees 04 minutes 18 seconds East, a distance of 173.16 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 37 degrees 55 minutes 42 seconds East, a distance of 158.66 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 68 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 1.43 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 23 degrees 58 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 136.61 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

South 21 degrees 07 minutes 19 seconds East, a distance of 305.32 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

North 68 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds East, a distance of 20.06 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner said comer being the point of curvature of non- tangent circular curve to the left, having radius 
of 2593.5 feet, whose chord bears South 22 degrees 25 minutes 49 seconds East, a distance of 153.14 feet;  

Southerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 03 degrees 23 minutes 01 seconds, an arc distance 
of 153.16 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for comer;  

South 24 degrees 07 minutes 19 seconds East, a distance of 54.93 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           46 

 

   

South 65 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds West, a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 24 degrees 07 minutes 19 seconds East, a distance of 487.61 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 21 degrees 44 minutes 33 seconds East, a distance of 87.02 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 02 degrees 20 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 110.05 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 01 degrees 52 minutes 34 seconds East, a distance of 140.03 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

North 89 degrees 19 minutes 47 seconds East, a distance of 19.15 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

South 08 degrees 50 minutes 46 seconds East, a distance of 554.95 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner; 

THENCE with the west line of said Lot 1X, Block A, the following bearings and distances: 

North 88 degrees 47 minutes 24 seconds West, a distance of 355.69 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 89 degrees 46 minutes 12 seconds West, a distance of 202.01 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for comer said comer being the point of curvature of non- tangent circular curve to the left, having 
radius of 250.00 feet, whose chord bears North 75 degrees 22 minutes 06 seconds West, a distance of 
89.07 feet;  

Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 20 degrees 31 minutes 25 seconds, an arc distance 
of 89.55 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner;  

North 85 degrees 37 minutes 49 seconds West, a distance of 121.13 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for comer said comer being the point of curvature of tangent circular curve to the right, having radius 
of 50.00 feet, whose chord bears North 44 degrees 49 minutes 49 seconds West, a distance of 65.34 feet;  

Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 81 degrees 36 minutes 00 seconds, an arc distance 
of 71.21 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 

THENCE with the north line of said Lot 1X, Block A, the following bearings and distances: 

North 04 degrees 01 minutes 49 seconds West, a distance of 47.90 feet to a 112-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           47 

 

   

North 00 degrees 30 minutes 37 seconds East, a distance of 90.25 feet to a 112-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner; 

North 05 degrees 37 minutes 59 seconds West, a distance of 777.96 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for comer said corner being the point of curvature of tangent circular curve to the left, having radius 
of 265.00 feet, whose chord bears North 06 degrees 48 minutes 48 seconds West, a distance of 10.92 feet;  

Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 02 degrees 21 minutes 38 seconds, an arc distance 
of 10.92 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner;  

North 07 degrees 59 minutes 37 seconds West, a distance of 260.51 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 07 degrees 16 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 326.55 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 07 degrees 36 minutes 46 seconds West, a distance of 199.24 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 08 degrees 11 minutes 54 seconds West, a distance of 125.55 feel to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 10 degrees 30 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 89.98 feel to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for corner;  

North 12 degrees 01 minutes 00 seconds West, a distance of 600.09 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with 
cap for corner;  

North 40 degree 09 minutes 57 seconds East, a distance of 40.29 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING 
and containing 33.83 acres (1,473,576 square feet) of land, more or less. 

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           48 

 

   

EXHIBIT A-4 – MAP OF IMPROVEMENT AREA #1 AND IMPROVEMENT AREA #23 

 
3 Improvement Area #1 includes Phase 1 and Phase 2A and Improvement Area #2 includes Phase 2B. Note a complete list of Tax IDs within the District, 
including Non-benefitted Properties, is included in Exhibit F-1 and Exhibit G-1. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           49 

 

   

EXHIBIT A-5 – CHANGED PROPERTY LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND MAP 

Exhibit A 
Legal Description: Lot 1R, Block A 

 
BEING a 6.72 acre tract of land situated in the M.E.P. & P.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract Number 915, 
Town of Hickory Creek, Denton, Texas, and being all of that tract of land described as Lot 1, Block A of 
Steeplechase South Addition, Phase I, as recorded in Document Number 2012-210, of the Official Public 
Records of Denton County, Texas, (O.P.R.D.C.T.), and being part of a tract of land described as “Tract 3 - 
South” in Special Warranty Deed to CTMGT Turbeville, LLC, as recorded in Document Number 2011-
121573, (O.P.R.D.C.T.), and more particularly described as follows [The basis of bearing is the Texas 
Coordinate System of 1983, North Central Zone (4202)]("Record" bearings and distances cited herein are 
from said Special Warranty Deed to CTMGT Turbeville, LLC): 
 
COMMENCING at a 3/4-inch found iron pipe with yellow plastic cap stamped “HALFF” (hereinafter 
referred to as “with cap”) for the north corner of a corner clip of Lot 1X, Block A of said Steeplechase 
Addition, said corner being at the intersection of the south right-of-way line of Turbeville Road (a variable 
width right-of-way, Document Number 2012-210, O.P.R.D.C.T.) and the northeast right-of-way line of 
Sycamore Bend Road (a variable width right-of-way); 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 41 minutes 24 seconds East, with said south right-of-way line and the north 
line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 283.03 feet to a 1/2-inch found iron rod with cap for the POINT OF 
BEGINNING, said corner being the common northeast corner of said Lot 1X and the northwest corner of 
Lot 1; 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 41 minutes 24 seconds East, with said south right-of-way line and the north 
line of said Lot 1, a distance of 239.69 feet to a 3/4-inch found iron pipe with cap for corner; 
 
THENCE over and across said Lot 1, Block A, the following bearings and distances: 
 

South 05 degrees 48 minutes 52 seconds West, departing said south right-of-way line and the north 
line of said Lot 1, a distance of 132.35 feet to a corner, said corner being the point of curvature of 
a tangent circular curve to the left, having a radius of 60.50 feet, whose chord that bears South 39 
degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds East, a distance of 85.56 feet; 
 
Southeasterly, with said curve, through the central angle of 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds, an 
arc distance of 95.03 feet to a corner;  
 
South 84 degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds East, a distance of 135.39 feet to a corner, said corner 
being the point of curvature of a tangent circular curve to the left, having a radius of 80.50 feet 
whose chord that bears North 50 degrees 48 minutes 52 seconds East, a distance of 113.84 feet; 
 
Northeasterly, with said curve, through the central angle of 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds, an 
arc distance of 126.45 feet to a corner;  

  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           50 

 

   

North 05 degrees 39 minutes 28 seconds East, a distance of 0.44 feet to a corner; 
 

South 89 degrees 12 minutes 45 seconds East, a distance of 24.53 feet to a corner on the common 
east line of said Lot 1, Block A and the west line of Lot 1, Block C of said Steeplechase Addition; 

 
THENCE South 05 degrees 48 minutes 52 seconds West, with the common east line of said Lot 1, Block 
A and the west line of 3, and 4, Block C of said Steeplechase Addition, a distance of 223.35 feet to a 1/2-
set iron rod with cap for a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A and the southwest corner of said Lot 
3, Block C; 
 
THENCE South 84 degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds East, with the common south line of said Lot 3, Block 
C and the northeast line of said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 163.12 feet to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for 
an “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, said corner being on the west line of Lot 2, Block C; 
 
THENCE South 06 degrees 02 minutes 56 seconds West, with the common west line of said Lots 1 and 2, 
Block C and the east line of said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 172.17 feet to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for 
a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and said Lot 1, Block C; 
 
THENCE North 68 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds East, with the common northeast line of said Lot 1, 
Block A and the south line of said Lot 1, Block C, a distance of 82.00 feet to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for 
a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and said Lot 1, Block C; 
 
THENCE North 82 degrees 39 minutes 01 second East, with the common northeast line of said Lot 1, Block 
A and the south line of said Lot 1, Block C, a distance of 149.61 feet to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for a 
common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and said Lot 1, Block C, said corner being on the west right-
of-way line of Chestnut Lane (a 50-foot wide right-of-way) ; 
 
THENCE South 07 degrees 20 minutes 59 second East, with the east line of said Lot 1, Block A and said 
west right-of-way line, a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for a common “ell” corner of 
said Lot 1, Block A, and Lot 36, Block B; 
 
THENCE with the south line of said Lot 1, Block A, the following bearings and distances: 
 

South 82 degrees 39 minutes 01 second West, with the north line of Lots 35 and 36, Block B, a 
distance of 147.19 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
South 68 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds West, with the northwest line of Lots 32, 33, 34 and 35, 
Block B, a distance of 391.56 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for an “ell” corner of said Lot 
1, Block A and Lot 1X, Block A; 
 
North 37 degrees 55 minutes 42 seconds West, with the northeast line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 
158.67 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
South 52 degrees 04 minutes 18 seconds West, with the northeast line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 
173.16 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           51 

 

   

South 79 degrees 50 minutes 09 seconds West, with the northeast line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 
105.04 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 

THENCE with the west line of said Lot 1, Block A, and the northeast line of said Lot 1X, Block A, the 
following bearings and distances: 
 

North 10 degrees 09 minutes 51 seconds West, a distance of 139.28 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod 
with cap for corner, said corner being the point of curvature of tangent circular curve to the right, 
having radius of 125.00 feet, whose chord bears North 06 degrees 31 minutes 48 seconds East, a 
distance of 71.82 feet; 
 
Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 33 degrees 23 minutes 19 seconds, an arc 
distance of 72.84 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
North 23 degrees 13 minutes 28 seconds East, a distance of 92.50 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod 
with cap for corner, said corner being the point of curvature of tangent circular curve to the left, 
having radius of 175.00 feet, whose chord bears North 03 degrees 49 minutes 04 seconds East, a 
distance of 116.29 feet; 
 
Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 38 degrees 48 minutes 47 seconds, an arc 
distance of 118.55 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
North 15 degrees 35 minutes 20 seconds West, a distance of 73.24 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod 
with cap for corner, said corner being the point of curvature of tangent circular curve to the right, 
having radius of 30.00 feet, whose chord bears North 07 degrees 41 minutes 42 seconds East, a 
distance of 23.72 feet; 
 
Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 46 degrees 34 minutes 03 seconds, an arc 
distance of 24.38 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner, said corner being the point of 
reverse curvature of non-tangent circular curve to the left, having radius of 50.00 feet, whose chord 
bears North 28 degrees 51 minutes 21 seconds West, a distance of 86.46 feet; 
 
Northwesterly, with said curve, through a central angle of 119 degrees 40 minutes 08 seconds, an 
arc distance of 104.44 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
North 01 degree 18 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 106.76 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 6.72 acres (292,752 square feet) of land, more or less. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           52 

 

   

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           53 

 

   

EXHIBIT B – CHANGE IN ASSESSMENTS 

 

Improvement Area Units Assessment Per Unit Total Assessment Units Assessment Per Unit Total Assessment
(A) (B) (C) = (A) * (B) (D) (E) (F) = (D) * (E) (G) = (E) - (B) (H) = (F) / (D)

Improvement Area #1
Residential Parcels 108 31,526.72$                  3,404,885.50$           108 31,287.88$                      3,379,090.91$         (238.84)$                         31,287.88$                     
Changed Property 0 -$                               -$                             1 31,287.88$                      31,287.88$              31,287.88$                     31,287.88$                     
Total IA#1 Benefitted Parcels 108 3,404,885.50$           109 3,410,378.79$        

Improvement Area #2
Residential Parcels 23 31,526.72$                  725,114.50$               23 31,287.88$                      719,621.21$            (238.84)$                         31,287.88$                     
Changed Property 0 -$                               -$                             0 -$                                   -$                           -$                                 -$                                  
Total IA#2 Benefitted Parcels 23 725,114.50$               23 719,621.21$            

Total Benefitted Parcels 131 4,130,000.00$           132 4,130,000.00$        

After RezoningPrior to Rezoning Change in Assessment 
Per Unit

Maximum Assessment 
Per Unit



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           54 

 

   

EXHIBIT C – AUTHORIZED IMPROVEMENTS 

 

% Cost % Cost
Improvement Area #1¹

Engineering 44,899.13$          100.00% 44,899.13$        0.00% -$                 
Environmental Report 2,300.00              100.00% 2,300.00             0.00% -                   
Engineering 264,513.19          100.00% 264,513.19        0.00% -                   
Erosion Control 20,997.45            100.00% 20,997.45           0.00% -                   
Roadway Construction 81,121.36            100.00% 81,121.36           0.00% -                   
Engineering 33,513.65            100.00% 33,513.65           0.00% -                   
Streets 35,014.50            100.00% 35,014.50           0.00% -                   
Erosion Control 1,001.31              100.00% 1,001.31             0.00% -                   
Erosion Control 14,345.00            100.00% 14,345.00           0.00% -                   
Water,Sewer, Stormwater 97,200.00            100.00% 97,200.00           0.00% -                   
Erosion Control 4,345.00              100.00% 4,345.00             0.00% -                   
Roadway Construction 1,560,761.28      100.00% 1,560,761.28     0.00% -                   
City Fees 28,300.00            100.00% 28,300.00           0.00% -                   
Water, Sewer, Stormwater 795,278.68          100.00% 795,278.68        0.00% -                   
Street Signs 4,248.81              100.00% 4,248.81             0.00% -                   

2,987,839.36$    2,987,839.36$   -$                 
Improvement Area #2¹

Earthwork 73,076.00$          0.00% -$                     100.00% 73,076.00$    
Water 147,805.00          0.00% -                       100.00% 147,805.00    
Sanitary Sewer 19,550.00            0.00% -                       100.00% 19,550.00       
Storm Drain 79,284.00            0.00% -                       100.00% 79,284.00       
Paving 419,330.00          0.00% -                       100.00% 419,330.00    
Performance and Payment Bonds 11,654.46            0.00% -                       100.00% 11,654.46       

750,699.46$       -$                     750,699.46$  
PID Formation and Bond Issuance Costs2

Reserve Fund 304,200.00$       82.44% 250,790.84$      17.56% 53,409.16$    
Capitalized Interest -                        82.44% -                       17.56% -                   
Underwriter's Discount 126,600.00          82.44% 104,372.52        17.56% 22,227.48       
Cost of Issuance 168,800.00          82.44% 139,163.36        17.56% 29,636.64       

599,600.00$       494,326.72$      105,273.28$  

Total 4,338,138.81$    3,482,166.07$   855,972.74$  

Notes:

Improvement Area #1 Improvement Area #2Total Budgeted 
Costs

1 Improvement Area #1 Improvements have been fully constructed and dedicated to the Town. Construction has not yet begun on 
Improvement Area #2 Improvements.
2 PID Formation and Bond Issuance Costs is allocated based on the number of assessed Parcels in each Improvement Area at the time the PID 
Bonds were issued. The total number of assessed Parcels within the District was 131. Improvement Area #1 had 108 assessed Parcels, so it is 
allocated 82.44% (108/132 = 82.44%) of PID Formation and Bond Issuance Costs. Improvement Area #2 had 23 Parcels with Assessments, so it 
is allocated 17.56% (23/132 = 17.56%) of PID Formation and Bond Issuance Costs.

Authorized Improvements



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           55 

 

   

EXHIBIT D – SERVICE PLAN 

 

   

Installment Due 1/31/2021 1/31/2022 1/31/2023 1/31/2024 1/31/2025

Principal 65,000.00$          70,000.00$          75,000.00$          80,000.00$          85,000.00$          
Interest 229,012.50$        225,681.26$        222,093.76$        218,250.00$        214,150.00$        
Total Debt Service (1) 294,012.50$        295,681.26$        297,093.76$        298,250.00$        299,150.00$        

Additional Interest (2) 20,650.00$          20,325.00$          19,975.00$          19,600.00$          19,200.00$          

Administrative Expenses (3) 29,692.20$          30,286.04$          30,891.76$          31,509.60$          32,139.79$          

Total Annual Installment (4) = (1) + (2) + (3) 344,354.70$        346,292.30$        347,960.52$        349,359.60$        350,489.79$        

Hickory Creek PID No. 2 - Annual Installments



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           56 

 

   

EXHIBIT E – SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

 

Original Bond Par Amount 4,220,000.00$   
Owner Contribution 170,282.57$      
Total Sources 4,390,282.57$   

Improvement Area #1 Improvements 2,987,839.36$   
Improvement Area #2 Improvements 750,699.46$      

3,738,538.81$   

District Formation and Bond Issuance Costs
Reserve Fund 304,343.76$      
Capitalized Interest -$                     
Underwriter's Discount 134,400.00$      
Cost of Issuance 213,000.00$      

651,743.76$      

Total Uses 4,390,282.57$   

Uses of Funds

Sources of Funds



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           57 

 

   

EXHIBIT F-1 – IMPROVEMENT AREA #1 ASSESSMENT ROLL 

 

Parcel ID
Improvement 

Area
Lot Type

Outstanding 
Assessment

Installment Due 
1/31/21

557860 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557861 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557862 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557863 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557864 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557865 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557866 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557867 IA #1 Non-Benefitted Property -$                      -$                         
557868 IA #1 Non-Benefitted Property -$                      -$                         
557869 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557870 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557871 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557872 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557873 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557874 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557875 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557876 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557877 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557878 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557879 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557880 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557881 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557882 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557883 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557884 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557885 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557886 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557887 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557888 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557889 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557890 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557891 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557892 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557893 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557894 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557895 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557896 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557897 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557899 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557900 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           58 

 

   

 

Parcel ID
Improvement 

Area
Lot Type

Outstanding 
Assessment

Installment Due 
1/31/21

557901 IA #1 Non-Benefitted Property -$                      -$                         
557902 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557903 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557904 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557905 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557906 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557907 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557908 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557909 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557910 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557911 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557912 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557913 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557914 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557915 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557916 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557917 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557918 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557919 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557920 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557921 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557922 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557923 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557924 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557925 IA #1 Non-Benefitted Property -$                      -$                         
557927 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557928 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557929 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557930 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557931 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557932 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557933 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557934 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557935 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557936 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557937 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557938 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557939 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557940 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557941 IA #1 Non-Benefitted Property -$                      -$                         



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           59 

 

   

 
 

Parcel ID
Improvement 

Area
Lot Type

Outstanding 
Assessment

Installment Due 
1/31/21

557943 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557944 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557945 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557946 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557947 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557949 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557950 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557951 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557952 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557953 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557954 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557955 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557956 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557957 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557958 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557959 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557960 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557961 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557962 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557963 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557964 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557965 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557966 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557967 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557968 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557969 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557971 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557972 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557973 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557974 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557975 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557976 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557977 IA #1 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
557979 IA #1 Non-Benefitted Property -$                      -$                         
557982 IA #1 Changed Property 31,287.88$          2,608.75$               
559781 IA #1 Non-Benefitted Property -$                      -$                         
581613 IA #1 Non-Benefitted Property -$                      -$                         

3,410,378.79$    284,353.50$           Total



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           60 

 

   

EXHIBIT F-2 – IMPROVEMENT AREA #1 ANNUAL INSTALLMENTS 

Installment 
Due 1/31

Principal Interest Additional Interest Administrative Expenses Reserve Fund Total Installment

2021 53,674.24$         189,108.81$      17,051.89$                 24,518.56$                             -$                   284,353.50$           
2022 57,803.03$         186,358.01$      16,783.52$                 25,008.93$                             -$                   285,953.49$           
2023 61,931.82$         183,395.60$      16,494.51$                 25,509.11$                             -$                   287,331.04$           
2024 66,060.61$         180,221.59$      16,184.85$                 26,019.29$                             -$                   288,486.34$           
2025 70,189.39$         176,835.98$      15,854.55$                 26,539.68$                             -$                   289,419.60$           
2026 74,318.18$         173,238.79$      15,503.60$                 27,070.47$                             -$                   290,131.04$           
2027 78,446.97$         169,429.98$      15,132.01$                 27,611.88$                             -$                   290,620.84$           
2028 82,575.76$         165,409.56$      14,739.77$                 28,164.12$                             -$                   290,889.21$           
2029 86,704.55$         161,177.56$      14,326.89$                 28,727.40$                             -$                   290,936.40$           
2030 94,962.12$         156,300.43$      10,755.49$                 29,301.95$                             -$                   291,320.00$           
2031 99,090.91$         150,958.81$      -$                              29,887.99$                             -$                   279,937.70$           
2032 103,219.70$      145,384.94$      -$                              30,485.75$                             -$                   279,090.39$           
2033 111,477.27$      139,578.84$      -$                              31,095.46$                             -$                   282,151.58$           
2034 115,606.06$      133,308.24$      -$                              31,717.37$                             -$                   280,631.67$           
2035 123,863.64$      126,805.40$      -$                              32,351.72$                             -$                   283,020.75$           
2036 127,992.42$      119,838.07$      -$                              32,998.75$                             -$                   280,829.24$           
2037 136,250.00$      112,638.50$      -$                              33,658.73$                             -$                   282,547.23$           
2038 144,507.58$      104,974.43$      -$                              34,331.90$                             -$                   283,813.91$           
2039 152,765.15$      96,845.89$        -$                              35,018.54$                             -$                   284,629.58$           
2040 161,022.73$      88,252.84$        -$                              35,718.91$                             -$                   284,994.48$           
2041 169,280.30$      79,195.32$        -$                              36,433.29$                             -$                   284,908.91$           
2042 177,537.88$      69,673.30$        -$                              37,161.95$                             -$                   284,373.13$           
2043 189,924.24$      59,686.80$        -$                              37,905.19$                             -$                   287,516.23$           
2044 202,310.61$      49,003.56$        -$                              38,663.30$                             -$                   289,977.46$           
2045 210,568.18$      37,623.58$        -$                              39,436.56$                             -$                   287,628.33$           
2046 222,954.55$      25,779.13$        -$                              40,225.30$                             -$                   288,958.97$           
2047 235,340.91$      13,237.93$        -$                              41,029.80$                             (251,314.17)$   38,294.48$             

3,410,378.79$   3,294,261.90$   152,827.08$               866,591.89$                           (251,314.17)$   7,472,745.50$       

Improvement Area #1 Annual Installments



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           61 

 

   

EXHIBIT G-1 –IMPROVEMENT AREA #2 ASSESSMENT ROLL 

 

 

Parcel ID
Improvement 

Area
Lot Type

Outstanding 
Assessment

Installment Due 
1/31/21

732775 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732776 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732777 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732778 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732779 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732780 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732781 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732782 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732783 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732784 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732785 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732786 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732787 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732788 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732789 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732790 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732791 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732792 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732793 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732794 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732795 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732796 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732797 IA #2 Residential 31,287.88$          2,608.75$            
732798 IA #2 Non-Benefitted Property -$                       -$                      
732799 IA #2 Non-Benefitted Property -$                       -$                      
732800 IA #2 Non-Benefitted Property -$                       -$                      

719,621.21$        60,001.20$          Total



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           62 

 

   

EXHIBIT G-2 –IMPROVEMENT AREA #2 ANNUAL INSTALLMENTS 

    

Installment 
Due 1/31

Principal Interest
Additional 

Interest
Administrative 

Expenses
Reserve Fund Total Installment

2021 11,325.76$         39,903.69$          3,598.11$             5,173.64$               -$                       60,001.20$               
2022 12,196.97$         39,323.25$          3,541.48$             5,277.11$               -$                       60,338.81$               
2023 13,068.18$         38,698.16$          3,480.49$             5,382.66$               -$                       60,629.49$               
2024 13,939.39$         38,028.41$          3,415.15$             5,490.31$               -$                       60,873.26$               
2025 14,810.61$         37,314.02$          3,345.45$             5,600.12$               -$                       61,070.19$               
2026 15,681.82$         36,554.97$          3,271.40$             5,712.12$               -$                       61,220.31$               
2027 16,553.03$         35,751.28$          3,192.99$             5,826.36$               -$                       61,323.66$               
2028 17,424.24$         34,902.94$          3,110.23$             5,942.89$               -$                       61,380.29$               
2029 18,295.45$         34,009.94$          3,023.11$             6,061.74$               -$                       61,390.25$               
2030 20,037.88$         32,980.83$          2,269.51$             6,182.98$               -$                       61,471.19$               
2031 20,909.09$         31,853.69$          -$                       6,306.64$               -$                       59,069.42$               
2032 21,780.30$         30,677.56$          -$                       6,432.77$               -$                       58,890.63$               
2033 23,522.73$         29,452.42$          -$                       6,561.43$               -$                       59,536.57$               
2034 24,393.94$         28,129.26$          -$                       6,692.66$               -$                       59,215.86$               
2035 26,136.36$         26,757.10$          -$                       6,826.51$               -$                       59,719.98$               
2036 27,007.58$         25,286.93$          -$                       6,963.04$               -$                       59,257.55$               
2037 28,750.00$         23,767.76$          -$                       7,102.30$               -$                       59,620.06$               
2038 30,492.42$         22,150.57$          -$                       7,244.35$               -$                       59,887.34$               
2039 32,234.85$         20,435.37$          -$                       7,389.23$               -$                       60,059.45$               
2040 33,977.27$         18,622.16$          -$                       7,537.02$               -$                       60,136.45$               
2041 35,719.70$         16,710.94$          -$                       7,687.76$               -$                       60,118.39$               
2042 37,462.12$         14,701.70$          -$                       7,841.51$               -$                       60,005.34$               
2043 40,075.76$         12,594.46$          -$                       7,998.34$               -$                       60,668.56$               
2044 42,689.39$         10,340.20$          -$                       8,158.31$               -$                       61,187.91$               
2045 44,431.82$         7,938.92$            -$                       8,321.48$               -$                       60,692.22$               
2046 47,045.45$         5,439.63$            -$                       8,487.91$               -$                       60,972.99$               
2047 49,659.09$         2,793.33$            -$                       8,657.66$               (53,029.59)$          8,080.49$                 
Total 719,621.21$      695,119.48$        32,247.92$          182,858.84$           (53,029.59)$          1,576,817.86$         

Improvement Area #2 Annual Installments



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           63 

 

   

EXHIBIT H – FORM OF NOTICE OF PID ASSESSMENT TERMINATION 

  P3Works, LLC 
 350 Rufe Snow Drive, Suite 200 

   Keller, TX 76248 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
[Date] 
Denton County Clerk’s Office 
Honorable [County Clerk] 
1450 E McKinney St 
Denton, TX 76209 
 
Re:   Town of Hickory Creek Lien Release documents for filing 
 
 
Dear Ms./Mr. [County Clerk], 
 
Enclosed is a lien release that the Town of Hickory Creek is requesting to be filed in your office. 
Lien release for [insert legal description]. Recording Numbers: [Plat]. Please forward copies of the 
filed documents to my attention: 
 
Town of Hickory Creek 
Attn: [Town Secretary] 
1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue 
Hickory Creek, TX 75065 
 
Please contact me if you have any questions or need additional information. 
 
Sincerely, 
[Signature] 
 
 
P3Works, LLC 
(817) 393-0353 
Admin@P3-Works.com 
www.P3-Works.com  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           64 

 

   

AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
 
[Town Secretary Name] 
1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue 
Hickory Creek, TX 75065 
 
NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON, YOU 
MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING INFORMATION FROM 
ANY INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN REAL PROPERTY BEFORE 
IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY 
NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S LICENSE NUMBER. 
 
 

FULL RELEASE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT LIEN 
 
 
  
STATE OF TEXAS   § 

§ NOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
COUNTY OF DENTON  § 
 

THIS FULL RELEASE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT LIEN (this "Full 
Release") is executed and delivered as of the Effective Date by the Town of Hickory Creek Texas, a 
Texas general law municipality. 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the governing body (hereinafter referred to as the "Town Council") of the Town 
of Hickory Creek Texas (hereinafter referred to as the "Town"), is authorized by Chapter 372, Texas 
Local Government Code, as amended (hereinafter referred to as the "Act"), to create public 
improvement districts within the corporate limits of the Town; and 
 

WHEREAS, on September 18, 2012, the Town Council for the Town, approved Resolution 
No. 1012-0919-1, creating Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 2; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 2 consists of approximately 
111.424 contiguous acres within the corporate limits of the Town; and 
 

WHEREAS, on October 16, 2012 the Town Council approved Ordinance No. __________, 
(hereinafter referred to as the "Assessment Ordinance") approving a service and assessment plan and 
assessment roll for the Property within Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 2; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Assessment Ordinance imposed an assessment (the “Lien”) in the amount of 
[amount] (hereinafter referred to as the "Lien Amount") for the following property: 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           65 

 

   

[legal description], a subdivision in Denton County, Texas, according to the map or plat of record in 
Document/Instrument No. ________ of the Plat Records of Denton County, Texas (hereinafter referred 
to as the "Property"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the property owners of the Property have paid unto the Town the Lien Amount. 
 

RELEASE 
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Town, the owner and holder of the Lien, Instrument No. ________, in the 
Real Property Records of Denton County, Texas, in the amount of the Lien Amount against the 
Property releases and discharges, and by these presents does hereby release and discharge, the above-
described Property from said Lien held by the undersigned securing said indebtedness. 
 
EXECUTED to be EFFECTIVE this the _____ day of _________, 20__. 
 
 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS, 
A Texas general law municipality, 

 
 

By: _______________________________ 
[Manager Name], Town Administrator 

 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________  
[Secretary Name], Town Secretary 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 

§ 
COUNTY OF DENTON  § 
 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of ________, 20__, by [Town 
Manager], Town Administrator for the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, a Texas general law 
municipality, on behalf of said municipality. 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           66 

 

   

EXHIBIT I – HOMEBUYER DISCLOSURE 

NOTICE OF OBLIGATION TO PAY 
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ASSESSMENTS 

TO THE TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
 

CONCERNING THE PROPERTY AT: 

_____________________________________ 
STREET ADDRESS 

PRINCIPAL ASSESSMENT: $31,287.88 
 
As the purchaser of the real property located at the street address set forth above, you are 
obligated to pay assessments to the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, for the costs of a portion of 
public improvements (the “Authorized Improvements”) undertaken for the benefit of the 
property within “Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 2” (the “District”) created under 
Subchapter A, Chapter 372, Local Government Code, as amended. 
 
THE PRINCIPAL ASSESSMENT AGAINST YOUR PROPERTY FOR THE AUTHORIZED 
IMPROVEMENTS IS $31,287.88, WHICH MAY BE PAID IN FULL AT ANY TIME; HOWEVER, IF NOT 
PAID IN FULL, IT WILL BE DUE AND PAYABLE IN ANNUAL INSTALLMENTS WHICH WILL VARY 
FROM YEAR TO YEAR DEPENDING ON THE AMOUNT OF INTEREST PAID, COLLECTION COSTS, 
ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS, AND DELINQUENCY COSTS.  
 
An estimate of the annual installments is attached; however, it is only an estimate and is subject 
to change. The exact amount of the annual installments, including the annual installments 
thereof, will be approved each year by the Town Council in the Annual Service Plan Update for 
the District. More information about the assessments, including the amounts and due dates, may 
be obtained from the Town Secretary of the Town of Hickory Creek. 
 
Your failure to pay any assessment, or any annual installment thereof, may result in penalties 
and interest being added to what you owe and could result in a lien on and the foreclosure of 
your property. 
 
The undersigned purchaser acknowledges receipt of the foregoing notice prior to the effective 
date of a binding contract for the purchase of the real property at the street address set forth 
above.  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           67 

 

   

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed this certificate this ____________, 20__. 

PURCHASER: 
 
 
By:       ____  By:       _____ 
 
Name:  ____________________________  Name:  _____________________________ 
 
Title:    _____________________________   Title:    ______________________________ 
 

 
 
STATE OF TEXAS § 
 § 
COUNTY OF DENTON § 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by ______________________, 
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that he or she executed the same for the purposes therein expressed, in the 
capacity stated and as the act and deed of the above-referenced entities as an authorized signatory 
of said entities. 

 
Given under my hand and seal of office on this _________________, 20__. 

 
 
 __________________________________________ 
 Notary Public, State of Texas 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
 § 
COUNTY OF DENTON § 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me by ______________________, 
known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and 
acknowledged to me that he or she executed the same for the purposes therein expressed, in the 
capacity stated and as the act and deed of the above-referenced entities as an authorized signatory 
of said entities. 

 
Given under my hand and seal of office on this _________________, 20__. 

 
 __________________________________________

 Notary Public, State of Texas 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           68 

 

   

 
  

Installment Due 
1/31

Principal Interest
Additional 

Interest
Administrative 

Expenses
Reserve Fund

Total 
Installment

2021 492.42$            1,734.94$        156.44$             224.94$                -$                        2,608.75$           
2022 530.30$            1,709.71$        153.98$             229.44$                -$                        2,623.43$           
2023 568.18$            1,682.53$        151.33$             234.03$                -$                        2,636.06$           
2024 606.06$            1,653.41$        148.48$             238.71$                -$                        2,646.66$           
2025 643.94$            1,622.35$        145.45$             243.48$                -$                        2,655.23$           
2026 681.82$            1,589.35$        142.23$             248.35$                -$                        2,661.75$           
2027 719.70$            1,554.40$        138.83$             253.32$                -$                        2,666.25$           
2028 757.58$            1,517.52$        135.23$             258.39$                -$                        2,668.71$           
2029 795.45$            1,478.69$        131.44$             263.55$                -$                        2,669.14$           
2030 871.21$            1,433.95$        98.67$               268.83$                -$                        2,672.66$           
2031 909.09$            1,384.94$        -$                   274.20$                -$                        2,568.24$           
2032 946.97$            1,333.81$        -$                   279.69$                -$                        2,560.46$           
2033 1,022.73$         1,280.54$        -$                   285.28$                -$                        2,588.55$           
2034 1,060.61$         1,223.01$        -$                   290.99$                -$                        2,574.60$           
2035 1,136.36$         1,163.35$        -$                   296.80$                -$                        2,596.52$           
2036 1,174.24$         1,099.43$        -$                   302.74$                -$                        2,576.42$           
2037 1,250.00$         1,033.38$        -$                   308.80$                -$                        2,592.18$           
2038 1,325.76$         963.07$           -$                   314.97$                -$                        2,603.80$           
2039 1,401.52$         888.49$           -$                   321.27$                -$                        2,611.28$           
2040 1,477.27$         809.66$           -$                   327.70$                -$                        2,614.63$           
2041 1,553.03$         726.56$           -$                   334.25$                -$                        2,613.84$           
2042 1,628.79$         639.20$           -$                   340.94$                -$                        2,608.93$           
2043 1,742.42$         547.59$           -$                   347.75$                -$                        2,637.76$           
2044 1,856.06$         449.57$           -$                   354.71$                -$                        2,660.34$           
2045 1,931.82$         345.17$           -$                   361.80$                -$                        2,638.79$           
2046 2,045.45$         236.51$           -$                   369.04$                -$                        2,651.00$           
2047 2,159.09$         121.45$           -$                   376.42$                (2,305.63)$             351.33$              
Total 31,287.88$      30,222.59$      1,402.08$         7,950.38$             (2,305.63)$            68,557.30$        

Annual Installments per Lot

Note: Figures shown above are estimates only and subject to change in Annual Service Plan Updates. Changes in administrative 
expenses, interest earnings or other available offsets could increase or decrease the amounts shown.



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           69 

 

   

EXHIBIT J – DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE FOR BONDS 

 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           70 

 

   

EXHIBIT K – LANDOWNER CONSENT FORMS 

LANDOWNER AGREEMENT 
 

 This LANDOWNER AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), is entered into as of February 
24, 2020, between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas (the “Town”), a Type A General Law 
municipality of the State of Texas (the “State”), and CTMGT Turbeville, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company (the “Landowner”). 

 
RECITALS: 

 
 WHEREAS, capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meanings given 
to them in the Service and Assessment Plan (as defined herein); and 
 

WHEREAS, Landowner owns the Assessed Parcels described by a metes and bounds 
description attached as Exhibit I to this Agreement and which is incorporated herein for all 
purposes, comprising all of the non-exempt, privately-owned land described in Exhibit I (the 
“Landowner’s Parcel”) which is located within Improvement Area #1 of the Hickory Creek Public 
Improvement District No. 2 (the “District”) in the Town; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council has adopted an assessment ordinance for the Authorized 
Improvements (including all exhibits and attachments thereto, the “Improvement Area #1 
Assessment Ordinance”) and the Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 2 2020 
Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan for the District as updated and amended (the 
“Service and Assessment Plan”) and which is incorporated herein for all purposes, and has levied 
an assessment on each Assessed Parcel in Improvement Area #1 of the District, as such as 
Assessments have been reallocated to the Landowner’s Parcel pursuant to the Service and 
Assessment Plan, that will be pledged for the payment of certain infrastructure improvements and 
to pay the costs of constructing the Authorized Improvements that will benefit the Improvement 
Area #1 Assessed Property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions attached to this 
Agreement as Exhibit II and which are incorporated herein for all purposes includes the statutory 
notification required by Texas Property Code, Section 5.014, as amended, to be provided by the 
seller of residential property that is located in a public improvement district established under 
Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended (the “PID Act”), to the purchaser. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, 
obligations and benefits hereinafter set forth, the Town and the Landowner hereby contract, 
covenant and agree as follows: 
 

DEFINITIONS; APPROVAL OF AGREEMENTS 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           71 

 

   

 
 Definitions.  Capitalized terms used but not defined herein (including each exhibit hereto) 
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Service and Assessment Plan. 
 
 Affirmation of Recitals.  The findings set forth in the Recitals of this Agreement are hereby 
incorporated as the official findings of the Town Council. 

 
I. 

AGREEMENTS OF LANDOWNER 
 

A. Affirmation and Acceptance of Agreements and Findings of Benefit.  Landowner 
hereby ratifies, confirms, accepts, agrees to, and approves: 

(i) the creation and boundaries of the District, and the boundaries of the 
Landowner’s Parcel and the location and development of the Authorized Improvements on 
the Landowner’s Parcel and on the property within the Improvement Area #1 of the 
District; 

(ii) the determinations and findings as to the benefits by the Town Council in 
the Service and Assessment Plan and the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance; 

(iii) the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance and the Service and 
Assessment Plan. 
B. Acceptance and Approval of Assessments and Lien on Property.  Landowner 

consents to, agrees to, acknowledges and accepts the following: 
(i) each Assessment levied by the Town on each Landowner’s Parcel within 

Improvement Area #1 of the District as shown on the assessment roll attached as Exhibit 
F-1 to the Service and Assessment Plan (the “Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll”); 

(ii) the Authorized Improvements specially benefit Improvement Area #1 of the 
District, and the Landowner’s Parcel, in an amount at least equal to the Assessment levied 
on each Assessed Parcel within Improvement Area #1 of the District, as such Assessment 
is shown on the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll; 

(iii) each Assessment is final, conclusive and binding upon Landowner and any 
subsequent owner of an Assessed Parcel, regardless of whether such landowner may be 
required to prepay a portion of, or the entirety of, such Assessment upon the occurrence of 
a mandatory prepayment event as provided in the Service and Assessment Plan; 

(iv) the obligation to pay the Assessment levied on the Assessed Parcel(s) 
owned by it when due and in the amount required by and stated in the Service and 
Assessment Plan and the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance; 

(v) each Assessment or reassessment, with interest, the expense of collection, 
and reasonable attorney’s fees, if incurred, is a first and prior lien against the Landowner’s 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           72 

 

   

Parcel, superior to all other liens and monetary claims except liens or monetary claims for 
state, county, school district, or municipal ad valorem taxes, and is a personal liability of 
and charge against the owner of the Landowner’s Parcel regardless of whether such owner 
is named; 

(vi) the Assessment lien on each Assessed Parcel is a lien and covenant that runs 
with the land and is effective from the date of the Improvement Area #1 Assessment 
Ordinance and continues until the Assessment is paid and may be enforced by the 
governing body of the Town in the same manner that an ad valorem tax lien against real 
property may be enforced by the Town; 

(vii) delinquent installments of the Assessment shall incur and accrue interest, 
penalties, and attorney’s fees as provided in the PID Act; 

(viii) the owner of an Assessed Parcel may pay at any time the entire Assessment, 
with interest that has accrued on the Assessment, on any parcel in the Landowner’s Parcel; 

(ix) the Annual Installments of the Assessments (as defined in the Service and 
Assessment Plan and Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll) may be adjusted, decreased 
and extended; and, the assessed parties shall be obligated to pay their respective revised 
amounts of the Annual Installments, when due, and without the necessity of further action, 
assessments or reassessments by the Town, the same as though they were expressly set 
forth herein; and 

(x) Landowner has received, or hereby waives, all notices required to be 
provided to it under Texas law, including the PID Act, prior to the Effective Date (defined 
herein). 
C. Mandatory Prepayment of Assessments.  Landowner agrees and acknowledges that 

Landowner or subsequent landowners may have an obligation to prepay an Assessment upon the 
occurrence of a mandatory prepayment event, at the sole discretion of the Town and as provided 
in the Service and Assessment Plan, as amended or updated. 

D. Notice of Assessments.  Landowner further agrees as follows: 
(i) the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions attached hereto 

as Exhibit II shall be terms, conditions and provisions running with the Landowner’s 
Parcel and shall be recorded (the contents of which shall be consistent with the 
Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance and the Service and Assessment Plan as 
reasonably determined by the Town), in the records of the County Clerk of Denton County, 
as a lien and encumbrance against such Landowner’s Parcel, and Landowner hereby 
authorizes the Town to so record such documents against the Landowner’s Parcels owned 
by Landowner; 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           73 

 

   

(ii) reference to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions in 
the form attached hereto as Exhibit II shall be included on all recordable subdivision plats 
and such plats shall be recorded in the real property records of Denton County, Texas; 

(iii) in the event of any subdivision, sale, transfer or other conveyance by the 
Landowner of the right, title or interest of the Landowner in the Landowner’s Parcel or any 
part thereof, the Landowner’s Parcel, or any such part thereof, shall continue to be bound 
by all of the terms, conditions and provisions of such Declaration of Covenants, Conditions 
and Restrictions and any purchaser, transferee or other subsequent owner shall take such 
Assessed Parcel(s) subject to all of the terms, conditions and provisions of such Declaration 
of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions; and  

(iv) Landowner shall comply with, and shall contractually obligate (and 
promptly provide written evidence of such contractual provisions to the Town) any party 
who purchases any Assessed Parcel owned by Landowner, or any portion thereof, for the 
purpose of constructing residential properties that are eligible for “homestead” 
designations under State law, to comply with, the Homebuyer Education Program 
described on Exhibit III to this Agreement.  Such compliance obligation shall terminate 
as to each Lot if, and when, (i) a final certificate of occupancy for a residential unit on such 
Lot is issued by the Town, and (ii) there is a sale of a Lot to an individual homebuyer, it 
being the intent of the undersigned that the Homebuyer Education Program shall apply 
only to a commercial builder who is in the business of constructing and/or selling 
residences to individual home buyers (a “Builder”) but not to subsequent sales of such 
residence and Lot by an individual home buyer after the initial sale by a Builder. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Section, upon the Landowner’s request and the 
Town’s consent, in the Town’s sole and absolute discretion, the Declaration of Covenants, 
Conditions and Restrictions may be included with other written restrictions running with the land 
on property within the District, provided they contain all the material provisions and provide the 
same material notice to prospective property owners as does the document attached as Exhibit II. 

. 
II. 

OWNERSHIP AND CONSTRUCTION OF 
AUTHORIZED IMPROVEMENTS 

 
A. Ownership and Transfer of Authorized Improvements.  Landowner acknowledges 

that the portion of the Authorized Improvements benefitting the Landowner’s Parcel and the land 
(or easements, as applicable) needed therefor shall be owned by the Town as constructed and/or 
conveyed to the Town and Landowner will execute such conveyances and/or dedications of public 
rights of way and easements as may be reasonably required to evidence such ownership, as 
generally described on the current plats of the property within the District. 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           74 

 

   

B. Grant of Easement and License, Construction of Authorized Improvements. 
(i) Any subsequent owner of the Landowner’s Parcel shall, upon the request of 

the Town or Developer, grant and convey to the Town or Developer and its contractors, 
materialmen and workmen a temporary license and/or easement, as appropriate, to 
construct the Authorized Improvements on the Landowner’s Parcel within Improvement 
Area #1 of the District, to stage on the Landowner’s Parcel within Improvement Area #1 
of the District construction trailers, building materials and equipment to be used in 
connection with such construction of the Authorized Improvements and for passage and 
use over and across parts of the property within Improvement Area #1 of the District as 
shall be reasonably necessary during the construction of the Authorized Improvements. 
Any subsequent owner of an Assessed Parcel may require that each contractor constructing 
the Authorized Improvements cause such owner of an Assessed Parcel to be indemnified 
and/or named as an additional insured under liability insurance reasonably acceptable to 
such owner of an Assessed Parcel.  The right to use and enjoy any easement and license 
provided above shall continue until the construction of the Authorized Improvements is 
complete; provided, however, any such license or easement shall automatically terminate 
upon the recording of the final plat for the Landowner’s Parcel in the real property records 
of Denton County, Texas. 

(ii) Landowner hereby agrees that any right or condition imposed by any 
agreement with respect to the Assessments has been satisfied, and that Landowner shall 
not have any rights or remedies against the Town under any law or principles of equity 
concerning the Assessments, with respect to the formation of the District, approval of the 
Service and Assessment Plan and the Town’s levy and collection of the Assessments. 

III. 
COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES; MISCELLANEOUS 

 
A. Special Covenants and Warranties of Landowner. 

Landowner represents and warrants to the Town as follows: 
 
(i) Landowner is duly organized, validly existing and, as applicable, in good 

standing under the laws of the state of its organization and has the full right, power and 
authority to enter into this Agreement, and to perform all the obligations required to be 
performed by Landowner hereunder. 

(ii) This Agreement has been duly and validly executed and delivered by, and 
on behalf of, Landowner and, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery 
thereof by and on behalf of the Town and the Landowner, constitutes a valid, binding and 
enforceable obligation of such party enforceable in accordance with its terms.  This 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           75 

 

   

representation and warranty is qualified to the extent the enforceability of this Agreement 
may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium, reorganization or other 
similar laws of general application affecting the rights of creditors in general. 

(iii) Neither the execution and delivery hereof, nor the taking of any actions 
contemplated hereby, will conflict with or result in a breach of any of the provisions of, or 
constitute a default, event of default or event creating a right of acceleration, termination 
or cancellation of any obligation under, any instrument, note, mortgage, contract, 
judgment, order, award, decree or other agreement or restriction to which Landowner is a 
party, or by which Landowner or Landowner’s Parcel is otherwise bound. 

(iv) Landowner is, subject to all matters of record in the Denton County, Texas 
Real Property Records, the sole owner of the Landowner’s Parcel. 

(v) The Landowner’s Parcel owned by Landowner is not subject to, or 
encumbered by, any covenant, lien, encumbrance or agreement which would prohibit (i) 
the creation of the District, (ii) the levy of the Assessments, or (iii) the construction of the 
Authorized Improvements on those portions of the property within Improvement Area #1 
of the District which are to be owned by the Town, as generally described on the current 
plats of the property within the District (or, if subject to any such prohibition, the approval 
or consent of all necessary parties thereto has been obtained). 

(vi) Landowner covenants and agrees to execute any and all documents 
necessary, appropriate or incidental to the purposes of this Agreement, as long as such 
documents are consistent with this Agreement and do not create additional liability of any 
type to, or reduce the rights of, such Landowner by virtue of execution thereof. 
B. Waiver of Claims Concerning Authorized Improvements.  The Landowner, with 

full knowledge of the provisions, and the rights thereof pursuant to such provisions, of applicable 
law, waives any claims against the Town and its successors, assigns and agents, pertaining to the 
installation of the Authorized Improvements on the Landowner’s Parcel. 

C. Notices. 
Any notice or other communication to be given to the Town or Landowner under 

this Agreement shall be given by delivering the same in writing to: 
 
 
 
 
 To the Town:  Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 

     Attn:  Town Administrator 
 1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue 
 Hickory Creek, Texas 75065 
 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           76 

 

   

  With a copy to:  Town Attorney  
 Attn: Lance Vanzant 
 1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue 
 Hickory Creek, Texas 75065 
  

   
  To the Landowner: CTMGT Turbeville, LLC 
     Attn:  Mehrdad Moayedi 

1800 Valley View Lane, Suite 360 
     Farmers Branch, Texas 75234 
 
   With a copy to: Miklos Cinclair, PLLC 
     Attn:  Robert Miklos 

1800 Valley View Lane, Suite 360 
     Farmers Branch, Texas 75234  

    

Any notice sent under this Agreement (except as otherwise expressly required) shall be 
written and mailed, or sent by electronic or facsimile transmission confirmed by mailing written 
confirmation at substantially the same time as such electronic or facsimile transmission, or 
personally delivered to an officer of the recipient as the address set forth herein. 

 
Each recipient may change its address by written notice in accordance with this Section.  

Any communication addressed and mailed in accordance with this provision shall be deemed to 
be given when so mailed, any notice so sent by electronic or facsimile transmission shall be 
deemed to be given when receipt of such transmission is acknowledged, and any communication 
so delivered in person shall be deemed to be given when receipted for, or actually received by, the 
addressee.   
 

D. Parties in Interest. 
This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the Town and the Landowner and is not 

assignable, except, in the case of Landowner, in connection with the sale or disposition of all or 
substantially all of the parcels which constitute the Landowner’s Parcel.  However, the parties 
expressly agree and acknowledge that the Town, the Landowner, each current owner of any parcel 
which constitutes the Landowner’s Parcel, and the holders of or trustee for any bonds secured by 
Improvement Area #1 Assessment revenues of the Town or any part thereof to finance the costs 
of the Authorized Improvements, are express beneficiaries of this Agreement and shall be entitled 
to pursue any and all remedies at law or in equity to enforce the obligations of the parties hereto.  
This Agreement shall be recorded in the real property records of Denton County, Texas. 

 
E. Amendments. 
This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument executed by the Town and 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           77 

 

   

the Landowner.  No termination or amendment shall be effective until a written instrument setting 
forth the terms thereof has been executed by the then-current owners of the property within the 
District and recorded in the Real Property Records of Denton County, Texas. 

 
F. Effective Date. 
This Agreement shall become and be effective (the “Effective Date”) upon the date of final 

execution by the latter of the Town and the Landowner and shall be valid and enforceable on said 
date and thereafter. 

 
G. Estoppels. 
Within 10 days after written request from a party hereto, the other party shall provide a 

written certification, indicating whether this Agreement remains in effect as to an Assessed Parcel, 
and whether any party is then in default hereunder. 

 
H. Termination. 
This Agreement shall terminate and be of no further force and effect as to each Assessed 

Parcel upon payment in full of the Assessment(s) against such Assessed Parcel. 
 

[Signature pages to follow]  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           78 

 

   

EXECUTED by the Town and Landowner on the respective dates stated below. 
 
Date: ___________________ TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS  
 
 By: ________________________________ 
        Lynn C. Clark, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS   § 
     § 
COUNTY OF DENTON  §  
 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on the _______ day of February, 2020 by 
Lynn C. Clark, Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas on behalf of said Town. 
 
 

       
Notary Public, State of Texas 

(SEAL) 
       
Name printed or typed 
 
Commission Expires:     
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page Landowner Agreement]  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           79 

 

   

LANDOWNER    DATE:__________________________ 
 

 
 

CTMGT Turbeville, LLC, 
a Texas limited liability company 
 
By:   Centamtar Terras, LLC,  

a Texas limited liability company 
 Its Manager 
  

By:  CTMGT, LLC, 
a Texas limited liability company 

 Its Sole Manager and Member 
  

By:      
Name:  Mehrdad Moayedi   
Its: Sole Manager and Member 
 
 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on February _____, 2020 by Mehrdad 
Moayedi, the Sole Manager and Member of CTMGT, LLC, as the Sole Manager and Member of 
Centamtar Terras, LLC, as the Manager of CTMGT Turbeville, LLC a Texas limited liability 
company on behalf of said company. 

  
Notary Public, State of Texas 

 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page Landowner Agreement]  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           80 

 

   

LANDOWNER AGREEMENT - EXHIBIT I 
METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION OF LANDOWNER’S PARCEL 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION  

 
Legal Description: Lot 1R, Block A 
 
BEING a 6.72 acre tract of land situated in the M.E.P. & P.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 
Number 915, Town of Hickory Creek, Denton, Texas, and being all of that tract of land 
described as Lot 1, Block A of Steeplechase South Addition, Phase I, as recorded in 
Document Number 2012-210, of the Official Public Records of Denton County, Texas, 
(O.P.R.D.C.T.), and being part of a tract of land described as “Tract 3 - South” in Special 
Warranty Deed to CTMGT Turbeville, LLC, as recorded in Document Number 2011-
121573, (O.P.R.D.C.T.), and more particularly described as follows [The basis of bearing 
is the Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North Central Zone (4202)]("Record" bearings 
and distances cited herein are from said Special Warranty Deed to CTMGT Turbeville, 
LLC): 
 
COMMENCING at a 3/4-inch found iron pipe with yellow plastic cap stamped “HALFF” 
(hereinafter referred to as “with cap”) for the north corner of a corner clip of Lot 1X, Block 
A of said Steeplechase Addition, said corner being at the intersection of the south right-
of-way line of Turbeville Road (a variable width right-of-way, Document Number 2012-
210, O.P.R.D.C.T.) and the northeast right-of-way line of Sycamore Bend Road (a 
variable width right-of-way); 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 41 minutes 24 seconds East, with said south right-of-way line 
and the north line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 283.03 feet to a 1/2-inch found iron rod 
with cap for the POINT OF BEGINNING, said corner being the common northeast corner 
of said Lot 1X and the northwest corner of Lot 1; 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 41 minutes 24 seconds East, with said south right-of-way line 
and the north line of said Lot 1, a distance of 239.69 feet to a 3/4-inch found iron pipe with 
cap for corner; 
 
THENCE over and across said Lot 1, Block A, the following bearings and distances: 
 

South 05 degrees 48 minutes 52 seconds West, departing said south right-of-way 
line and the north line of said Lot 1, a distance of 132.35 feet to a corner, said 
corner being the point of curvature of a tangent circular curve to the left, having a 
radius of 60.50 feet, whose chord that bears South 39 degrees 11 minutes 08 
seconds East, a distance of 85.56 feet; 
 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           81 

 

   

Southeasterly, with said curve, through the central angle of 90 degrees 00 minutes 
00 seconds, an arc distance of 95.03 feet to a corner;  
 
South 84 degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds East, a distance of 135.39 feet to a 
corner, said corner being the point of curvature of a tangent circular curve to the 
left, having a radius of 80.50 feet whose chord that bears North 50 degrees 48 
minutes 52 seconds East, a distance of 113.84 feet; 
 
Northeasterly, with said curve, through the central angle of 90 degrees 00 minutes 
00 seconds, an arc distance of 126.45 feet to a corner;  

  
North 05 degrees 39 minutes 28 seconds East, a distance of 0.44 feet to a corner; 

 
South 89 degrees 12 minutes 45 seconds East, a distance of 24.53 feet to a corner 
on the common east line of said Lot 1, Block A and the west line of Lot 1, Block C 
of said Steeplechase Addition; 

 
THENCE South 05 degrees 48 minutes 52 seconds West, with the common east line of 
said Lot 1, Block A and the west line of 3, and 4, Block C of said Steeplechase Addition, 
a distance of 223.35 feet to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for a common “ell” corner of said 
Lot 1, Block A and the southwest corner of said Lot 3, Block C; 
 
THENCE South 84 degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds East, with the common south line of 
said Lot 3, Block C and the northeast line of said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 163.12 feet 
to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for an “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, said corner being 
on the west line of Lot 2, Block C; 
 
THENCE South 06 degrees 02 minutes 56 seconds West, with the common west line of 
said Lots 1 and 2, Block C and the east line of said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 172.17 
feet to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and 
said Lot 1, Block C; 
 
THENCE North 68 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds East, with the common northeast line 
of said Lot 1, Block A and the south line of said Lot 1, Block C, a distance of 82.00 feet to 
a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and said Lot 
1, Block C; 
 
THENCE North 82 degrees 39 minutes 01 second East, with the common northeast line 
of said Lot 1, Block A and the south line of said Lot 1, Block C, a distance of 149.61 feet 
to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and said 
Lot 1, Block C, said corner being on the west right-of-way line of Chestnut Lane (a 50-
foot wide right-of-way) ; 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           82 

 

   

 
THENCE South 07 degrees 20 minutes 59 second East, with the east line of said Lot 1, 
Block A and said west right-of-way line, a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2-set iron rod with 
cap for a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and Lot 36, Block B; 
 
THENCE with the south line of said Lot 1, Block A, the following bearings and distances: 
 

South 82 degrees 39 minutes 01 second West, with the north line of Lots 35 and 
36, Block B, a distance of 147.19 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
South 68 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds West, with the northwest line of Lots 32, 
33, 34 and 35, Block B, a distance of 391.56 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap 
for an “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A and Lot 1X, Block A; 
 
North 37 degrees 55 minutes 42 seconds West, with the northeast line of said Lot 
1X, a distance of 158.67 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
South 52 degrees 04 minutes 18 seconds West, with the northeast line of said Lot 
1X, a distance of 173.16 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
South 79 degrees 50 minutes 09 seconds West, with the northeast line of said Lot 
1X, a distance of 105.04 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 

THENCE with the west line of said Lot 1, Block A, and the northeast line of said Lot 1X, 
Block A, the following bearings and distances: 
 

North 10 degrees 09 minutes 51 seconds West, a distance of 139.28 feet to a 1/2-
inch set iron rod with cap for corner, said corner being the point of curvature of 
tangent circular curve to the right, having radius of 125.00 feet, whose chord bears 
North 06 degrees 31 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 71.82 feet; 
 
Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 33 degrees 23 minutes 19 
seconds, an arc distance of 72.84 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
North 23 degrees 13 minutes 28 seconds East, a distance of 92.50 feet to a 1/2-
inch set iron rod with cap for corner, said corner being the point of curvature of 
tangent circular curve to the left, having radius of 175.00 feet, whose chord bears 
North 03 degrees 49 minutes 04 seconds East, a distance of 116.29 feet; 
 
Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 38 degrees 48 minutes 47 
seconds, an arc distance of 118.55 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for 
corner; 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           83 

 

   

 
North 15 degrees 35 minutes 20 seconds West, a distance of 73.24 feet to a 1/2-
inch set iron rod with cap for corner, said corner being the point of curvature of 
tangent circular curve to the right, having radius of 30.00 feet, whose chord bears 
North 07 degrees 41 minutes 42 seconds East, a distance of 23.72 feet; 
 
Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 46 degrees 34 minutes 03 
seconds, an arc distance of 24.38 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner, 
said corner being the point of reverse curvature of non-tangent circular curve to 
the left, having radius of 50.00 feet, whose chord bears North 28 degrees 51 
minutes 21 seconds West, a distance of 86.46 feet; 
 
Northwesterly, with said curve, through a central angle of 119 degrees 40 minutes 
08 seconds, an arc distance of 104.44 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for 
corner; 
 
North 01 degree 18 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 106.76 feet to the 
POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 6.72 acres (292,752 square feet) of land, 
more or less. 

 
 

  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           84 

 

   

 
LANDOWNER AGREEMENT - EXHIBIT II 

 
DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 

 
 This DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS (as 
it may be amended from time to time, this “Declaration”) is made as of February 24, 2020 by 
CTMGT Turbeville, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (the “Landowner”). 

 
RECITALS: 

 
A. The Landowner holds record title to that portion of the real property located in Denton 

County, Texas, which is described in the attached Exhibit I (the “Landowner’s Parcel”). 
B. The Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek (the “Town Council”) upon a petition 

requesting the establishment of a public improvement district covering the property within 
the District to be known as the Hickory Creek  Public Improvement District No. 2 (the 
“District”) by the then current owners of 100% of the appraised value of the taxable real 
property and 100% of the area of all taxable real property within the area requested to be 
included in the District created such District, in accordance with the Public Improvement 
District Assessment Act, Chapter 372, Texas Local Government Code, as amended (the 
“PID Act”). 

C. The Town Council has adopted an assessment ordinance to levy assessments for certain 
public improvements (including all exhibits and attachments thereto, the “Improvement 
Area #1 Assessment Ordinance”) and the Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 
2 2020 Amended and Restated Service and Assessment Plan (as updated and amended 
from time to time, the “Service and Assessment Plan”), and has levied the assessments (the 
“Assessments”) on property in Improvement Area #1 of the District. 

D. The statutory notification required by Texas Property Code, Section 5.014, as amended, to 
be provided by the seller of residential property that is located in a public improvement 
district established under Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code, as amended, 
to the purchaser, is incorporated into this Declaration. 

DECLARATIONS: 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the Landowner hereby declares that the Landowner’s Parcel is and 
shall be subject to, and hereby imposes on the Landowner’s Parcel, the following covenants, 
conditions and restrictions: 
 
1. Acceptance and Approval of Assessments and Lien on Property: 

(a) Landowner accepts each Assessment levied on the Landowner’s Parcel owned by 
such Landowner. 

(b) The Assessment (including any reassessment, the expense of collection, and 
reasonable attorney’s fees, if incurred) is (a) a first and prior lien (the “Assessment 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           85 

 

   

Lien”) against the property assessed, superior to all other liens or claims except for 
liens or claims for state, county, school district or municipality ad valorem property 
taxes whether now or hereafter payable, and (b) a personal liability of and charge 
against the owners of the property to the extent of their ownership regardless of 
whether the owners are named.  The Assessment Lien is effective from the date of 
the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance until the Assessments are paid 
and may be enforced by the Town in the same manner as an ad valorem property 
tax levied against real property that may be enforced by the Town.  The owner of 
any assessed property may pay, at any time, the entire Assessment levied against 
any such property.  Foreclosure of an ad valorem property tax lien on property 
within Improvement Area #1 of the District will not extinguish the Assessment or 
any unpaid but not yet due Annual Installments of the Assessment, and will not 
accelerate the due date for any unpaid and not yet due Annual Installments of the 
Assessment. 
It is the clear intention of all parties to this Declaration, that the Assessments, 
including any Annual Installments of the Assessments (as such Annual Installments 
may be adjusted, decreased or extended), are covenants that run with the 
Landowner’s Parcel and specifically binds the Landowner, its successors and 
assigns. 
 
In the event of delinquency in the payment of any Annual Installment of the 
Assessment, the Town is empowered to order institution of an action in district 
court to foreclose the related Assessment Lien, to enforce personal liability against 
the owner of the real property for the Assessment, or both.  In such action the real 
property subject to the delinquent Assessment may be sold at judicial foreclosure 
sale for the amount of such delinquent property taxes and Assessment, plus 
penalties, interest and costs of collection. 
 

2. Landowner or any subsequent owner of the Landowner’s Parcel waives: 
(a) any and all defects, irregularities, illegalities or deficiencies in the proceedings 

establishing the District and levying and collecting the Assessments or the annual 
installments of the Assessments; 

(b) any and all notices and time periods provided by the PID Act including, but not 
limited to, notice of the establishment of the District and notice of public hearings 
regarding the levy of Assessments by the Town Council concerning the 
Assessments; 

(c) any and all defects, irregularities, illegalities or deficiencies in, or in the adoption 
of, the Improvement Area #1 Assessment Ordinance by the Town Council; 

(d) any and all actions and defenses against the adoption or amendment of the Service 
and Assessment Plan, the Town’s finding of a ‘special benefit’ pursuant to the PID 
Act and the Service and Assessment Plan, and the levy of the Assessments; and 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           86 

 

   

(e) any right to object to the legality of any of the Assessments or the Service and 
Assessment Plan or to any of the previous proceedings connected therewith which 
occurred prior to, or upon, the Town Council’s levy of the Assessments. 

3. Amendments:  This Declaration may be terminated or amended only by a document duly 
executed and acknowledged by the then-current owner(s) of the Landowner’s Parcel and 
the Town.  No such termination or amendment shall be effective until a written instrument 
setting forth the terms thereof has been executed by the parties by whom approval is 
required as set forth above and recorded in the real Property Records of Denton County, 
Texas. 

4. Third Party Beneficiary:  The Town is a third party beneficiary to this Declaration and 
may enforce the terms hereof. 

5. Notice to Subsequent Purchasers:  Upon the sale of a dwelling unit within the District, 
the purchaser of such property shall be provided a written notice that reads substantially 
similar to the following: 
TEXAS PROPERTY CODE SECTION 5.014 
NOTICE OF OBLIGATION TO PAY PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
ASSESSMENT TO THE TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, DENTON COUNTY, 
TEXAS CONCERNING THE PROPERTY AT [Street Address] 
As the purchaser of this parcel of real property, you are obligated to pay an assessment to 
the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, for improvement projects undertaken by a public 
improvement district under Chapter 372 of the Texas Local Government Code, as 
amended.  The assessment may be due in periodic installments. 
The amount of the assessment against your property may be paid in full at any time together 
with interest to the date of payment.  If you do not pay the assessment in full, it will be due 
and payable in annual installments (including interest and collection costs).  More 
information concerning the amount of the assessment and the due dates of that assessment 
may be obtained from the Town of Hickory Creek, 1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue, Hickory 
Creek, Texas 75065 

Your failure to pay the assessment or the annual installments could result in a lien and in 
the foreclosure of your property. 

 
Signature of Purchaser(s) ___________________________  Date: ___________________ 

 
The seller shall deliver this notice to the purchaser before the effective date of an executory 
contract binding the purchaser to purchase the property.  The notice may be given 
separately, as part of the contract during negotiations, or as part of any other notice the 
seller delivers to the purchaser.  If the notice is included as part of the executory contract 
or another notice, the title of the notice prescribed by this section, the references to the 
street address and date in the notice, and the purchaser’s signature on the notice may be 
omitted. 

  
 



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           87 

 

   

 
EXECUTED by the undersigned on the date set forth below to be effective as of the date first 
above written. 
 

 
 

CTMGT Turbeville, LLC, 
a Texas limited liability company 
 
By:   Centamtar Terras, LLC,  

a Texas limited liability company 
 Its Manager 
  

By:  CTMGT, LLC, 
a Texas limited liability company 

 Its Sole Manager and Member 
  

By:      
Name:  Mehrdad Moayedi   
Its: Sole Manager and Member 
 
 
 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 
    § 
COUNTY OF DALLAS § 
 
 This instrument was acknowledged before me on February ______, 2020 by Mehrdad 
Moayedi, the Sole Manager and Member of CTMGT, LLC, as the Sole Manager and Member of 
Centamtar Terras, LLC, as the Manager of CTMGT Turbeville, LLC a Texas limited liability 
company on behalf of said company. 

  
Notary Public, State of Texas 

 
  



 

 
 

HICKORY CREEK PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 
2020 AMENDED AND RESTATED SERVICE AND ASSESSMENT PLAN                                           88 

 

   

LANDOWNER AGREEMENT - EXHIBIT III 
 

HOMEBUYER EDUCATION PROGRAM 
 

As used in this Exhibit III, the recorded Notice of the Authorization and Establishment of the 
Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 2 and the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions 
and Restrictions in Exhibit II of this Agreement are referred to as the “Recorded Notices.” 
 
1. Any Landowner who is a Builder shall attach the Recorded Notices and the final 
Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll for such Assessed Parcel (or if the Improvement Area #1 
Assessment Roll is not available for such Assessed Parcel, then a schedule showing the maximum 
30 year payment for such Assessed Parcel) as an addendum to any residential homebuyer’s 
contract. 
2. Any Landowner who is a Builder shall provide evidence of compliance with Paragraph 1 
above, signed by such residential homebuyer, to the Town. 
3. Any Landowner who is a Builder shall prominently display signage in its model homes, if 
any, substantially in the form of the Recorded Notices. 
4. If prepared and provided by the Town, any Landowner who is a Builder shall distribute 
informational brochures about the existence and effect of the District in prospective homebuyer 
sales packets. 
5. Any Landowner who is a Builder shall include Assessments in estimated property taxes, if 
such Builder estimates monthly ownership costs for prospective homebuyers. 

 
 

 



 

 
RESOLUTION 2020-0127-____ 
  PAGE 4 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a public hearing will be conducted by the Town Council of 
Hickory Creek, Texas at 6:00 p.m. on February 24, 2020 at Hickory Creek Town Hall, 1075 Ronald 
Reagan Avenue, Hickory Creek, Texas 75065.  The public hearing will be held to consider proposed 
reallocation of assessments that have been levied against certain assessable property within the Hickory 
Creek Public Improvement District No. 2 ("District") pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 372 of the 
Texas Local Government Code, as amended (the "Act"). 
 
The boundaries of the District include approximately 111.424 acres generally located in the southeast 
quadrant of the intersection of Sycamore Bend Road and Turbeville Road within the Town of Hickory 
Creek, as more particularly described by a metes and bounds description available for public inspection at 
the office of the Town Secretary, Hickory Creek Town Hall, 1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue, Hickory 
Creek, Texas 75065.   

All written or oral objections on the proposed reallocation of assessments within the District will be 
considered at the public hearing. 
 
A copy of the proposed reallocated Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll and Improvement Area #2 
Assessment Roll relating to the District, which includes the reallocation of assessments that have already 
been levied against certain assessable parcels in the District, is available for public inspection at the office 
of the Town Secretary, Hickory Creek Town Hall, 1075 Ronald Reagan Avenue, Hickory Creek, Texas 
75065. 
 

 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

19. Consider and act on a replat of lots 1R and 2R, Block A Steeplechase South Addition, an 
8.05 acre tract being all of Lot 1, Block A of Steeplechase South Addition situated in the 
M.E.P. & P.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract No. 915, Town of Hickory Creek, Denton 
County, Texas. 

  





Item Attachment Documents: 

 

20. Reconvene a public hearing continued from November 25, 2019 on a request from 
CTMGT Turbeville LLC. to modify the zoning designation of PD – Planned Development 
on a 6.72 acre portion of an 8.0454 acre tract of land legally described as Steeplechase 
South Addition, Block A, Lot 1, and consider and act on an ordinance adopting the same. 
The property is located in the 1900 Block of Turbeville Road. 

  



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-1-____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF HICKORY CREEK,  TEXAS, 
AMENDING AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, ITS COMPREHENSIVE ZONING 
ORDINANCE, AND AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE TOWN BY 
DESIGNATING CERTAIN TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED AS AN APPROXIMATELY 
6.72 GROSS ACRES OF LAND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN 
EXH.IBIT "A", ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN; AS PD 
(PLANNED DEVELOPMENT); PROVIDING THAT SUCH TRACTS OF LAND SHALL 
BE USED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS OF THE 
COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE 
ORDINANCES OF THE TOWN; PROVIDING THAT THE ZONING MAP SHALL 
REFLECT THE PLANNED DEVELOPMENT ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION FOR 
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY; PROVIDING A PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN; PROVIDING 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS; PROVIDING A CUMULATIVE CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE SHALL BE 
DEEMED COMMITTED EACH DAY DURING OR ON WHICH A VIOLATION 
OCCURS OR CONTINUES; PROVIDING FOR THE TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK TO 
BRING SUIT IN DISTRICT COURT TO ENJOIN THE PERSON, FIRM, 
PARTNERSHIP, CORPORATION, OR ASSOCIATION FROM ENGAGING IN THE 
PROHIBITED ACTIVITY; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION; PROVIDING FOR 
ENGROSSMENT AND ENROLLMENT; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Town of Hickory Creek is a Type A General Law Municipality located in Denton 
County, Texas created in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Local Government Code 
and operating pursuant to the enabling legislation of the State of Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS, Title 7, Chapter 211.003 of the Texas Local Government Code empowers a 
municipality to, among other things, establish and amend zoning districts, classifications of land 
use, adopt a comprehensive plan to regulate the use of land and open spaces, adopt and amend 
zoning regulations, regulate population density, and regulate the use and location of buildings; and 
 
WHEREAS, the owner/representative of 6.72 gross acres of land described on Exhibit "A" 
attached hereto and incorporated herein (the "Property"), has applied for a zoning modification of 
its current zoning of PD (Planned Development) District; and 
 
WHEREAS, such application further requested an amendment to the official Zoning District Map 
of the Town in accordance with the zoning ordinance of the Town; and 
 
WHEREAS, after public notices were given, legal notices and other requirements were satisfied, 
and a public hearing was conducted, all in accordance with State law and the Comprehensive 
Zoning Ordinance of the Town, and after considering the information submitted at that public 
hearing and all other relevant information and materials, the Planning and Zoning Commission of 
the Town has forwarded to the Town Council its favorable recommendation regarding the adoption 
of the amendment to the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance as set forth in this Ordinance; and 
  



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

WHEREAS, after public notices were given, legal notices and other requirements were satisfied, 
and a public hearing was conducted, all in accordance with State law and the Comprehensive 
Zoning Ordinance of this Town, and after considering the information submitted at that public 
hearing and all other relevant information and materials, including the character of the Property 
and its suitability for particular uses and development, with a view of encouraging the most 
appropriate use of the Property, the Town Council made a finding that the rezoning approved 
hereby accomplishes such objectives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has determined that there is a necessity and need for the change 
in zoning and that the proposed change is consistent with the Comprehensive Land Use Plan of 
the Town. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1 
INCORPORATION OF PREMISES 

 
The above and foregoing premises are true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a 
part hereof for all purposes. 
 

SECTION 2 
FINDINGS 

 
After due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and the information and other materials received at the public hearing, the Town 
Council has concluded that the adoption of this Ordinance is in the best interest of the Town of 
Hickory Creek, Texas, and of the public health, safety, and welfare. 
 

SECTION 3 
REZONING 

 
The zoning ordinance of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, the same being the Town's 
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, as it exists on the date of the adoption of this Ordinance (the 
"Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance") is hereby amended in the following particulars, and all other 
articles, chapters, sections, paragraphs, sentences, definitions, phrases, and words are not amended 
but are hereby ratified and affirmed: 
 

A. The zoning of the Property hereby designates PD (Planned Development) District for 
use in accordance with the requirements of this Ordinance and all other applicable 
ordinances, rules, and regulations of the Town.  Requirements of this Ordinance are 
more specifically described and set forth in Exhibits "B" and "C", which are attached 
hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes and shall apply to the "PD" Planned 
Development unless otherwise specified in such Exhibits.  

 
B. The development standards for this Planned Development are attached hereto as 

Exhibit "B" and are incorporated herein as if copied in their entirety. Such development 
standards shall be adhered to in carrying out the development of the Property in 
accordance with this Ordinance and shall individually and collectively constitute 



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

conditions precedent to the granting of any Certificate of Occupancy and building 
permit for all structures within this Planned Development. 

 
C. A conceptual site plan for the Property is attached hereto as Exhibit "C" and 

incorporated herein as if copied in its entirety. 
 

SECTION 4 
APPLICABLE REGULATIONS 

 
Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, the Property shall be subject to the applicable 
regulations contained in the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and all other applicable and 
pertinent ordinances and regulations of the Town, including, but not limited to, the Town's 
subdivision ordinance, building codes, requirements concerning preliminary and comprehensive 
site plans, landscape plans, and tree preservation. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm, or 
corporation to make sure of said premises in some manner other than as outlined by this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 5 
ZONING MAP 

 
The Town Secretary is hereby directed to mark and indicate on the official Zoning District Map of 
the Town the zoning change herein made. 
 

SECTION 6 
CUMULATIVE 

 
This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other Ordinances and shall not repeal any of the 
provisions of such Ordinances except for those instances where there are direct conflicts with the 
provisions of this Ordinance. 
 

SECTION 7 
SAVINGS 

 
All rights and remedies of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, are expressly saved as to any and 
all violations of the provisions of any other Ordinance affecting regulations governing and 
regulating the zoning of land which have secured at the time of the effective date of this Ordinance; 
and, as to such accrued violations and all pending litigation, both civil and criminal, whether 
pending in court or not, under such Ordinances same shall not be affected by this Ordinance but 
may be prosecuted until final disposition by the courts. 

 
SECTION 8 

SEVERABILITY 
 
If any section, article, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word in this Ordinance or application 
thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid or unconstitutional by a Court of competent 
jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance, 
and the Town Council hereby declares it would have passed such remaining portions of this 
Ordinance despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

 



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

 
SECTION 9 
PENALTY 

 
It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision of this Ordinance, and any person 
violating or failing to comply with any provision hereof shall be fined, upon conviction, in an 
amount not more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00), and a separate offense shall be deemed 
committed each day during or on which a violation occurs or continues.  If the governing body of 
the Town of Hickory Creek determines that a violation of this Ordinance has occurred, the Town 
of Hickory Creek may bring suit in district court to enjoin the person, firm, partnership, 
corporation, or association from engaging in the prohibited activity. 
 

SECTION 10 
PUBLICATION 

 
The Town Secretary of the Town of Hickory Creek is hereby directed to publish the Caption, 
Penalty, and Effective Date of this Ordinance as required by Section 52.011 of the Texas Local 
Government Code. 
 

SECTION 11 
ENGROSSMENT AND ENROLLMENT 

 
The Town Secretary of the Town of Hickory Creek is hereby directed to engross and enroll this 
Ordinance by copying the exact Caption, Penalty, and Effective Date of this Ordinance in the 
minutes of the Town Council and by filing this Ordinance in the ordinance records of the Town. 
 
 

SECTION 12 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This ordinance shall become effective from and after its date of adoption and publication as 
provided by law, and it is so ordained. 
 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, 
Texas, this 27th day of January, 2020. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Lynn  C. Clark, Mayor 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Kristi K. Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Dorwin L. Sargent, III, Town Attorney 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 

 

 

 

 

 

  



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

Exhibit A 
Legal Description: Lot 1R, Block A 

 
BEING a 6.72 acre tract of land situated in the M.E.P. & P.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract 
Number 915, Town of Hickory Creek, Denton, Texas, and being all of that tract of land described 
as Lot 1, Block A of Steeplechase South Addition, Phase I, as recorded in Document Number 
2012-210, of the Official Public Records of Denton County, Texas, (O.P.R.D.C.T.), and being part 
of a tract of land described as “Tract 3 - South” in Special Warranty Deed to CTMGT Turbeville, 
LLC, as recorded in Document Number 2011-121573, (O.P.R.D.C.T.), and more particularly 
described as follows [The basis of bearing is the Texas Coordinate System of 1983, North Central 
Zone (4202)]("Record" bearings and distances cited herein are from said Special Warranty Deed 
to CTMGT Turbeville, LLC): 
 
COMMENCING at a 3/4-inch found iron pipe with yellow plastic cap stamped “HALFF” 
(hereinafter referred to as “with cap”) for the north corner of a corner clip of Lot 1X, Block A of 
said Steeplechase Addition, said corner being at the intersection of the south right-of-way line of 
Turbeville Road (a variable width right-of-way, Document Number 2012-210, O.P.R.D.C.T.) and 
the northeast right-of-way line of Sycamore Bend Road (a variable width right-of-way); 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 41 minutes 24 seconds East, with said south right-of-way line and the 
north line of said Lot 1X, a distance of 283.03 feet to a 1/2-inch found iron rod with cap for the 
POINT OF BEGINNING, said corner being the common northeast corner of said Lot 1X and the 
northwest corner of Lot 1; 
 
THENCE South 88 degrees 41 minutes 24 seconds East, with said south right-of-way line and the 
north line of said Lot 1, a distance of 239.69 feet to a 3/4-inch found iron pipe with cap for corner; 
 
THENCE over and across said Lot 1, Block A, the following bearings and distances: 
 

South 05 degrees 48 minutes 52 seconds West, departing said south right-of-way line and 
the north line of said Lot 1, a distance of 132.35 feet to a corner, said corner being the point 
of curvature of a tangent circular curve to the left, having a radius of 60.50 feet, whose 
chord that bears South 39 degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds East, a distance of 85.56 feet; 
 
Southeasterly, with said curve, through the central angle of 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 
seconds, an arc distance of 95.03 feet to a corner;  
 
South 84 degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds East, a distance of 135.39 feet to a corner, said 
corner being the point of curvature of a tangent circular curve to the left, having a radius 
of 80.50 feet whose chord that bears North 50 degrees 48 minutes 52 seconds East, a 
distance of 113.84 feet; 
 
Northeasterly, with said curve, through the central angle of 90 degrees 00 minutes 00 
seconds, an arc distance of 126.45 feet to a corner;  

  
North 05 degrees 39 minutes 28 seconds East, a distance of 0.44 feet to a corner; 

 



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

South 89 degrees 12 minutes 45 seconds East, a distance of 24.53 feet to a corner on the 
common east line of said Lot 1, Block A and the west line of Lot 1, Block C of said 
Steeplechase Addition; 

 
THENCE South 05 degrees 48 minutes 52 seconds West, with the common east line of said Lot 
1, Block A and the west line of 3, and 4, Block C of said Steeplechase Addition, a distance of 
223.35 feet to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A and the 
southwest corner of said Lot 3, Block C; 
 
THENCE South 84 degrees 11 minutes 08 seconds East, with the common south line of said Lot 
3, Block C and the northeast line of said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 163.12 feet to a 1/2-set iron 
rod with cap for an “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, said corner being on the west line of Lot 
2, Block C; 
 
THENCE South 06 degrees 02 minutes 56 seconds West, with the common west line of said Lots 
1 and 2, Block C and the east line of said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 172.17 feet to a 1/2-set iron 
rod with cap for a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and said Lot 1, Block C; 
 
THENCE North 68 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds East, with the common northeast line of said 
Lot 1, Block A and the south line of said Lot 1, Block C, a distance of 82.00 feet to a 1/2-set iron 
rod with cap for a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and said Lot 1, Block C; 
 
THENCE North 82 degrees 39 minutes 01 second East, with the common northeast line of said 
Lot 1, Block A and the south line of said Lot 1, Block C, a distance of 149.61 feet to a 1/2-set iron 
rod with cap for a common “ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and said Lot 1, Block C, said corner 
being on the west right-of-way line of Chestnut Lane (a 50-foot wide right-of-way) ; 
 
THENCE South 07 degrees 20 minutes 59 second East, with the east line of said Lot 1, Block A 
and said west right-of-way line, a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2-set iron rod with cap for a common 
“ell” corner of said Lot 1, Block A, and Lot 36, Block B; 
 
THENCE with the south line of said Lot 1, Block A, the following bearings and distances: 
 

South 82 degrees 39 minutes 01 second West, with the north line of Lots 35 and 36, Block 
B, a distance of 147.19 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
South 68 degrees 52 minutes 41 seconds West, with the northwest line of Lots 32, 33, 34 
and 35, Block B, a distance of 391.56 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for an “ell” 
corner of said Lot 1, Block A and Lot 1X, Block A; 
 
North 37 degrees 55 minutes 42 seconds West, with the northeast line of said Lot 1X, a 
distance of 158.67 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
South 52 degrees 04 minutes 18 seconds West, with the northeast line of said Lot 1X, a 
distance of 173.16 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
South 79 degrees 50 minutes 09 seconds West, with the northeast line of said Lot 1X, a 
distance of 105.04 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

THENCE with the west line of said Lot 1, Block A, and the northeast line of said Lot 1X, Block 
A, the following bearings and distances: 
 

North 10 degrees 09 minutes 51 seconds West, a distance of 139.28 feet to a 1/2-inch set 
iron rod with cap for corner, said corner being the point of curvature of tangent circular 
curve to the right, having radius of 125.00 feet, whose chord bears North 06 degrees 31 
minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 71.82 feet; 
 
Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 33 degrees 23 minutes 19 seconds, 
an arc distance of 72.84 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
North 23 degrees 13 minutes 28 seconds East, a distance of 92.50 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron 
rod with cap for corner, said corner being the point of curvature of tangent circular curve 
to the left, having radius of 175.00 feet, whose chord bears North 03 degrees 49 minutes 
04 seconds East, a distance of 116.29 feet; 
 
Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 38 degrees 48 minutes 47 seconds, 
an arc distance of 118.55 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
North 15 degrees 35 minutes 20 seconds West, a distance of 73.24 feet to a 1/2-inch set 
iron rod with cap for corner, said corner being the point of curvature of tangent circular 
curve to the right, having radius of 30.00 feet, whose chord bears North 07 degrees 41 
minutes 42 seconds East, a distance of 23.72 feet; 
 
Northerly, with said curve, through a central angle of 46 degrees 34 minutes 03 seconds, 
an arc distance of 24.38 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner, said corner being 
the point of reverse curvature of non-tangent circular curve to the left, having radius of 
50.00 feet, whose chord bears North 28 degrees 51 minutes 21 seconds West, a distance of 
86.46 feet; 
 
Northwesterly, with said curve, through a central angle of 119 degrees 40 minutes 08 
seconds, an arc distance of 104.44 feet to a 1/2-inch set iron rod with cap for corner; 
 
North 01 degree 18 minutes 36 seconds East, a distance of 106.76 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING and containing 6.72 acres (292,752 square feet) of land, more or less. 

 
 
  



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

Exhibit B 
Planned Development Standards 

 

1) Except as otherwise provided in this Ordinance, the Property shall be used and developed 
in accordance with the regulations applicable to property within the SF-3 Residential 
District, as set forth in the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance in effect on the date of the 
adoption of Ordinance No. 2011-11-675 (the “Zoning Ordinance”). 

2) The minimum side yard setback shall be ten feet, except that a reduced side yard setback 
of six feet is permitted on irregularly shaped lots identified on the preliminary or 
comprehensive site plan. 

3) The minimum lot width shall be 90 feet, measured at the minimum front yard setback line, 
for all lots other than irregularly shaped lots identified on the preliminary or comprehensive 
site plan, which shall have a minimum lot width of 60 feet, measured at the minimum front 
yard setback line. All lots shall have a minimum width of 30 feet at the front property line. 

4) The average lot size within the planned development shall be 15,000 square feet. No lot 
shall be less than 12,000 square feet in area. 

5) Each dwelling unit shall have a minimum of 2,500 square feet of air conditioned living 
space. 

6) Additional uses permitted this planned development are as follows: 

a) Equestrian center. 

b) Private open space. 

c) Accessory buildings. 

d) Retention and detention ponds. Each pond shall include a fountain or other feature to 
aerate the water. 

e) Servant’s quarters on lots that are four acres or larger. 

7) Gas drilling and related activities are prohibited on the Property except within the existing, 
permitted gas well pad site identified in Exhibit “C”. 

8) Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a comprehensive site plan must be approved in 
accordance with Article XVII and Article XXVII of the Zoning Ordinance. The landscape 
plan required by Article XXVII shall only be required to show landscaping along the 
perimeter of the subdivision and shall not be required to show landscaping of individual 
lots. If a building permit has not been issued within one year of the approval of the 
comprehensive site plan, approval of the comprehensive site plan shall expire. 

9) All new buildings shall be constructed according to the Standard Masonry Construction 
requirements as defined in the Zoning Ordinance. 



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

10) In addition to the additional uses permitted as set forth in Paragraph 6 above, the following 
additional uses shall be permitted by right only in Subarea 1 of the Property (“Subarea 1”) 
as depicted on the map attached hereto: 

 
a) Stable, boarding 

b) A maximum one living quarters on site with a business 

c) Office  

 
 
  



ORDINANCE 2020-1-_____   
 
 

Exhibit C 
Conceptual Site Plan 

 
 
 



Item Attachment Documents: 

 

21. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, 
Texas authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas to execute a 
Memorandum of Understanding by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas and 
the Cross Timers Equestrian Trail Association and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Fort 
Worth District. 

  



 

RESOLUTION 2020-0127-____ 
  PAGE 1 

TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020-0127-___ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS, HEREBY AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OF 
THE TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS, TO EXECUTE A 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BY AND BETWEEN THE 
TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, TEXAS AND THE CROSS TIMBERS 
EQUESTRIAN TRAIL ASSOCIATION AND THE U.S. ARMY CORPS OF 
ENGINEERS, FORT WORTH DISTRICT; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town of Hickory Creek (the “Town”), Texas is a Type A General Law 

Municipality located in Denton County, Texas, created in accordance with the provisions of the 
Texas Local Government Code and operating pursuant to enabling legislation of the State of 
Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council has been presented with a proposed Memorandum of 

Understanding by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, the Cross Timbers Equestrian 
Trail Association, and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Fort Worth District (hereinafter the 
"Agreement”) to provide a mechanism by which the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Fort Worth 
District, can process a request from the Cross Timbers Equestrian Trail Association and the 
Town of Hickory Creek to maintain an agreement for hiking and equestrian trails across corps 
property at Lewisville Lake, Texas, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by reference; and 

  
WHEREAS, upon full review and consideration of the Agreement, and all matters 

attendant and related thereto, the Town Council is of the opinion that the terms and conditions 
thereof should be approved, and that the Mayor shall be authorized to execute them on behalf of 
the Town of Hickory Creek. 

 
            NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of 
Hickory Creek, Texas: 
     
 Section 1: That the Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, is hereby authorized 
to execute on behalf of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, the Agreement attached hereto as 
Exhibit A. 
 
 Section 2: This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

     
      PASSED AND APPROVED by the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, 
Texas this 27th day of January, 2020. 
     
 
      ______________________________ 
      Lynn C. Clark, Mayor 
      Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 



 

RESOLUTION 2020-0127-____ 
  PAGE 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristi Rogers, Town Secretary 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Dorwin L. Sargent, III, Town Attorney 
Town of Hickory Creek, Texas 
 



 

 
1 

DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY 
FORT WORTH DISTRICT, CORPS OF ENGINEERS 

P. O. BOX 17300 
FORT WORTH, TEXAS  76102-0300 

 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN 

CROSS TIMBERS EQUESTIAN TRAIL ASSOCIATION, 
TOWN OF HICKORY CREEK, 

AND 
U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, FORT WORTH DISTRICT 

 
 
1.  Purpose:  The purpose of this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is to provide a 
mechanism by which the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), Fort Worth District can 
process a request from the Cross Timbers Equestrian Trail Association, the Town of Hickory 
Creek, to maintain an agreement for hiking and equestrian trails across USACE property at 
Lewisville Lake, Texas.   
 
2.  Objective:  The objective of the MOU is to establish procedures, responsibilities, and 
financial obligations between USACE, Cross Timbers Equestrian Trail Association, and the 
Town of Hickory Creek for support of the environmental, and operations involved in activities 
associated with the hiking and equestrian trail on USACE property at Lewisville Lake. Any 
structure, supplies, and material must be given permission by USACE before being built or 
brought onto government property.  
 
Section I Challenge Cost-Sharing Agreement 
 
The Challenge Cost-Sharing Agreement was entered into by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 
the Towns of Hickory Creek and the Cross Timbers Equestrian Trail Association in November 
2019 to facilitate the planning and maintenance of public recreational hiking and equestrian 
trails at Lewisville Lake on government lands. Specifically to maintain the trail north of Hickory 
Creek and connect the existing Pilot Knoll Trails, under easement to the Town of Copper 
Canyon, east to Sycamore Bend Park in the Town of Hickory Creek via the historical Old Alton 
Bridge. 
 
Under the agreement signing organizations and the Corps operate and maintain the trails within 
their respective jurisdictions according to a plan approved by all partners. The long-term 
objective to create a unified trails system operated and maintained consistently as it transverses 
one jurisdiction to the next.  
 
Section II Trail Layout  
 
The Government shall provide and update at reasonable intervals GIS data maps of the trails 



 

 
2 

system on aerial views. 
 
Section III   Architectural Theme & Materials  
 
The architectural theme is rustic western. Materials should be chosen for durability, vandal 
resistance, availability, and cost effectiveness. Structures and signage placed along the trails are 
intended to be harmonious and consistent with the natural, native surroundings.  Whenever 
possible, the natural color scheme of the Cross-Timbers forest is to be used with varying shades 
of grays, browns, and greens predominantly.  
 
Structures amenities and improvements should conform to the rustic western theme and the 
project plan. Materials used for construction, should be of the same or similar type and in similar 
style and appearance to existing buildings, pavilions and other amenities already found at 
Sycamore Bend Park, Pilot Knoll Park and along the Pilot Knoll Trail system including the 
historical Old Alton Bridge.  
 
Section IV   Hiking & Equestrian Trail Standards & Guidelines 
 
The Trail Standards & Guidelines are based on currently available references and recommended 
standards for hiking and equestrian trails; and current maintenance and operations practices on 
existing trails on government lands in the Elm Fork Project.  
 
Basic trail installations are those essential to the establishment and use of the trail system; 
including elements that define boundaries, are necessary for trail tread construction to permit 
water flow or prevent erosion, provide for crossings at roads or rivers/streams, or are necessary 
for public safety and use. These are included in the Trail Standards & Guidelines.  An 
improvement is an amenity that is desirable and will enhance the user experience but is non-
essential and is addressed separately. All improvements must be submitted, and given 
permission by USACE prior to arrival on government property.  
 
A. Location  
The trail shall follow a designated route as GIS mapped and approved by the partners and 
government on government lands. 
 
B. Trail Corridor (Area)   
A 20-ft. corridor width is recommended. The corridor should be of sufficient width to allow 
room for relocation of the trail within the corridor to facilitate drainage, minimize erosion and 
provide screening to adjacent private landowners. 
 
C. Trail Width 
A 10-ft. standard for trail width is recommended to allow sufficient clearance for use by 
maintenance and emergency vehicles. In the event of non-conforming areas created by 
circumstance of topography, utilities or some other unalterable barrier, establish the trail in the 
location providing the greatest width available, preferably greater than 8-ft. and no less than 6-ft. 



 

 
3 

Nonconforming trail should only be allowed when no alternative is available. 
 
D. Trail Tread (Footing) 
The tread is the surface of the trail (footing). The preferred surfaces are naturally occurring soils, 
grasses and dirt (primary) and granular stone (secondary with improvements such as culverts, 
hardening at crossings or drainage). 
 
E. Turning Radius/Switchbacks 
A 5-ft. minimum and 10 ft. maximum turning radius is recommended.  For switchbacks, the 
radius should be adequate to prevent a rider or hiker "cutting the corner" and eroding the turn. A 
switchback intended for maintenance and emergency vehicle use should be 10- ft. radius and 
reinforced sufficiently to support the weight of intended vehicular use. 
 
F. Gradient 
The trail should follow the contour of the land where possible and be located above the 532 ft. 
elevation contour for trails at Lewisville Lake whenever possible.  
 
G. Ascent 
The trail should be constructed so any grade of the trail shall increase gradually. The trail should 
be aligned to transverse the face of a slope horizontally at a modest grade, less than 3:1 making 
use of switchbacks on larger slopes, as opposed to ascending the slope in a vertical route from 
the base of the slope to the crest at a steeper grade. 
 
H. Slope and Backslope  
Backslope is the cutting into and filling on the face of a slope to construct trail. The trail tread 
shall be cut at an angle with outsloping sufficient to ensure drainage away from the face of the 
hill and allowing for compaction and wear, providing a stable condition with minimum 
maintenance.  
 
I. Steps 
Steps should be avoided in equestrian trails.  
 
J. Footpaths 
A secondary path of stepping stones may be used, clearly separate from the equestrian route and 
marked for "hikers only" at low water crossings and in areas where the ground is suitable for 
equestrians but less so for hikers. 
 
K. Drainage 
Allow whenever possible for natural drainage. Avoid locating the trail in boggy and wet areas 
whenever possible. Transverse low or drainage areas perpendicular to the route of drainage and 
water flow to minimize erosion. Install low water crossings where possible. Install drainage 
modifications to correct wet areas, with installation of culverts reserved for use in areas of 
significant flow or erosion potential. Outslope cutting the inner edge of trail along a hillside 
higher than the outer edge so water is shed across and off the trail instead of collecting and 



 

 
4 

running downhill on the trail. Shallow dips of 3" from hill face to edge filled with gravel or other 
permeable material may be used to channel flow. 
 
L. Fences and Gates 
The Government uses a standard unpainted metal pipe rail fence along Government property 
boundaries, around parking areas, for gates and walk in access areas. Some remote boundary and 
secondary interior fences are constructed of T-posts and wire. Gates are typically hinged, welded 
pipe metal construction hung on pipe metal H-braces 
that swings open fully both directions. Gates routinely remain closed and locked with padlocks 
issued by the Government.  All fencing should be verified as to ownership before alteration or 
removal, and replaced and constructed according to Government specifications at the time of 
installation. 
 
Where barbwire fence is present, whenever possible the wire should be replaced with smooth 
(slick) fence wire using H-braces of wood or metal. Smooth wire fencing is safer for trail users, 
tightens more easily for maintenance, and blends well visually into surrounding vegetation.   
 
In addition to fencing it is often desirable to keep users within the designated trail corridor. 
Fallen trees and brush piles may be used to create natural barriers while enhancing wildlife 
habitat. Plantings of native trees and tall grasses can also be used to create visual barriers to 
residential areas and businesses near the trail. 
 
M.  Access Points 
 
1. Parking Areas 
Parking areas should be of sufficient size to accommodate horse trailers pulling in and out and 
parking with sufficient room to extend the rear doors or ramp to load/unload a horse. Adequate 
parking spaces should be provided to prevent vehicles parking in front of or otherwise blocking 
access points. Access points should be clearly marked. 
 
The surface of the parking area should be constructed of well packed road base at a depth 
sufficient to handle the weight of loaded horse trailer rigs. The surface should be topped 
preferably with smooth gravel or rock of 1/2" diameter or less to prevent injury to horses feet. 
The surface should be resurfaced and topped with materials as needed to maintain the area free 
of potholes and ruts. Paved surfaces are less desirable due to the tendency of these surfaces to be 
slick in particular for iron shod horses. Where concrete is used, rough surface is preferable to 
smooth. 
 
The Government uses unpainted single rail metal pipe fence to surround parking areas. This 
fence is most effective in preventing illegal access by motor vehicles and ATV's. In areas 
adjacent to a roadway, a double rail fence of at least 48" height is desirable to prevent a horse 
gaining access to a road. The pipe metal fence allows for the installation of stepover bars for 
equestrian access and pedestrian Y-walk in turns as part of the fence line. Proper access for 
emergency and maintenance equipment such as pipe metal slide bars or gates should be installed 



 

 
5 

and incorporated into the metal pipe rail fence to allow access. All metal pipe rail fencing, gates, 
access stepover bars, pedestrian walk in Y's etc. should be approved and built in accordance with 
Government specifications at the time of installation. 
  
2.  Equestrian Step Over Bar  
Pipe rail step over bars should be provided at locations intended for equestrian access. Step over 
bars should be incorporated into pipe rail fencing. The bar being of the same diameter pipe as 
the fence rail and set at a maximum height at the top of the bar of 14" with a minimum height at 
the top of the bar 12" (1 foot). Improved footing under and on the approaches is recommended to 
prevent wear down at the bar.  All step over bars and pipe fencing should be built according to 
Government specifications and standards. 
 

1. Pedestrian Walk In Y  
Pedestrian Walk in Y access should be provided at locations intended only for hiker and 
pedestrian access. Walk in Y should be incorporated into pipe rail fencing. The Walk In Y being 
constructed of the same diameter pipe as the fence rail and set at a maximum height equal to the 
height of the pipe fence. All pedestrian access should be built according to Government 
specifications and standards. 
 
 4.   Gates & Slide Bars 
Access gates or slide bars should be incorporated into pipe rail fencing and constructed of same 
or similar materials as the fencing. Gates and slide bars should be of sufficient width to permit 
access of maintenance and emergency equipment. Existing gates and slide bars are 14 ft-16 ft. 
wide. Gates are typically hinged, welded pipe metal construction hung on pipe metal H-braces 
that swing open fully both directions. Gates routinely remain closed and locked with padlocks 
issued by the Government.  
 
N. Crossings 
 

1. Low Water Crossings 
Low water crossings are preferable to bridges. Use natural crossings where possible for low-
flow or intermittent streams. All plans for construction of low water crossings should provide for 
adequate hardening of the streambed and embankments. 
 
 2.   Culverts 
Culverts and fords should be of sufficient diameter and height to carry normal water flow with 
rains. Culverts should intersect the trail so the trail crosses near the midpoint of the culvert at as 
close to a 90-degree angle as possible to the lengthwise lie of the culvert.  Metal or plastic 
tinhorns should be of sufficient diameter and wall strength to permit normal water flow with 
rains and hold the weight of vehicles and horses. Culverts should be laid on a bed of and 
surrounded by packed water-resistant materials such as clay, gravel mixes or crushed recycled 
concrete. The culvert should be topped with a minimum of 12 inches of packed gravel or 
crushed rock or other similar material and then covered with an additional 6-8" minimum of soil 
or other appropriate footing. Headwalls may be stacked to create a curb to contain the materials 



 

 
6 

on top of the culvert at proper depth and to prevent washing out. Design should include 
consideration of outflow to prevent concentration or acceleration of water flow and erosion. 
Design should allow for any anticipated flooding that would submerge the culvert and the 
culvert constructed to retain its integrity during such an event.  Culvert headwall materials 
should not be permeable to water flow. Stacked stone headwalls should be mortared to prevent 
erosion and loss of stability. All plans shall require the express approval of the Government.   
 
 3.  Stepping Stones/Hikers 
Hiker stepping-stones may be placed to provide a crossing for hikers upstream, adjacent and 
parallel to the equestrian crossing. Hiker stepping-stones should be placed so as not to impede 
the flow of water and no more than 24" apart. Stepping stones should not be made of wood, 
should have a rough surface at least 12" diameter and placed so they extend above normal water 
level 6".  Stepping-stones should be secured into the streambed to prevent their loosening or 
washing away. 
 
 4.   Roads & Bridges 
Crossing signs should be posted at designated road crossings in conjunction with crosswalks 
painted onto the pavement.  Signs should be posted at Railroad crossings if applicable. 
Crosswalks should be painted white or yellow in compliance with and according to all local, 
State and Federal rules, regulations and laws governing public crosswalks on public roadways.  
Signs notifying motor vehicles should be posted a sufficient distance from the crosswalk in both 
directions in compliance with and as required by local, State and Federal rules, regulations and 
laws. 
 
Right of Way signs should be posted at bridge crossings shared with pedestrians indicating 
"Hikers/ Pedestrians yield Right-of -Way to Horses/Riders".  Right of Way should be posted in 
addition to signage encouraging riders to dismount and walk the horse across the bridge.  
 
O. Bridges (existing)  
The trail should be at least the same width as the bridge. Railings should be a minimum of 5 ft. 
in height and comply with all state, local and federal safety regulations. Existing bridges not in 
compliance with current railing standards should be posted to encourage riders to dismount and 
walk horses across the bridge. Treated timber planks are preferred for use as bridge decking over 
concrete or asphalt. 
 
 
P. Underpasses 
Underpasses should be of sufficient height and width for passage of a mounted horse and rider, 
emergency and maintenance vehicles and equipment. The minimum height of the underpass 
should be 12 ft. and the minimum width of the underpass 20-ft. The tread  should be at or above 
the 532 ft. elevation and drainage built in to prevent standing water.  
 
Q. Other Structures  
Structures may occasionally be required for areas where no alternative trail route is available. 



 

 
7 

These may include retaining walls or other artificial structures. The materials used should be in 
accordance with the architectural theme and blend into the surroundings as much as possible. 
Switchbacks may be required for example on a steep slope to prevent erosion, or an elevated 
trail surface with sub-tread drainage may be necessary to construct in wet areas. Plans and 
designs should be submitted to the Government for approval before installation. All structures 
should be considered in terms of what is the least intrusive method of modification for the given 
location.  
   
 
R. Utility Easements 
Determine the location of all utilities prior to installation of trail or improvements. 
Preserve access to utilities, avoiding utilities whenever possible. Seek authorization and 
approval for installations within an easement and coordinate installation with the utility or 
easement holder if no other locations outside the utility easement are possible. 
 
S. Signage 
Various sign types and methods of installation shall be used.  A master sign plan should be made 
a part of the Project Plan. Following is a brief summary of the signs: 
  
1.   Trail Location Markers  
Brown Carsonite two-sided trail signposts are used for trail location markers. Markers are 
installed each quarter mile with additional directional and reassurance markers placed as needed. 
The posts are a brown composite with vandal resistant properties and flex if a horse and rider hit 
them making them safe adjacent the trail. Posts are ordered from Carsonite with pre-attached 
metal anchors, which resist pulling out of the ground best in the soils around Lewisville Lake. 
The plastic anchors are insufficient. 
 
The posts are labeled with stickers ordered from Carsonite with a brown background and white 
reflective lettering or symbols. They adhere well and are vandal and weather resistant. The posts 
are labeled with international symbols for authorized uses (hiker, equestrian), rules (pets on 
leash), directional arrows and trail location identification; the trail designated by alphabetical 
letter, the location on that trail by number.  Prohibited use symbols may be added which have 
the red circle with a slash. "No Bicycles" and "No ATV" are used. A wide variety of symbols are 
available. A strip of white reflective tape is affixed across the top of each post to increase 
visibility of the marker especially for mowers.  
 
A Government logo or Partner logo sticker may also be affixed. The Town of Copper Canyon 
uses a 3" X 3" logo sticker affixed near the base of the posts. Each entity may do the same in 
their jurisdiction. In unincorporated areas the Government Corps Castle sticker is available from 
Carsonite for use. A single overall trail logo design might be considered to use throughout the 
entire trail system, these designs are then available through Carsonite printed on stickers and 
various types of signs. 
 
2. Hunting Boundary Markers  



 

 
8 

Yellow Carsonite posts may be used to post  "No Hunting Within 600 feet of Boundary" 
Government hunting regulation as needed.  
 
3. Trail Name Signs 
The trail name signs are larger signs located at trailheads and entrances and should be placed 
where they are readily visible. The signs should be constructed of wood of a design approved by 
the Government. The lettering may be routed into the wood and painted for visibility. Existing 
signs are unpainted with yellow painted lettering. Signposts are anchored in cement. Use of 
rustproof hardware is recommended. Information may include the trail name, total distance, 
elevation and directional arrows. (Refer to Section XII. Appendix, A. for photo) 
 
4. Metal Information & Notice Signs  
Metal signs may be used for information and notices. Metal signs have a brown background 
color with white reflective lettering. Metal signs are inexpensive and easily replaced.  

a. "No Bicycles or Motorized Vehicles Allowed".  Smaller signs are bolted on a 6-ft. 
metal T-posts or similar post. 

b. "Ride Aware Residential Area Ahead". Larger signs bolted on metal street signposts 
or similar metal posts anchored in cement. 

 
All signs should be approved for use prior to posting.  Metal signs should be located off to the 
side of the trail where visible, but not an obstruction for maintenance or emergency vehicles and 
located so as not to pose a hazard to a rider. Refer to Section XII. Appendix, A. for photo of 
"Ride Aware" sign. 
 
5. Caution & Closure Signs  
Some cautionary signs and trail closure signs (and gates) may be required in certain areas.  
Elevation would be a good initial indicator for determining anticipated areas that may flood 
occasionally and be subject to high water or closure due to flooding. 
 
 6.   Crossing Signs  
Signs should be posted at designated road crossings in conjunction with crosswalks painted onto 
the pavement. Signs should be posted at Railroad crossings. Right of Way signs should be 
posted at bridge crossings shared with pedestrians indicating 
"Hikers Yield to Horses". Carsonite has a sign of this type with the universal symbols available.  
This should be posted in addition to signage encouraging riders to dismount and walk the horse 
across the bridge.  
 
T. User Safety 
 
 1.  Search Rescue & Recovery Plan (S R & R)  
Each Partner and the Government shall provide Search Rescue and Recovery Plans for the trails 
within their jurisdiction according to all parties.  
 
2. Trail Closure 



 

 
9 

Trail closure policies and procedures should be established and implemented as approved by the 
Partners and government as necessary for public safety 
 
The existing trails are open at all times as there is one high ground trail route that remains above 
flood most years.  There has been no official closure of the trails due flooding on the Pilot Knoll 
Trails. "Do not ride wet trails" is included as posted public notice in bulletin boards and trail 
rules. The new trails pass through the Hickory Creek floodplain and adjacent to areas where the 
Old Alton Road has gates to close the road when flooding occurs.  Areas with flooding potential 
should be determined and plans made including appropriate signs indicating caution signs for 
high water and high ground route signs. 
 
U. Public Information 
 
 1.   Trail Rules  
A set of trail rules should be approved and posted at trailheads, on signs and bulletin boards. 
 
 2.    Distribution of Information 
Internet:  Post rules, information and official trail map on Partner and Government web sites 
with links to appropriate Government sites for Parks, Lake Levels, etc.   
Brochures:  Provide brochures including an official trail map approved by the Partners outlining 
trail rules and information on parking, camping, etc. at area parks. Brochures to be available at 
Government offices, City and Town Halls and Parks. 
 
 
Section V. Trail Maintenance Standard  
The following are minimum standards for trail maintenance. 
(See Trail Maintenance Inspection Checklist, Section X.  Form CCSA-5)  
 
A. Mowing 
Trails should be mowed a minimum of twice a year, typically in late May following wildflower 
display and again in mid to late September; with additional mowing done as required 
particularly in drought to prevent fires and wet years due to excess growth. 
 
B. Trash & Debris  
Trash collection at trailheads is determined by need, a minimum collection typically done once a 
month for parking areas. On the trails away from trailheads, trash is less frequently a problem 
and is done on an as needed basis. Trash should be picked up before mowing. Removal of fallen 
limbs, dead trees or drift debris on shoreline trails is on an as needed basis and done prior to 
mowing. 
 
C. Trail Inspection Including Signs and Amenities   
Inspect culverts and installations regularly for damage or wear and replace or repair as needed. 
 
D. Culvert Maintenance 



 

 
10 

Clear debris and obstructions a minimum of twice yearly and as needed; re-check for debris after 
heavy storms. Keep areas around culverts mowed or trimmed and graded sufficiently to direct 
water flow. 
 
E. Fence Maintenance 
Check fencing, gates and access points for damage or missing locks, repair as needed. 
 
F. Parking & Access Areas 
Maintain surface of parking area, grade and add materials as needed.  Keep area surrounding 
parking lots mowed shorter and pick up debris and trash every 1-2 weeks or as needed.  
 
G. Erosion Control 
Maintain trails surface (tread) by leveling, back-filling and packing or surface hardening any 
ruts. A front-end loader or bobcat is normally sufficient for this task. In heavily treed areas, 
watch for exposed tree roots and keep these covered to prevent trip hazard. In areas where runoff 
creates a persistent wet area, modify drainage and tread. In areas with persistent flow at one 
location, install a culvert with headwalls sufficient to permit flow and the trail to cross the 
culvert perpendicular to the placement of the tinhorn. Identify low water crossings or other 
features with erosion potential and construct to minimize erosion. Any improvement projects 
will need to approved by USACE prior to conducting any activities  
 
Section VI. Existing Improvements and Amenities 
A complete inventory of existing improvements and amenities should be included as part of the 
Project Plan. 
 
A.  Town of Copper Canyon, Pilot Knoll Trail, and Old Alton Bridge parking lot is designed 
for horse trailer and car parking. There is a single rail pipe fence surrounding the parking area 
with two built in stepover bars and a pedestrian Y-walk in for user access. A 16-ft. slide bar for 
maintenance and emergency access, kept closed and padlocked is constructed into the pipe 
fence. The Parking lot has an improved rock surface. There is a bulletin board, trail name signs, 
metal prohibition signs, and trail location markers. 
 
B. Old Alton Bridge & Old Alton Park, Denton County 
Old Alton Bridge Park has a small parking area designated for car parking only, a two rail metal 
pipe fence with a 16" pipe gate and two Y-walk through access points for pedestrians at the 
parking area. Horses do not have access from the car parking area.  
Benches and a gravel path to the bridge are present. Access to the trail is at the foot of the 
bridge: A Pedestrian Walk in Y and combination stepover bar/gate for horses, emergency and 
maintenance access.  Future improvements may include historical signage, informational 
signage, a bulletin board, hitching posts, a water trough, interpretive signs and other historical 
displays. 
 
C. Town of Hickory Creek, Sycamore Bend Park  
There is a parking facility, camping, restrooms, boat ramp, and picnic tables at Sycamore Bend 



 

 
11 

Park.  Possible improvements would include horse trailer parking area, informational signage, 
ride in access points, locked gate or slide bar for maintenance and emergency access. 
 
 
Section VII.  Optional Trail Improvements and Amenities 
 
One ongoing aspect of the equestrian and hiking trail will be the location and installation of 
improvements and amenities.  Amenities are elements that enhance the trail user experience but 
are non-essential to the basic trail. A complete inventory of existing and planned improvements 
and amenities should be made a part of the plan.  
 
A. Bulletin Boards  
 Bulletin boards should be located near entrance points or points of convergence or where 
amenities are located. Vandalism near parking areas can be significantly reduced by locating the 
bulletin board just up the trail 100-200 feet, out of sight of the parking area.   
 
Bulletin boards may be constructed of wood or metal of a design approved by the Government, 
preferably with a peaked roof of sufficient size to shelter the information board. Covering the 
roof with shingles extends the life of the structure. Bulletin boards may be painted (at Pilot 
Knoll the color used is brown) or left unpainted to weather naturally (if located on the trails 
outside a formal setting). The bulletin board legs should be anchored in cement and braced per 
design.  
 
Bulletin boards may have an optional cover made of Plexiglas of sufficient thickness to prevent 
flexing and cracking. Framing the Plexiglas with wood strengthens the cover and deters 
vandalism. The cover is hinged at the top to lift up to open for access and when closed has one 
or two latches at the bottom and is padlocked through each latch. Covers are not necessary if 
information is laminated. 
 
Locate utilities in the area before installation and consider the direction of prevailing winds (in 
this area north/south) when facing the bulletin board. An east/west facing presents a lower 
profile to prevailing winds.  
  
 
B. Hitching Posts 
Hitching posts may be constructed of 4" minimum wood posts with the cross bar secured with 
heavy duty lag bolts to the uprights, or constructed of unpainted welded pipe metal. 
Pipe metal should be built and finished to Government specifications for pipe fencing. Hitching 
posts should be 48" in height, 8ft. in length with finished ends for wood, capped for metal. 
Upright posts are anchored in cement. 
 
C.  Mounting Blocks  
Locate mounting blocks where an equestrian would be required to or routinely mount or 
dismount their horse, such as parking areas, rest areas, bridge approaches. 



 

 
12 

 
D.   Tie-Out Posts 
Tie-out posts are used when a corral or hitching post is not available. A free standing  pipe metal 
post capped at the top, a minimum of 6-ft.height with a ring welded at the top secured in a 
cement footing is sufficient to tie a horse in locations a rider may need to dismount and secure 
the horse.  These posts are often provided at equestrian camping sites and in parking locations 
where a horse is being loaded or unloaded from a trailer and saddled or unsaddled. 
 
E.   Signs 
 
1.  Interpretive Use Signs 
Interpretive signage and displays may be desirable at various locations featuring identification 
information of plant, trees, grasses, wildflowers, etc.  Various organizations and educational 
institutions may be interested in participating in this type of project. 
 
 2. "You are Here" Trail Map Sign 
A large sign placed at various locations on the trails away from locations with bulletin boards 
already posted with the same information.  The "You Are Here" sign may contain:   
a map indicating the location of the user and identifying closest exit points, amenities, and trail 
marker locations, Hunting areas indicated for cautionary purposes if applicable, 
high water areas indicated with quick exit routes, Trail system emblem and trail partner logos, 
instructional information for emergencies such as "Dial 911" or "Please call and report illegal 
dumping…, Ranger or Game Warden contact numbers, maintenance contact information to 
report trail hazards, trail etiquette reminders or rules. 
 
F.   Information Kiosks 
Kiosks are information booths. A kiosk may be appropriate at a high traffic location such as a 
park or an interpretive education site. Kiosks should be designed and constructed in accordance 
with the theme.  
 
G.   Screening & Visual Enhancements 
Native plants and trees should be considered for areas where visual screening is needed, such as 
near residential areas. Use of native plants and grasses can also stabilize disturbed soils and slow 
erosion, particularly on slopes and where vegetation has been stripped by past development or 
runoff.  Open spaces may be enhanced by removal of brush and invasive, alien plants and 
replanted with native grasses and wildflowers to re-establish lost native habitat. This type of 
project may be of interest to local volunteer groups and organizations. 
 
  
 
3.  Understandings, Agreements, Support, and Resource Needs. 
 

a. USACE will be responsible for preparation of documentation required for any real estate 



 

 
13 

actions and compliance with provisions of the hiking and equestrian trail. 
b. All of USACE resource needs for the actions described in this MOU will be provided by 

the joined efforts of all parties. 
c.  Agency Coordination.  Unless otherwise indicated in writing, USACE points of contact 

for this project are: 
 

Natural Resources Manager, Operations Division, Mr. Aaron Howell, U. S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, ATTN: CESWF-OD-R, P.O. Box 17300, Fort Worth, TX  76102-0300, Phone: 
(817) 886-1568; Fax: 817-886-6455; E-mail: Aaron.W.Howell@usace.army.mil 

 
Lake Manager, Lewisville Lake Office, Mr. Robert S. Jordan, U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers, ATTN: CESWF-OD-LE, 1801 N. Mill Street, Lewisville, TX 75057-1821, 
Phone: (469) 645-9107; Fax: 469-645-9101; E-mail: Robert.S.Jordan@usace.army.mil 

 
 
 

e.  For natural and cultural resources disturbed by the construction, a mitigation plan shall be 
submitted by the Cross Timbers Equestrian Trail Association, and the Town of Hickory Creek for 
consideration by USACE and for inclusion in the EA.  Both parties, prior to the start of 
construction, must agree upon the mitigation plan.  Any such plan shall be compliant with the 
requirements of Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, and the 
Texas Antiquities Code. 

 
f.  It is understood that should the proposed project enter the construction phase, Cross Timbers 

Equestrian Trail Association, and the Town of Hickory Creek will be responsible for compliance 
with all Federal, State, and/or local laws pertaining to protection of cultural or natural resources.  
This will include excavation and/or mitigation actions for any known cultural or natural resources, 
or those that might be unearthed during construction.  

 
 
4.  Effective Date.  The final MOU will become effective when signed and dated by all parties and 
shall remain in effect until either modified, or the project has been completed.  
 
 
 

 
_______________________________   Date________________ 
Robert Jordan     
Lake Manager  
 
 
_______________________________   Date________________ 
Fort Worth District 
Operations Project Manager 



 

 
14 

 
 
 
Marty Underwood     
USACE Environmental Steward    
 
 
_______________________________   Date________________ 
     
Town of Hickory Creek   
 
 
   
 
 
_______________________________   Date________________ 
     
Manger of CTETA  
 
  
 
  
 
 
 


	Top
	1. Kevin Ricer
	2. Town of Hickory Creek, Texas a Purple Heart Town
	Purple Heart Town

	3. November 2019 Council Meeting Minutes
	11-25-2019 Regular Meeting of the Town Council Minutes

	4. November 2019 Financial Statements
	November 2019 Financials
	November 2019 LOGIC Statements

	5. December 2019 Financial Statements
	December 2019 Financials
	December 2019 LOGIC Statements

	6. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas ordering an election to be held on May 2, 2020 for the purpose of electing a Mayor and Town Council Members to Place 2 and Place 4.
	2020-01 Calling May 2, 2020 General Election

	7. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending the Town's Code of Ordinances, Chapter 12: Traffic and Vehicles: Article 12:06 Motorized Carts.
	2020-01 Ordinance GolfCart

	8. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending the Code of Ordinances of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas, Chapter 3: Building Regulations, Article 3.11: Solar Panel Standards.
	2020-01 Ordinance SolarPanelStandards

	9. Consider and act on an ordinance of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, amending the Town's Code of Ordinances,Chapter 3: Building Regulations, Article 3.07: Floods and Drainage.
	2020-01 Ordinance Floods and Drainage

	10. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of Hickory Creek, Texas, herby amending the Master Applicationh and Fee Schedule.
	2020-0127 Resolution MotorizedCartFee

	11. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas authorizing the issuance of a water well drilling permit for 199 Country Lane, Hickory Creek, Texas.
	2020-0127-Resolution 199 Country Lane  Water Well Permit
	Scott Figart Well Permit 
	37638-200-104_FigartWellPermit_2stReview_2020-01-22
	LCMUA Support for 199 Country Lane Well Application

	12. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas to execute a Memorandum of Understanding by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas and McCreary, Veselka, Bragg and Allen, P.C.
	2020-0127 Resolution MVBAScofflaw
	Hickory Creek Scofflaw Memorandum of Understanding

	13. Consider and act on Change Order No. 2 for the 2019 Sidewalk Improvements project.
	Change Order No 2_Revised_LTW (004)

	14. Presentation of the 2018-2019 Fiscal Year Audit from Carl Deaton of Hankins, Eastup, Deaton, Tonn & Seay.
	Town of Hickory Creek 2019 Audit Report

	15. Presentation regarding the United States Census 2020 from Tenishea Turner.
	Census- What You Can Do Now 

	16. Presentation from Dunaway Associates regarding a Comprehensive Plan Update.
	Dunaway Hickory Creek TC Interview 1_27_20

	17. Presentation regarding the Lake Cities Fire Department from Chief Michael Ross.
	Lake Cities Fire Department CPSM Council Presentation

	18. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas approving the Hickory Creek Public Improvement District No. 2 2020 Amended Service And Assessment Plan, including proposed reallocation of the assessment roll; directing the filing of the proposed reallocation of the assessment roll with the town secretary; calling a public hearing to consider an ordinance reallocating assessments on the public improvement district.
	Resolution Calling Assessment Reallocation Hearing (Jan 2020) v2

	19. Consider and act on a replat of lots 1R and 2R, Block A Steeplechase South Addition, an 8.05 acre tract being all of Lot 1, Block A of Steeplechase South Addition situated in the M.E.P. & P.R.R. Company Survey, Abstract No. 915, Town of Hickory Creek, Denton County, Texas.
	Steeplechase South Replat

	20. Reconvene a public hearing continued from November 25, 2019 on a request from CTMGT Turbeville LLC. to modify the zoning designation of PD – Planned Development on a 6.72 acre portion of an 8.0454 acre tract of land legally described as Steeplechase South Addition, Block A, Lot 1, and consider and act on an ordinance adopting the same. The property is located in the 1900 Block of Turbeville Road.
	2020-01 Steeplechase PD Amendment

	21. Consider and act on a resolution of the Town Council of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas authorizing the Mayor of the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas to execute a Memorandum of Understanding by and between the Town of Hickory Creek, Texas and the Cross Timers Equestrian Trail Association and the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Fort Worth District.
	2020-0127 Resolution TrailMOU
	MOU_USACE.HC.CC.CTETA

	22. Discussion regarding the 2019 Hickory Creek Business of the Year.
	23. Discussion regarding the 2019 Hickory Creek Citizen of the Year.
	24. Discussion regarding town council goals for 2019-2020 to include infrastructure projects, broadband solutions, Sycamore Bend Road, community events and employee recognition.
	25. Fire Services
	26. Sycamore Bend DCAD Property ID 62195;62311;62329 and 155074.
	27. Parkridge at F.M.2181 DCAD Property ID 731514
	28. Project Eagle
	29. Discussion and possible action regarding matters discussed in executive session.
	Bottom
	2020-01-27_HIC_PID2_AR SAP Reallocation Final.pdf
	Table of Contents
	Introduction
	Section I: Definitions
	Section II: The District
	Section III: Authorized Improvements and PID Formation and Bond Issuance Costs
	Section IV: Service Plan
	Section V: Assessment Plan
	Section VI: Terms of the Assessments
	Section VII: Assessment Roll
	Section VIII: Additional Provisions
	Exhibits
	Exhibit A-1 – District Legal Description
	Exhibit A-2 – Improvement Area #1 Legal Description
	Exhibit A-3 – Improvement Area #2 Legal Description
	Exhibit A-4 – Map of Improvement Area #1 and Improvement Area #22F
	Exhibit A-5 – Changed Property Legal Description and Map
	Exhibit B – Change in Assessments
	Exhibit C – Authorized Improvements
	Exhibit D – Service Plan
	Exhibit E – Sources and Uses of Funds
	Exhibit F-1 – Improvement Area #1 Assessment Roll
	Exhibit F-2 – Improvement Area #1 Annual Installments
	Exhibit G-1 –Improvement Area #2 Assessment Roll
	Exhibit G-2 –Improvement Area #2 Annual Installments
	Exhibit H – Form of Notice of PID Assessment Termination
	Exhibit I – Homebuyer Disclosure
	Exhibit J – Debt Service Schedule for Bonds
	Exhibit K – Landowner Consent Forms




